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High Sierra

Casual and outdoor
backpack and luggage
products for young,
active consumers
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Speck
Innovative and stylish
slim protective cases
for personal
electronic devices
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1Gregory

Premium technical
backpack brand for
outdoor and
adventure enthusiasts
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Lipault

Chic and youthful
French luggage brand
for fashionable
female travelers
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Samsonite

Premium luggage brand offering sophisticated and
high quality products to the seasoned traveler
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American Tourister

A young and fashionable international
luggage brand for mid-market consumers
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Hartmann
Wn iconic American luxury luggage
rand®known for its long heritage and

exceptionaleraftsmanship
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STRATEGY
SRE

The Company aims to increase shareholder value through
sustainable revenue and earnings growth and free cash flow
generation. In order to achieve this objective, the Group has

adopted the following principal strategies:

ANREEEBUHENE BAERUEARRERERAREEE -

REIWER  FEFEERAUTEERE:

Leverage Brands

Continue to gain market share by
leveraging the strength of the Group's
diverse portfolio of brands, which include

Samsonite, American Tourister, Hartmann,

High Sierra, Gregory, Speck and Lipault.
BREAEES T RmEAS (BEFEE
American Tourister ~ Hartmann ~ High Sierra ~
Gregory ~ Speck & Lipault) B 1 » #4E
BATSMHE -

Improve Efficiency
Continually improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of the Group’s supply chain
and global distribution network.
EEXEASEMEER 2R HAKMN
BamRWE o

CORPORATE
PROFILE

DA

Samsonite International S.A. (the “Company”), together
with its consolidated subsidiaries (the “Group”), is the
world’s largest travel luggage company, with a heritage
dating back more than 100 years. The Group is principally
engaged in the design, manufacture, sourcing and
distribution of luggage, business and computer bags,
outdoor and casual bags, travel accessories and slim
protective cases for personal electronic devices throughout
the world, primarily under the Samsonite®, American
Tourister®, Hartmann®, High Sierra®, Gregory®, Speck® and
Lipault® brand names as well as other owned and licensed
brand names. The Group’s core brand, Samsonite, is one of
the most well-known travel luggage brands in the world.

HEBEBARAR

(X278 ERHEGSHEQREAR

[AEE]) RERGANKETZHAR  BERI100FELA
B o NEBTELFHEFE® « American Tourister® ~ Hartmann® >

High Sierra®
BEENmME -
f EEeERENE  FIMaRREE

RBEERER ° AEBNRL RS FE
TZfmEz— -

+ Gregory® ~ Speck® R Lipault® RiEL R B A K

REREERERG s RERDHETES
C REERAUAREAEF

EREIREE BRI

Innovate

Introduce new and innovative product
designs, adapted to the needs of consumers
in different markets, while staying true to
the Group’s core values of lightness,
strength and functionality.

5| AFTER BRI E MR LI E TR m S HE
EFEE  ARERASENZOER — KI5
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&%lﬂ BE °

Diversify by Geography,
Brand, Product Category
and Channel

e Allocate more resources to increase the
Group’s direct-to-consumer sales,
including e-commerce, retail and omni-
channel, in proportion to total net sales.

e Allocate more resources to the markets in
Latin America where the Group is less
represented and has the potential to
increase market share.

e Allocate more resources to the Hartmann
brand to increase sales and gain market
share worldwide.

e Allocate more resources to the product
categories that present the greatest
opportunity for the Group to expand its
product offerings and gain market share.

o NEEZERUEMASEEZEREEE
WIHER(EEETHE - TER2HRE)
{Eﬁé EFBREMNILE -

s PREZEREREETISHBEREELE
jJ?m?Hﬁ%‘EE’HJ.T Mm% e

o DEEZERE Hartmann fhé + SAURAZIR
EINEERERIBEATISMEE

s NEEZERZAALEETRELERA
AREBEATSHEAFHRENERER -

Invest in R&D

Increase the Group’s investment in research
& development and marketing broadly in
line with sales growth.
EINASEEMEREHFETENIRE - KB
HERSER -

Grow

Focus on achieving growth organically, and at
the same time making acquisitions that have
a compelling strategic and financial rationale.
EIRBAER - [BRE R R B 5 E AR
5| DHIWEBIER ©
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

MBME

For the year ended
December 31, 2014, the Group’s:
HZE2014512A31HILEE  AEEH :

& Net sales increased to a record level of
US$2,350.7 million, reflecting a 15.4%
increase from the previous year. Excluding
foreign currency effects, net sales increased
by 17.3%. Excluding amounts attributable
to acquisitions made in 2014, net sales
increased by US$203.2 million, or 10.0%,
and by 11.9% on a constant currency basis.
SHEFREILE2 3507 BB E TN
REFRR154% - WRERZE » $HEF8
1BR17.3% ° MBR2014FETHNESEE
1258 SHEFEIE 203 2BEETH10.0%
REEEHEERIEMN11.9% -

& Operating profit increased by US$18.0
million, or 6.4%, year-on-year and by
US$30.4 million, or 10.8%, excluding
acquisition costs.

T RTRERERI18BOEEXETHG64%
MPERUEE R AR BIIE R 30.4BEXTH10.8% ©

9 Profit attributable to the equity holders ()
increased by US$10.2 million, or 5.8%,
year-on-year and by US$28.9 million, or
16.3%, excluding acquisition costs and
foreign exchange translation losses.

BB AL EFRFIERI102BEBET &
5§,5.8% + HERULES RS I SMEE BE 5 518 Bl
1BR289FEETMN16.3% °

& Profit for the year increased by US$7.9
million, or 4.0%, year-on-year and by
US$26.6 million, or 13.4%, excluding
acquisition costs and foreign exchange
translation losses.
FRRMEFRR7IBEETHA.0% » #MibR
W R AR SMNERE R IR RIIE R 26 6 BB ETT
513.4% ©

& Adjusted Net Income' increased by US$17.0
million, or 9.0%, year-on-year and by
US$23.3 million, or 12.3%, excluding
foreign exchange translation losses.
EREBUN BERE170BBETS o
9.0% - MERIMEE R EEIIER233EE
ExHK12.3% °©

9 Adjusted EBITDA? increased by US$46.6
million, or 13.8%, to US$384.3 million.
CAREBITDA B R 466 BB E TN 13.8%
E3843EBET °

SRR AR L
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Net Sales

HEFH

195.4%

Adjusted .
Net Income
EREERA

19.0%

Adjuste2cI
EBITDA
#Z3% EBITDA”

] 3 C 8 /O
Adjusted EBITDA margin® decreased to

16.4% from 16.6% primarily due to lower
margins from brands acquired in 2014.
ISTEEBITDARIEEH16.6% FFEZ16.4%
FEHRRN2014F S REN R B RBIEAE
The Group generated US$229.9 million of
cash from operating activities during 2014
compared to US$193.0 million during
2013. As of December 31, 2014, the Group
had cash and cash equivalents of US$140.4
million and financial debt of US$67.6
million (excluding deferred financing costs
of US$2.4 million), providing the Group
with a net cash position of US$72.9 million.

REER2014FEEKLEFEMERES229.9
BEXx M2013F8IR193.088%ET ©
R20145F128318 » AEERERALEEY
B1404EEBET 2MBERCIEEET
(MFRIEERE R A2 ABBET) @ HAKEZ
FREAT29BBET °

On March 16, 2015, the Company’s Board
of Directors recommended that a cash
distribution in the amount of US$88.0
million, or approximately US$0.0625 per
share, be made to the Company'’s
shareholders, a 10% increase from the
US$80.0 million distribution paid in 2014.
M2015F38 160 » RARAESEEZEALD
ARRELHSS.0BEEETHERA0.0625% T
MEL DR » B2014FR{TH80.0BEXET
DIRIZR10% ©
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Year ended December 31, BET A
(LEEET25  SREERIN) Percentage
(Expressed in millions of US Dollars, except per share data) 2013 change
Net sales HEFE 2,037.8 15.4%
Operating profit &R 281.3 6.4%
Profit for the year FREA 197.4 4.0%
Profit attributable to the equity holders RIERFE ARLRRF] 176.1 5.8%
Adjusted Net Income! KREFRA 189.2 9.0%
Adjusted EBITDA? #SHAEE EBITDA? 337.7 13.8%
Adjusted EBITDA margin? #EHH2 EBITDA Rl &3 16.6%
Basic and diluted earnings per share ERERREERF] 0.125 5.6%
(Expressed in US Dollars per share) (UBRETL7)
Adjusted basic earnings per share* KRG REAREF 0.134 9.7%
(Expressed in US Dollars per share) (UBRETLZ7)
Adjusted diluted earnings per share? KRR REERF 0.134 9.0%
(Expressed in US Dollars per share) (UBRETL7)

Notes iz

T Adjusted Net Income, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a number of non-recurring costs and charges and certain other non-cash charges
that impact the Group’s reported profit for the year. See “Management Discussion and Analysis — Adjusted Net Income” for a reconciliation from
the Group’s profit for the year to Adjusted Net Income.
KRBEFRARIEFRSHKTETR - AN EFAAEERREANNE THEEURFIRBAURE TRMFRSEANTE - BEAEEFNER LT FRANEER
F2H [EEENRES T — LHEBRA -
Adjusted EBITDA, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a number of non-recurring costs and charges and certain other non-cash charges,
which the Group believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its operational performance and of the underlying trends of its
business. See “Management Discussion and Analysis — Adjusted EBITDA” for a reconciliation from the Group’s profit for the year to Adjusted
EBITDA.
KBEEBTDARIE IFRSHUBHETE - AMBRE TRLSEURARBAUKRE THMFRSEANYE  ASEACEEFRERHE 7 RELE XER HEBNEREES -
B S E F RIS BE EBITDA BEER - A28 [ERE RIS AT — KBEEBTDA]
3 Adjusted EBITDA margin, a non-IFRS measure, is calculated by dividing Adjusted EBITDA by net sales.
R EBTDARIERAIEIFRS TR TH - LUSTERE EBITDA BRASHEF AR HATS ©
4 Adjusted earnings per share, a non-IFRS measure, is calculated by dividing Adjusted Net Income by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period.
KREBREABFFRSUBETE - USHEZRABRUARBTEIMIIET IR EHE -

Asia North America Europe Latin America Travel Casual Business Accessories  Other
Jricmes M db=M B BT EM Jricees HRAT KB k] Bt Hity
Growth by ... e Growth by e
Region 218.0%' 2229%' 210.4%' 215.7%' Product 2109% 225.1%' 234.6% 276.3%' 212.4%'
3 5 Categor
gégiﬁg 2014 $892.3 $761.3 $557.9 $130.6 Dg y 2014 $1,654.4  $252.1 $256.2 $147.2 $40.8
& 2013 §7684  $621.7  $5152  $123.6 BERBBBIG 0013 §15159 $2059  $1935  $857 $36.9
us$m) HEFREE US$mm)
En(E8) = (EE)

900 — 1,800 —

800 — 1,600 —

700— 1,400 —

600— 1,200 —

500 — 1,000 —

400— 800 —

300— 600 —

200— 400 —
& 2014 &= 2014

100— 200 —
™ 2013 . - 2013 W . .
E— _

Note Hi&E
T Excluding foreign currency effects.
MBRER SR

HEBEBRERAT Z—O—MEFR |



9 The Group completed the following

acquisitions during 2014:

20145 » REBFEHUATWEBER !

e The Lipault brand and legal entities
(“Lipault”), acquired on April 1, 2014,
is a luggage brand founded in France in
2005 whose products are designed to
meet the needs of today’s savvy
travellers, featuring ultra-lightweight,
smart designs and bright fashion colors,
and constructed using luxurious but
durable nylon twill fabric. The acquisition
presents opportunities to leverage the
Group’s industry-leading design and
product development capabilities,
as well as its distribution network and
retail presence to significantly expand
the Lipault brand in France, additional
markets in Europe and the rest of
the world.

201454 81 B TR Lipault i8R
EEERE ([Lipault]) R1E2005F R
ERRINNTERmE - HERRITIER
THREREENER ERSEEERED -
B2 B HRET R EENES Y  WiRAEE
Bt AR ERER S RI8E o WESIER
FEERMBEHACERNRARER
REEENURED HAZRREBEM SN
BEHRE  FIHAER - BUNE b5
Rt 5B 4t 35 AIREIEIR Lipault kg o

e Speculative Product Design, LLC (“Speck
Products”), acquired on May 28, 2014,
is a leading designer and distributor of
slim protective cases for personal
electronic devices that are marketed
under the Speck® brand. Speck Products
offers a diverse product range that is
sleek, stylish and functionally innovative,
and provides superior military-grade
protection for smartphones, tablets and
laptops from a range of manufacturers.
The acquisition enables the Group to
strategically extend its brand portfolio
beyond its traditional strength in travel
luggage products, and provides the
Group with a strong brand and product
offering resulting in an immediate
foothold in the market for protective
cases for smartphones, tablets, laptops
and other personal electronic devices.
It also provides the Group with
opportunities to leverage its well-
established global distribution network
and retail presence to significantly
expand the reach of the Speck brand in
Asia, Europe and Latin America.
R2014%5 A 28 H FriiEHY Speculative
Product Design, LLC ([ Speck Products]) &
—REAERRTRDEAT » M Speck®
mEEHEA S FRBEFRER © Speck
Products IR fitEFie - EBRARIFIIENZ
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BIEEMAY > REABENEEFH - F
MERK FIRERREHEARRIH = HARE o
AEETBEMNESREHRTEER
HEFRRMUN R EREAS - X
AAREERM—EENRANRERERE
HHERAS  HSEEREFH  TRER -
FREWMAMBEAZFRERERTS
E—FEAL - WIBEE MRS A E 3
BHERRANZ RO EARREENS
AT B - FELRRIEIER Speck fm iR
TN BUNRIL T SEME N EEEE -

e Substantially all of the assets of Gregory

Mountain Products, LLC (“Gregory”).
Gregory, acquired on July 23, 2014, is a
leader and pioneer in its industry,
responsible for many innovations in
backpack design. The Gregory brand is
well-respected by active outdoor and
adventure enthusiasts as a leading brand
in the premium technical backpack
segment. In addition to its technical
backpacks, Gregory branded lifestyle
backpacks are popular in Japan and
other Asian countries. The acquisition
gives the Group a strong brand and
product offering to expand its presence
in the high-end segment of the outdoor
and casual markets, as well as
opportunities to leverage the Group’s
global marketing and distribution
capabilities to significantly expand the
Gregory brand both in the U.S. and
internationally.

W88 Gregory Mountain Products, LLC
(['Gregory]) EFFRBEE - B2014F7A4
23 HATUREE Y Gregory R EATENBRER %
B & T B ERTHNZEAIF © Gregory
MEESEROEIRFREFEEE =2
EmEXEENEERE - BREXSEN
Gregory FRAE M IREI B B1E B A F E A 0N E
RESE o AEERELWESERN—
BEHRYNRERERES  BREARS
mEMRARBETE S BNES  ARTAR
SERMERE  BEHZREHERIHED
HIEZ:  FE I Gregory GRS B % BIFR
TS KBREER o

e Subsequent to December 31, 2014, the

Group completed the acquisition of the
business and substantially all of the
assets of Rolling Luggage. The
acquisition provides the Group with a
significant retail footprint in some of the
world’s leading airports, and further
expands the Group’s portfolio of retail
store locations.

M2014F 12831 B 2% REBETRKE
Rolling Luggage MEB KA FFREEE °
WSS EEAEERINS 25 T HRELN
BiSRETEER » WE—PBERAEEN
TEEHE °



POSITION EERITAGE

T 15 2 fiL

Premium luggage Founded over a
brand offering century ago by
sophisticated Jesse Shwayder,
and high quality in 1910, in Denver,
products to the Colorado, U.S.A.

seasoned business

and leisure traveler R10F X EM &
HI % M -3 T B Jesse
AEREBIKRERER Shwayder8l 37

SaMmMsGnite swessaans

THE
WORLD’S
LARGEST
TRAVEL
LUGGAGE
BBAND and our fiagship,

well known for its quality, durability,

functionality and
innovation
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Our goal is not just to build a bigger business, but also
a stronger business. We are therefore placing emphasis on
the creation of a more diversified Group across geographical markets,
product categories, brands and distribution channels.
Our intention is also to make the business more resilient, so we
are not so reliant on any single brand, market, channel
of distribution, or product category.
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2014 has been another year of excellent progress for your company. As our
new CEO Ramesh Tainwala points out in his report, this is the fifth consecutive
year that Samsonite has achieved double-digit growth in both net sales and
Adjusted EBITDA. Group turnover reached a record US$2.35 billion, up 15.4%,
and Adjusted EBITDA increased 13.8% to US$384.3 million. These are the
essential statistics, but they only reflect the short-term impact of many of the
initiatives taken over the last few years. As | have explained in previous reports,
Samsonite is a business with deep historical roots in trading across the globe
and an eponymous brand that has come to be the leader in travel goods in
almost every significant world market. This has been a firm foundation on
which to build a growing business, which we have certainly achieved since
Samsonite’s stock market flotation in 2011. Along the way, a new vision of
the management team has taken shape: this is to develop the Group on a
much more ambitious scale, extending our lead in travel goods with Samsonite
and American Tourister, whilst also acquiring additional brands and channels
of distribution. We firmly believe that the business has the capacity to double
in size over the next few years: 2014 is the first year in our plan to achieve this
with an outturn consistent with our long-term ambition.

We are confident that travel, tourism and outdoor leisure, the key drivers of
our business, will continue to expand at a steady rate, in excess of GDP in
most markets. Part of this expansion reflects the general health of the global
economy that in turn drives demand from the business sector. More significant
is the impact of rising affluence on tourism and also the time available for
leisure activities. It is hard to pinpoint exactly, but the last few years have also
seen a shift away from essentially utility-based products to a much more
colourful and varied array of designs in our marketplace. This has both reflected
and encouraged consumer interest, which bodes well for the future growth
of the categories that we are active in. Although there is no lack of competition
and new entrants to the markets that we serve, our management team is
confident that Samsonite’s brands can continue to lead on quality, innovation
and visual appeal. This will not be left to chance: we will be significantly
increasing the Group’s investment in marketing well ahead of sales growth,
and we are expanding our design activities globally. We are also continuously
looking at new materials and technologies, and will invest further in our own
manufacturing facilities where this makes sense.

The broad approach of the business will be to remain nimble and able to
respond to changing conditions across global markets. This implies only limited
vertical integration of our activities, and a continued emphasis on a decentralised
management structure. The local country management is the building block
of our relationship with the consumer, and we shape our product offering
according to local tastes and needs. However, there are several key areas in
which the business is intent on extracting the benefits of scale, in particular
purchasing and logistics. As our business becomes more complex in terms of
brands, channels and product ranges, it becomes ever more important to find

2014FEBETARB—AMESHBEERN—F -
AN B FETEAAE, Ramesh Tainwala R E#R
EHEE  FEBNHE FRERCTHEEBITDAY
BEESTTHESENHTER - ANEEEXEEE
B EER23.5BE T BREFILR154% 0
AR EBITDARIIE R 13.8% £3.843(f8 % 7t © Ik
LEXHEERPBEHFERMMERNZEE
HERVEERR o AR AR BEMIRE PR - 3
ESBREEBAREELREYESSR HESR
METAEREFREEETIGREE RN
B o WIBEREZEHNFER2011F LR URER
AEitK - FE > EEERE—EHNES 2
TR B EE K American Tourister TE iR E &
FHERELES  BRFBEHMRERDHE
B UERANRERREAEE - KB
BANEBEGREIRRREER—H : 201455
M EEREENEF  REERFRBES
_ﬁ °

BREARGL  BMEBNERRS D — ki
BUER PIMARSHRRERR - MARKED
MENEREESNRERNEELERRE - ItiE
R0 RRBRBEENRERREE - THEE
FR oW EREERRABRTHIRERE
PERUARBHBERE SR RETREDEE
HRNEE - HARMLUIEHEENRR - BB
HERMNTETHRARETEFABERERES
REZEZFTRENIBE - BRI RRILTEH
BENEY  RFRMNENBRENERERH
Al BERMAMBRENTSHRFHI TF2
HiexE  ERMANEEEBEEREL - HEER
TRETEENES - AR WM IMNEELE
R ZMEBERHE  BMSRESNHEER
RNBEAERSAEEREEIENRE
WRBHIFRE R HES - RIOTEEFRIIHE
RE - WHRREEERTE—SRENEE

RN ©

BIFEBOAT R REEESE - UEHER
EEZNRRTNR - ERRERMNEREET
EREEHRS  BREEZENENTHERR
B UEEHHARNEBASRBRMEHEER
NRRNER - MEMARSE b RRRFRE]
HEMNERRY - BEWMY - BT EEXEBE
RS MRERERD  BRRKERYR - AREK
MEEBERE  HERERERRIIZHEE
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Chairman’s Statement EE##®E

ways to simplify our operations, and to make sure that we do not suffer from
initiative overload. Although our model involves the devolution of responsibility
to local management where possible, we are very much alive to the
opportunities to share knowledge across the Group and avoid duplication of
effort. As such, our key managers around the world are in constant contact,
especially in the areas of product marketing and sourcing.

In a report and statement of accounts, it is not always easy to convey a clear
impression of the style and capability of a management team. One of the
advantages of my continuing as Chairman, having been the CEO, is that |
know well the executives who make the key decisions in the business on a
day-to-day basis. Ultimately the results of your company depend on them
getting it right most of the time, and | have confidence that the team under
Ramesh Tainwala will do just that. First of all, we have plenty of specialists in
all aspects of our industry and indeed some of its most experienced executives.
Secondly, we have developed a culture across our business that largely eschews
politics, and places fundamental importance on getting things done. The most
precious commodity in a dynamic and competitive marketplace is time, and
the consistent focus of the team is on maintaining a rapid tempo in management
execution. And thirdly, our CEO and CFO are constantly in the marketplace,
leading from the front and staying in close touch with key developments in
each market.

It is critical that we retain and motivate the key executives in our company,
and the Remuneration Committee of the Board looks carefully at a range of
factors in considering the long-term incentive programme for senior members
of the management team. We have an ambitious programme ahead of us
over the next few years, and the Board took the view this year that it was
desirable to make a one-off award beyond the usual formula to key members
of the senior management team. This was on the recommendation of the CEO
(who did not himself wish to be included in this additional award) and in his
view, shared by the Board, it will be a strong incentive for the team to realise
our growth plans and to remain committed to the business. On 7th January
2015, the Board of Directors granted share options to certain directors and
employees entitling the recipients to subscribe to an aggregate of 26,047,211
new ordinary shares.

Our goal is not just to build a bigger business, but also to build a stronger
business. We are therefore placing emphasis on the creation of a more
diversified Group across geographical markets, product categories, brands and
distribution channels. This of course opens up new opportunities for expansion
and these are well described in Ramesh’s report. However, our intention is also
to make the business more resilient, so we are not so reliant on any single
brand, market, channel of distribution, or product category. Some time ago
the Group moved away from being dependent on the Samsonite brand in
travel goods sold mainly through wholesale channels in the developed markets
of the US and Europe. A major theme running through this year’s report is the
development of the American Tourister brand, which is aimed at the very large
middle segment of the travel market. Secondly, we have made a succession
of acquisitions of carefully chosen brands that are complementary to Samsonite
and American Tourister: Hartmann, Lipault, High Sierra, Gregory and Speck
all have enormous scope for growth within our global distribution structure.
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The experience we have gained from absorbing these new brands has been
invaluable, and there is now a well-oiled machine standing ready to take
advantage of whatever bolt-on opportunities arise in the marketplace. Our
most recent buy, Rolling Luggage, coming after the end of the year, establishes
a strong retail presence for us in key international airport locations. And we
will continue to look at more retail opportunities. As you will see too, we are
not letting the explosive growth in online retail pass us by. This distribution
channel can be a new driver of profitable growth for our business, and will
be the way in which many of our newer and younger customers experience
our brands.

From a financial perspective, our company’s balance sheet remains ungeared,
and therefore well protected against any unforeseen downside risks in the
global travel market. If a suitable opportunity occurs, it clearly leaves us with
considerable financing possibilities, without fundamentally altering the
conservative risk profile of the business. From a cash flow perspective we are
focused on improving the EBITDA conversion rate, through improvement of
working capital efficiency and effective control over capital expenditure. In
2014, the Group generated US$229.9 million of cash from operating activities
and after the payment of a cash distribution to shareholders that was more
than double the previous year’s, as well as the acquisitions of Lipault, Speck
Products and Gregory, we still retained a net cash position of US$72.9 million
at the end of the year.

Over the year, earnings per share on an adjusted and diluted basis increased
from US$0.134 to US$0.146, an increase of 9.0%. The Board recommends a
cash distribution to shareholders for 2015 of US$88.0 million, up 10% on the
previous year, and representing approximately US$0.0625 per share.

As Ramesh points out in his report, trading conditions across the world vary
at any one time, but we are content with the direction of our business, and
confident of achieving our goals for 2015. It remains for me to thank everyone
across the worldwide Samsonite community, encompassing our own people
and the many businesses that supply and sell our products. Without their
commitment, these results would not be possible. And it is because of
their dedication that | am confident that Samsonite will continue to prosper
in the future.

’6311;§“ /?iafzr-/

Timothy Charles Parker
Chairman
March 17, 2015
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In my first letter to shareholders since | was appointed CEO last October, | am
pleased to share with you another very encouraging set of results for the
Group. Samsonite posted double-digit growth in both the topline and Adjusted
EBITDA for the fifth year running, and net sales for 2014 reached a new record
at US$2.35 billion, an increase of 15.4% over the previous year. Excluding
foreign currency effects, net sales increased by 17.3% for the year ended
December 31, 2014. All four regions in which we operate recorded double-
digit constant currency net sales growth. We also completed the acquisitions
of Lipault, Speck Products and Gregory during the year, all of which extend
the Group’s brand and product offering in a unique way.

The Group's profit attributable to equity holders increased by 5.8% to US$186.3
million. Excluding acquisition costs and foreign exchange translation losses,
profit attributable to the equity holders increased by 16.3%.

Adjusted EBITDA increased by 13.8% to US$384.3 million in 2014. Adjusted
Net Income, which excludes certain non-operating and one-off costs and gives
a clearer picture of the underlying performance of the business, increased by
9.0% to US$206.3 million. Excluding foreign exchange translation losses,
Adjusted Net Income increased by US$23.3 million, or 12.3%, year-on-year.
Earnings per share on an adjusted and diluted basis increased from US$0.134
to US$0.146, an increase of 9.0%.

The Group generated US$229.9 million of cash from operating activities in
2014 compared to US$193.0 million in 2013. After payment of the US$80.0
million cash distribution to equity holders in July 2014 and the completion of
the Lipault, Speck Products and Gregory acquisitions, the Group ended 2014
in a net cash position of US$72.9 million.

As our Chairman Tim Parker has noted in previous reports, the mark of a
successful strategy is one that remains consistent over time, without being
unduly inflexible. Our track record reflects the steady execution of our growth
strategy, which is underpinned by three key elements. Firstly, we are focused
on building resilience within our business by operating a multi-brand, multi-
category and multi-channel model. Secondly, we consistently invest in our
brands and products, from both an innovation and a marketing perspective.
And finally, we are committed to the “glocalisation” of our operations, which
is about fully leveraging our global scale while adapting to the needs of local
markets. We intend to intensify our efforts in executing these three elements
of our overall strategy, while also remaining nimble as we proactively navigate
our business to respond to the challenges and opportunities presented by
rapidly shifting macroeconomic and market forces.

When we listed Samsonite in 2011, our business was primarily centered on
the Samsonite brand (78.2% of net sales), focused largely on the single product
category of travel luggage (75.8% of net sales), and was distributed principally
through the wholesale channel (80.0% of net sales). Over the past few years,
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we have strategically diversified our business, such that today, we have a more
balanced multi-brand, multi-category and multi-channel model which
considerably strengthens our ability to weather the myriad of external forces
that can buffet individual markets, such as currency movements, natural
disasters or changes in political and economic climates.

From a brand perspective, our flagship Samsonite remains the leader in the
premium luggage segment, accounting for 65.3% of our 2014 net sales.
Meanwhile, American Tourister has grown from 16.0% of the Group’s sales
in 2011 t0 21.4% in 2014, with a 3-year CAGR of 26.4%, firmly establishing
itself as a fashionable, international brand aimed at mid-market consumers.
American Tourister has been especially successful in Asia, accounting for 43.2%
of the region’s net sales in 2014, and has a bright future as an aspirational
brand for middle class consumers in the region’s emerging markets, as well as
in those of Latin America. Europe, where American Tourister has been under-
represented historically, offers another opportunity. Net sales of the brand
increased by 54.8% on a constant currency basis in 2014, and comprised
7.5% of Europe’s net sales during 2014 compared to 5.4% during the
previous year. 2015 will see us aggressively rolling out American Tourister
throughout Europe.
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2015 will see the Group continue on its clear and defined growth strategy.
Our aim is to invest more aggressively, both in terms of management resources
as well as marketing dollars, in new brands, new channels and new markets, with

a view to turning these into significant contributors to Samsonite’s growth.

REER2015F#5 HEBHARNBRRLE - HANEESEREBRRERERR
EHESTNERNMIE - FOHERERHTS  BRHTENERTRERTR -

Hartmann, the iconic luxury luggage and leather products brand which we
acquired in 2012, made good progress in 2014. Following the revamp of the
brand’s product range and the development of its retail store concept, the
Group launched Hartmann globally in the fourth quarter with the opening of
the New York Madison Avenue flagship store in October, followed by the Tokyo
Ginza flagship in December. We also opened points of sales in key cities such
as London, Paris, Moscow, Beijing, Shanghai, Seoul, Hong Kong and Singapore.
All told, Hartmann had over 350 points of sales in 19 markets at the end of
2014. Market reaction to the new product line-up has been encouraging, with
2014 net sales growing by 10.3% excluding foreign currency effects. While
the brand’s footprint is admittedly still small, and it will require patience and
investment for further growth, we are confident of Hartmann's potential to
reclaim its leading position in the luxury segment and to become a sizeable
business for the Group over the medium term.

Lipault, the French luggage brand we acquired in April 2014, rounds out our
portfolio of luggage offerings with its youthful appeal, signature Parisian style
and vibrant colors that will enable us to engage with fashionable, female
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consumers. Lipault is an excellent complement to the more masculine
Samsonite brand, and we intend to expand its reach to additional markets
both inside and outside Europe over the coming year.

Within the Group’s non-travel category, both the High Sierra brand and the
Samsonite Red sub-brand in the casual segment performed well. Excluding
foreign currency effects, net sales of High Sierra grew by 12.2% in North
America, and by 24.9% overall on the back of the successful introduction of
the brand in Asia, Europe and Latin America. Successful new product
introductions and marketing programs helped Samsonite Red to record a
constant currency net sales increase of 92.7%. Including the contribution from
Gregory, a brand we acquired in July 2014 that has a strong presence in the
premium technical outdoor market, net sales of the casual segment grew by
25.1% excluding foreign currency effects. In total, casual products contributed
US$252.1 million and accounted for 10.7% of 2014 net sales.

The acquisition of Speck Products is another exciting extension of our brand
portfolio, marking the Group’s first foray outside of the ‘traditional’ luggage
space, into a different, yet complementary, product segment. With the
immediate foothold that the Speck brand offers in the market for protective
cases for smartphones, tablets, laptops and other personal electronic devices,
net sales in the Group’s business and accessories segments grew by 34.6%
and 76.3%, respectively, excluding foreign currency effects. The first phase of
integrating the brand into our business is complete, and with strong sales of
its new iPhone 6 cases, Speck contributed better-than-expected turnover of
US$91.6 million since its acquisition in May 2014. An important focus for
the Group in 2015 will be to leverage Samsonite’s global sourcing, logistics
and distribution platform to achieve efficiency gains and margin expansion
for Speck.

In terms of product categories, we continued to make good progress in the
travel business, while at the same time growing our non-travel business. Net
sales in the travel category, our traditional area of strength, grew by 10.9%
excluding foreign currency effects, delivering US$138.6 million, or 44.3%, of
the Group’s total increase in net sales in 2014. The share of travel has reduced
from 74.4% of total net sales in 2013 to 70.4% in 2014, while that of non-
travel has grown from 25.6% to 29.6 %, demonstrating the progress we have
made to diversify our brand and product portfolio. With the continued
development of our non-travel brands, the aim is to increase the share of
non-travel business up to 50% of total sales in the medium term.

As for distribution, 2014 saw Samsonite pushing for a more balanced channel
mix. Historically, we have sold our products primarily through wholesale
distribution channels such as department stores. However, two recent
developments have prompted the Group to take a fresh look at alternative
channels. The first development has been the increasing number of consumers
migrating to online purchases, a trend that has disrupted traditional distribution
channels but offers the opportunity to strengthen our engagement with
consumers. The Group’s e-commerce sales, which includes both direct-to-
consumer internet sales and wholesale sales to e-tailers, grew by 37.5% in
2014, whereas overall net sales in the wholesale and retail channels increased
by 17.2% and 18.3%, respectively, excluding foreign currency effects. The
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second development has been more internal: with the Group now owning a
portfolio of diverse brands covering both travel and non-travel product
categories and spanning a wide range of price points, it has become possible
for us to consider opening multi-brand bag and luggage specialty stores. In
2014, the Group opened five of such stores under the name J.S. Trunk & Co.
around the world, and the initial feedback from customers has been
encouragingly positive. Moreover, the Rolling Luggage acquisition, which
closed in February 2015, further enables us to strengthen our global retail
presence by gaining a share in the large and growing travel retail market with
a leading airport retailer. These brick-and-mortar initiatives are being integrated
with our online efforts to create an omni-channel presence to more effectively
engage consumers, increase visibility for our products and drive sales. Indeed,
we believe that this omni-channel model has the potential to grow the
proportion of retail sales (including direct-to-consumer internet sales) from
20.2% of our net sales in 2014 to perhaps as much as 50% over the medium
term, with positive implications for the Group’s margins.

Alongside our strategy to diversify our brands, categories and channels, we
continued with our approach to consistently invest in our brands around the
world. To that end, the Group spent US$144.7 million on marketing during
the year, up 12.0% from 2013. In percentage of sales terms, the spend was
down slightly, from 6.3% to 6.2%, but this is largely explained by sales growing
faster than planned marketing spend because of the three acquisitions we
made during the year. We also continued to be more efficient in our allocation
of marketing resources. Excluding the impact of the acquisitions, our marketing
spend remained consistent with the previous year at 6.3% of net sales.

It is perhaps our strategic emphasis on “glocalisation” that has most significantly
contributed to the Group’s track record of delivering solid and consistent
growth. The Group’s decentralized management structure empowers the
people across our regions and individual markets to react swiftly and effectively
to local opportunities and challenges, while ensuring that our products
consistently offer the highest quality that our consumers around the world
expect. At the same time, we have also taken great care to balance the efforts
to localize operations with ensuring we leverage our global scale to achieve
economies and efficiencies.

Excluding foreign currency effects, all four of the Group’s trading regions
recorded double-digit constant currency net sales growth in 2014. Considering
the macroeconomic headwinds in many markets, such as weaker currencies
in Europe, Japan and Latin America, this is a very satisfactory performance.
Overall, reported USD net sales grew by 15.4% whereas constant currency
net sales increased by 17.3%.

Asia, our largest region, achieved an 18.0% net sales increase in 2014,
excluding currency effects. Reported USD net sales increased by 16.1% to
US$892.3 million. After a challenging 2013 when sales increased by 5.3%,
China staged a strong comeback in 2014 with sales increasing by 18.7%
excluding foreign currency effects. South Korea and India continued to
experience robust sales growth, with net sales increasing by 12.8% and 19.9%,
respectively. On the back of the Gregory acquisition, Japan experienced strong
constant currency growth of 32.3%. Excluding net sales attributable to
Gregory, net sales in Japan increased by 24.5% on a constant currency basis.

| Samsonite International S.A. Annual Report 2014

183% ° E_IHBIBAIEEBL  AEEB A
BEZ T LRIEAEE  BERERIERIEER R
WESETEEN  HEMATZERRZRERE
BEEE ° R20145F - REB LS. Trunk & Co.
HAENERERTBBERER  BEISRE
EE - S ASE o 1o A2015F2 B RIS
Rolling Luggage ' BAKEF AL BEKISZE
R A REANRESENS » tmE—=
EXMANERTET S o WEEEIEHTE
HEMRNBREOA LERZES  EREANE
BEE UFBREBEES  ENEREXE
WHEHEE - TE L ZMHBEREAREER
RABENENSEHE (BEEEEOHES
MEBRAHEE) FEHEFENLE - RPHR
AT 2014 FAGSHEFE020.2% I E £/ %50%
AREEFHETREETE

BRETBRERE  ERENRDHRENRE
I BPBEEERREERENREKMANRE - B
It AEERERNDHI44TEEETETLH
SEB)  B2013F R 12.0% © HIGHEHEF DL
s BEEFRXA63%EMTHRE2%  £2
HRERFARFERET=BRESE  SHEER
BRTEIE RS AR - RMTEERSHE
EHERNME - MIRKBESENTE &M
SRR EFEE6.3% » EEAE—F o

BIMW [ 2HEM | REEH AT EE—E
LURBRIFENERELEAER - ASEE
ATHERRERZHERER TS ABER
REMEHEARB RS - BEREEAEMN
ER—EARESRE  MERHHEBEENY
£ o EEER - HAFE D FESEEE LY
BE  BREMZIFAZHRBENEDEHL
B o

WRREAZE  AEEEHNEE S EENEE
ERHEFEN2014FHREEVHTER - Z
BEFZHESNRBLETE  B8EEN - BA
RIUTENERRS  REBESARES - B8
5 UETHRHEFEER154% @ ME
EEMHEEFHAEBRI73% °

MEBREEE  RANRAMEINN2014E 8
BIHEFREILR18.0% ° UETHIRMNBEFE
BR16.1%E8023BEXET - FEIER mkE
H2013E S SR R5.3% » HER201458
PR MBRERSE  HEEER187% -/
BROSHERSEDHERER  HEFED
Bl # R£12.8% % 19.9% o = U B8 Gregory fit %
B ARG EEEEME32.3% WaSIER o MR
Gregory E{R S5 348 REICEBEE AKX
SHEFERR24.5% o



2014 was a great year for our business in North America. Organically, our
business benefited from strong new product introductions, reflecting the
strength of our business model which gives the local team freedom to tailor
products closely to the requirements of major retail partners and consumers.
Sales increased by 22.9% on a constant currency basis. Excluding the impact
of the acquisitions of Speck Products and Gregory, the increase was still an
impressive 7.3% in what is a mature and well-penetrated market. Although
it is too early to assess the performance of Speck Products and Gregory, the
integration of both businesses is substantially complete and plans are well
advanced to expand their respective product ranges and distribution. Overall,
reported USD net sales grew by 22.4% to US$761.3 million in 2014.

The Group also did well in Europe despite generally lackluster economic
conditions, with constant currency net sales up by 10.4%, and by 9.3%
excluding the impact of the Lipault and Gregory acquisitions. Reported US
Dollar net sales increased by 8.3% to US$557.9 million in 2014. We are pleased
with the performance in Germany, our number one market in the region,
where turnover increased by 10.6% on a constant currency basis. The United
Kingdom also did well, with sales up 12.2% excluding foreign currency effects.
On the back of a recovery in consumer sentiment and the successful introduction
of American Tourister, Italy and Spain posted constant currency net sales
growth of 12.3% and 11.3%, respectively. Conditions were more challenging
in France, where our organic business grew by 5.2%, while overall growth
was 13.2% including the contribution from the Lipault brand which we
acquired in April 2014. The Group’s business in Russia was negatively impacted
by the economic downturn and devaluation of the Russian Ruble, but still
managed to generate constant currency revenue growth of 5.7%. Constant
currency net sales in Turkey and South Africa grew by 34.9% and 25.5%,
respectively, as we continued to penetrate these emerging markets.

It was a mixed year for the Group in Latin America. Our main markets of Chile
and Mexico both recorded steady constant currency growth of 8.1% and
16.3%, respectively, in 2014. The shift from a distributor model to a direct
import and sales structure in Brazil yielded promising results with net sales
increasing by 105.0% on a constant currency basis. Similarly, the move to
establish our own sales subsidiaries in Colombia, Peru and Panama also showed
positive returns, with sales in these three markets combined increasing by
approximately 61.7% on a constant currency basis. Our business in Argentina,
however, continued to suffer from the government’s import restrictions.
Excluding net sales attributable to Argentina, Latin America’s net sales increased
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by 20.0% on a constant currency basis. Excluding foreign currency effects,
net sales for the region increased by 15.7%. These positive gains were offset
by currency headwinds with the US Dollar reported net sales for the region
increasing by 5.7% to US$130.6 million.

Looking ahead into 2015, there is no sign of any slowdown in the global
growth of travel and tourism, especially in developing markets, which bodes
well for our business. Although to be sure, trading conditions across the regions
remain a mixed bag, Samsonite is not a company that passively waits for market
conditions to improve. Rather, we continually and proactively strategize on
how the Group can gain share even when a market may not be growing.

In 2015, our primary focus in North America is to complete the integration of
Speck Products and Gregory, and in particular, on improving the operational
efficiencies, and hence the profitability, of the former. In the capable hands of
Tom Korbas, President, North America and with the region’s economy widely
expected to continue improving, we aim to maintain steady growth in what
is probably our most mature and well-penetrated market. Similarly, Asia by
and large continues to offer good prospects for steady long term growth.
China, in particular, remains probably our biggest long term growth story. To
give the market the attention it deserves, Frank Ma, Vice President of Samsonite
China, was promoted to the role of President, Greater China in January 2015.
With the efforts of Frank, together with Leo Suh, promoted to President, Asia
Pacific and Middle East in March 2014, and their teams, Asia is targeted to
deliver steady growth on the back of American Tourister and Samsonite Red,
and with the rollout of High Sierra, Gregory and Hartmann across the region.
With currency headwinds gaining strength, the European market is off to a
somewhat uncertain start. However, in light of the positive consumer reception
of American Tourister in Italy and Spain, Fabio Rugarli, President, Europe, and
his team are hopeful that a planned region-wide rollout of the brand will
enable us to maintain growth momentum. As for Latin America, despite the
turbulence in the region’s currencies, we remain confident in the market's
superb long term growth potential. Roberto Guzman, who successfully built
our Chilean business when he was General Manager of that country, was
promoted to the role of President, Latin America in May 2014 to drive the
Group’s growth in the region.

With materials accounting for a majority of our input costs, the decline in
crude oil prices is expected to have a positive impact on our margins, though
it will be some months before such savings materialize. Moreover, efficiencies
achieved within the Group’s newly acquired brands through leveraging our
sourcing, distribution and logistics platform and economies of scale will also
help. These factors should help mitigate the anticipated margin pressure
due to currency headwinds in Asia, Europe and Latin America, helping the
Group to maintain margins in 2015. Over the medium term, our margins
should benefit from our sales mix gradually shifting to more direct-to-
consumer channels.

In 2015, the Group is planning to significantly increase its investment in
marketing to support our brands and growth initiatives around the world,
particularly to drive the growth of American Tourister in Europe and Asia, to
further extend the reach of Samsonite Red in Asia and to support the global
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expansion of our acquired brands. Social media and online marketing are
assuming an increasingly important role in our overall marketing initiatives as
we seek to more effectively engage with a new generation of consumers.

Capital expenditure in 2014 was US$69.6 million compared with US$57.2
million the year before, with the main reasons for the year-on-year increase
being the construction of an additional warehouse in Belgium, the expansion
of our plant in Hungary and further investment in new retail stores globally.
Capital expenditure in 2015 is budgeted to further increase to about US$81.6
million, in order to support a more aggressive expansion of both our offline
and our online retail operations, as well as investment in additional store
openings in North America, Asia and Europe to support the global Hartmann
rollout. In 2015, the Group will also continue to invest in growing our Latin
American business, as well as in building a new warehouse in China.

2015 will see the Group continue on its clear and defined strategy of future
growth, following much the same direction as was established under our
Chairman Tim Parker’s visionary leadership of the preceding five years.
Specifically, our aim for the coming year is to invest more aggressively, both
in terms of management resources as well as marketing dollars, in new brands,
new channels and new markets, with a view to turning these into significant
contributors to Samsonite’s growth over the next three to five years. Although
relatively small in scale, the Rolling Luggage acquisition which we just
completed in February 2015 offers good long term growth potential. The bag
and luggage space is highly fragmented and offers many more interesting
prospects, and | will be working closely with our CFO Kyle Gendreau and his
team to evaluate and act on acquisition opportunities that have a compelling
strategic fit, leveraging Samsonite’s strong management team and balance
sheet capacity. With the continued guidance of Tim and the Board, and with
Leo, Frank, Roberto, as well as General Counsel John Livingston, joining the
senior management team, | have full confidence in our combined leadership
to deliver another good year in 2015.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all of our people in our offices
around the world, as well as our global suppliers and business partners, for
making possible the great set of results the Group achieved in 2014, and with
whom [ look forward to continuing on our exciting journey as we work together
to achieve our goals.

. |
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Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala
Chief Executive Officer
March 17, 2015
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Today, we have a more
balanced business, built around a portfolio of
diverse yet complementary brands.

SREMFEE—ERS T EXERBENREHES
CHMHMEBRANE

At the time of Samsonite’s listing in 2011, our business
was primarily centered on the Samsonite brand, focused largely
on travel luggage, and distributed principally through
the wholesale channel. Over the past few years,
we have strategically diversified our business in order not to be
overly reliant on any single brand, market, channel of distribution,
or product category, and in line with our goal of not just building a
bigger business, but a stronger one as well. Today,
we have a more balanced business, built around a portfolio of
diverse yet complementary brands and offering our
customers a competitive mix of products sold through multiple
distribution channels, which considerably strengthens the Group’s
resilience and which will contribute to our sustained
growth over coming years.
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Samsonite International S.A. (the “Company”), together with its consolidated
subsidiaries (the “Group”), is the world’s largest travel luggage company, with
a heritage dating back more than 100 years. The Group is principally engaged
in the design, manufacture, sourcing and distribution of luggage, business
and computer bags, outdoor and casual bags, travel accessories and slim
protective cases for personal electronic devices throughout the world, primarily
under the Samsonite®, American Tourister®, Hartmann®, High Sierra®, Gregory®,
Speck® and Lipault® brand names as well as other owned and licensed brand
names. The Group’s core brand, Samsonite, is one of the most well-known
travel luggage brands in the world.

The Group sells its products through a variety of wholesale distribution
channels, through its company operated retail stores and through e-commerce.
Its principal wholesale distribution customers are department and specialty
retail stores, mass merchants, catalog showrooms and warehouse clubs. The
Group sells its products in Asia, North America, Europe and Latin America. As
of December 31, 2014, the Group’s products were sold at over 49,000 points
of sale in over 100 countries.

Management discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the
Group's audited financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

Net Sales

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by region for the years
ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, both in absolute terms
and as a percentage of total net sales.
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Global expansion

well underway

with flagship stores
opened in New York
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fourth quarter of 2014,
as well as points of
salesin London, Paris,
Moscow, Beijing,
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Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales increased by 17.3%. US Dollar
reported net sales increased by US$312.9 million, or 15.4%, to US$2,350.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2014 from US$2,037.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2013.

Brands

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by brand for the years
ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, both in absolute terms
and as a percentage of total net sales.
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Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales of the Samsonite brand increased
by 10.2% for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the previous
year. US Dollar reported net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by
US$122.0 million, or 8.6%. Samsonite comprised 65.3% of the net sales of
the Group during 2014 compared to 69.4% in 2013 reflecting continued
diversification of the Group’s brand portfolio. Excluding foreign currency
effects, net sales of the American Tourister brand increased by 19.0% for the
year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the previous year. US Dollar
reported net sales of the American Tourister brand increased by US$74.9
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million, or 17.4%. Asia accounted for US$53.6 million, or 71.5%, of the
US$74.9 million increase in American Tourister brand sales for the year ended
December 31, 2014 compared to the previous year. The increases in the net
sales of both brands were attributable to expanded product offerings and
further penetration of existing markets, which were all supported by the
Group's targeted advertising activities. On a constant currency basis, net sales
of the High Sierra and Hartmann brands increased by 24.9% and 10.3%,
respectively. Net sales of the Speck brand, which was acquired on May 28,
2014, amounted to US$91.6 million. Net sales of the Lipault brand, which
was acquired on April 1, 2014, amounted to US$5.5 million. Net sales of the
Gregory brand, which was acquired on July 23, 2014, amounted to US$12.6
million. Excluding amounts attributable to the 2014 acquisitions, net sales
increased by US$203.2 million, or 10.0%, and by 11.9% on a constant
currency basis.

Product Categories

The Group sells products in four principal product categories: travel, business,
casual and accessories. The travel category is the Group’s largest category and
has been its traditional strength. The following table sets forth a breakdown
of net sales by product category for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total
net sales.
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Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the travel product category
increased by 10.9% for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2013. US Dollar reported net sales in the travel
product category increased by US$138.6 million, or 9.1%. Country-specific
product designs, locally relevant marketing strategies and expanded points of
sale, including e-commerce, continue to be the key factors contributing to the
Group’s success in the travel category. Excluding foreign currency effects, net
sales in the casual product category increased by 25.1%. US Dollar reported
net sales in the casual product category increased by US$46.2 million, or
22.4%. This increase was primarily attributable to the success of the High
Sierra brand and the Samsonite Red sub-brand as well as the contribution
from the Gregory brand, which was acquired in July 2014. Excluding foreign
currency effects, net sales in the business product category increased by 34.6%.
US Dollar reported net sales in the business product category increased by
US$62.8 million, or 32.4%, due primarily to US$43.6 million in net sales of
tablet and laptop cases attributable to the acquisition of Speck Products as
well as new product introductions. On a constant currency basis, net sales in
the accessories category increased by 76.3% largely due to US$48.0 million
in net sales of protective phone cases attributable to the acquisition of
Speck Products.

Distribution Channels

The Group sells products through two primary distribution channels: wholesale
and retail. The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by distribution
channel for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total net sales.
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SHEFE SHEFH Aot B R 8
FEn BALE FEx BotE % increase % increase (decrease)
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The Group expanded its points of sale by approximately 3,600 during the year
to over 49,000 points of sale worldwide as of December 31, 2014.

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the wholesale channel increased
by 17.2% for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2013. US Dollar reported net sales in the wholesale channel
increased by US$252.0 million, or 15.6%. Excluding foreign currency effects,
net sales in the retail channel increased by 18.3%. US Dollar reported net sales
in the retail channel increased by US$60.7 million, or 14.7%. On a same store,
constant currency basis, net sales in the retail channel increased by 7.9%. The
Group's same store analysis includes existing retail stores which have been
open for at least 12 months before the end of the relevant financial period.
During the year ended December 31, 2014, approximately US$155.3 million,
or 6.6%, of the Group’s net sales were derived from its direct-to-consumer
e-commerce business, which is included within the retail channel, and net
sales to e-tailers, which are included within the wholesale channel. The direct-
to-consumer e-commerce business and net sales to e-tailers comprised 5.6 %
of the Group’s net sales for the year ended December 31, 2013.
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Excluding foreign currency effects, the Group's net sales in Asia increased by
18.0% for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2013. US Dollar reported net sales for the region increased by
US$123.9 million, or 16.1%. Excluding net sales attributable to the Gregory
brand in Asia, which was acquired on July 23, 2014, net sales increased by
17.0% on a constant currency basis.

The American Tourister brand accounted for US$53.6 million, or 43.2%, of
the increase in net sales for the Asia region for the year ended December 31,
2014 compared to the previous year. Excluding foreign currency effects, net
sales of the American Tourister brand in the Asia region increased by 17.5%.
Net sales of the Samsonite brand continued to grow in Asia, increasing by
15.4% from the previous year on a constant currency basis due to the success
of the Samsonite Red sub-brand, whose net sales increased by 91.9% on a
constant currency basis to US$57.9 million in 2014. Excluding the Samsonite
Red sub-brand, net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by 9.6% on a
constant currency basis. Net sales of the High Sierra brand amounted to
US$11.7 million in Asia during the year ended December 31, 2014, an increase
of 119.3% from the previous year on a constant currency basis. The
development of High Sierra branded products specifically designed for the
preferences of consumers in the region is well underway. The Group introduced
the Hartmann brand in Asia during 2014, which contributed US$1.2 million
of the net sales growth year-on-year. Net sales of the Gregory brand amounted
to US$7.2 million from the date of acquisition.

Net sales in the travel product category increased by US$66.9 million, or
11.7%, and by 13.7% excluding foreign currency effects for the year ended
December 31, 2014 compared to the previous year. Net sales in the casual
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product category increased by US$42.4 million, or 61.7%, and by 63.7% on
a constant currency basis year-on-year, driven largely by the success of the
Samsonite Red sub-brand, as well as the High Sierra brand and the acquisition
of Gregory. Net sales in the business product category increased by US$8.7
million, or 8.7%, and by 10.0% excluding foreign currency effects compared
to the previous year. Net sales in the accessories product category increased
by US$4.3 million, or 20.4%, and by 21.5% on a constant currency basis
compared to the previous year.

Net sales in the wholesale channel increased by US$105.3 million, or 16.3%,
for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the previous year, and
by 18.1% excluding foreign currency effects. Net sales in the retail channel
increased by US$18.6 million, or 15.4%, and by 17.7% on a constant currency
basis year-on-year. On a same store, constant currency basis, net sales in the
retail channel increased by 7.8%. Over 300 points of sale were added in Asia
during 2014, including 41 net new company-operated retail locations, for a
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total of more than 7,200 points of sale in Asia as of December 31, 2014.
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Along with additional product offerings and points of sale expansion, the
success of the Group’s business in the Asia region has been bolstered by its
continued focus on country-specific products and marketing strategies to drive
increased awareness of and demand for the Group’s products. On a constant
currency basis, net sales increased in all countries in the Asian region except
for Malaysia, which decreased slightly by 0.5%, for the year ended December
31, 2014 compared to the previous year. Net sales in China increased by
18.7%, excluding foreign currency effects, driven by American Tourister,
Samsonite and Samsonite Red. South Korea continued to experience robust
sales growth, with an increase of 12.8% on a constant currency basis, driven
by the success of the American Tourister brand and the Samsonite Red sub-
brand. On a constant currency basis, net sales in India increased by 19.9% for
the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the previous year driven by
the American Tourister brand. Japan experienced strong constant currency
growth of 32.3% year-on-year driven by increased sales of the Samsonite
brand and the acquisition of Gregory. Excluding net sales attributable to the
Gregory brand, net sales in Japan increased by 24.5% on a constant currency
basis. Net sales in Hong Kong increased by 12.2% year-on-year led by growth
of Samsonite Red and the acquisition of Gregory, despite the negative impact
from the political protests during the fourth quarter.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the Asia region
by geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total
regional net sales.
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FEx AL FEx B % increase % increase (decrease)
US$'000 % of net sales US$'000 % of net sales (decrease) exdl. foreign currency effects
Net sales by geographic
location®:
R B E D WIS FED
China #Eq 227,454 192,187 25.0% 18.4% 18.7%
South Korea Fg#& 189,502 161,182 21.0% 17.6% 12.8%
India ENE 126,653 110,526 14.4% 14.6% 19.9%
Japan BZ&R 77,855 64,172 8.4% 21.3% 32.3%
Hong Kong & & @ 74,899 66,765 8.7% 12.2% 12.2%
Australia B 48,613 42,666 5.5% 13.9% 21.2%
Other EAth 147,282 130,865 17.0% 12.5% 16.8%
Net sales $HE& 558 892,258 768,363 100.0% 16.1% 18.0%
Notes HfiE

T The geographic location of the Group’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the

country in which its end consumers were actually located.
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Excluding foreign currency effects, the Group’s net sales in North America
increased by 22.9% for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2013. US Dollar reported net sales for the North
American region increased by US$139.6 million, or 22.4%. Excluding net sales
attributable to the Speck and Gregory brands, which were acquired during
2014, net sales increased by US$42.7 million, or 6.9%, and by 7.3% on a
constant currency basis.

Net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by US$39.2 million, or 8.5%, and
by 9.0% on a constant currency basis. Net sales of the American Tourister
brand increased by US$4.4 million, or 6.9%, and by 7.5% on a constant
currency basis for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2013. Net sales of the High Sierra brand increased by
US$7.8 million, or 12.0%, and by 12.2% on a constant currency basis. Net
sales of the Hartmann brand were relatively consistent year-on-year. The Speck
and Gregory brands contributed US$91.6 million and US$5.3 million,
respectively, in net sales during the year.

Net sales in the travel product category increased by US$41.9 million, or 8.8%,
and by 9.3% on a constant currency basis year-on-year. Net sales in the casual
product category increased by US$4.5 million, or 5.1%, and by 5.3% excluding
foreign currency effects. Net sales in the business product category increased
by US$44.0 million, or 106.2%, and by 106.6% on a constant currency basis
for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the previous year primarily
due to US$43.6 million in net sales of protective laptop and tablet cases
attributable to the acquisition of Speck Products in May 2014. Net sales in the
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accessories category increased by US$49.0 million, or 281.2%, and by 281.8%
on a constant currency basis primarily due to US$48.0 million in net sales of
protective phone cases attributable to the acquisition of Speck Products.

Net sales in the wholesale channel increased by US$121.4 million, or 24.8%,
and by 25.3% excluding foreign currency effects for the year ended December
31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013. Excluding
acquisitions, net sales in the wholesale channel increased by US$29.3 million,
or 6.0%. Net sales in the retail channel increased by US$18.2 million, or 13.8%,
and by 14.1% on a constant currency basis year-on-year. Net sales growth in
the retail channel was driven by sales made through the Group’s direct-to-
consumer e-commerce website, which increased by 33.8% year-on-year, as
well as by the addition of eight net new stores opened since December 31,
2013. On a same store, constant currency basis, net sales in the retail channel
increased by 6.0%.

The overall increase in North America net sales was primarily due to acquisitions,
as well as the Group’s continued focus on marketing and selling regionally
developed products, which enabled the Group to bring to market products
that are designed to appeal to the tastes and preferences of North American
consumers, resulting in strong consumer demand for the Group’s products.
Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in Canada increased by 35.0%
primarily due to strong sales of the travel product category through the
wholesale channel.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the North
America region by geographic location for the years ended December 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013, both in absolute terms and as a percentage
of total regional net sales.
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Net sales by geographic
location®:
R B E D WHEFED
United States 3<E] 720,737 589,618 94.8% 22.2% 22.2%
Canadafin&x 40,573 32,123 5.2% 26.3% 35.0%
Net sales $5& 25 761,310 621,741 100.0% 22.4% 22.9%
Note HKfzE

T The geographic location of the Group’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the

country in which its end consumers were actually located.
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Excluding foreign currency effects, the Group’s net sales in Europe increased
by 10.4% for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2013. US Dollar reported net sales for the region increased by
US$42.8 million, or 8.3%. Excluding net sales attributable to the Lipault and
Gregory brands, which were acquired during 2014, net sales increased by
9.3% on a constant currency basis.

Local currency sales growth was strong in several markets due to the positive
sell-through of new product introductions, including new product lines
manufactured using Curv material and other lines of polypropylene suitcases,
as demand for hardside luggage continued to grow in the European region.
Germany, the Group’s leading market in Europe representing 14.7% of total
net sales in the region, achieved 10.6% constant currency sales growth during
the period. The United Kingdom and France posted strong constant currency
net sales growth of 12.2% and 13.2%, respectively, over the previous year.
Excluding net sales attributable to Lipault, net sales in France increased by
5.2% on a constant currency basis. The Group’s business in Italy and Spain
continued to show signs of economic improvement with constant currency
net sales growth of 12.3% and 11.3%, respectively. The Group continued to
penetrate the emerging markets of Turkey and South Africa with year-on-year
constant currency net sales growth of 34.9% and 25.5%, respectively. The
Group’s business in Russia was negatively impacted by the economic downturn
and devaluation of the Russian Ruble, but still generated constant currency
net sales growth of 5.7% year-on-year.

Net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by US$20.2 million, or 4.2%, and
by 6.0% excluding foreign currency effects for the year ended December 31,
2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013. Net sales of the
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A French luggage brand whose
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A chic and youthful brand with
a strong appeal to fashionable,
female consumers through its
signature Parisian style and
vibrant colors
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American Tourister brand increased by US$13.8 million, or 49.1%, and by
54.8% on a constant currency basis. American Tourister comprised 7.5% of
the net sales in the European region during 2014 compared to 5.4% during
the previous year as the Group is focused on driving growth and increasing
the presence of the brand in Europe. Net sales of the Lipault brand amounted
to US$5.4 million from the date of acquisition. The Group introduced the High
Sierra and Hartmann brands in Europe during 2014, which contributed US$1.9
million and US$0.5 million, respectively, of the net sales growth year-on-year.

Net sales in the travel product category increased by US$24.9 million, or 6.0%,
and by 7.8% on a constant currency basis year-on-year. Excluding foreign
currency effects, net sales in the casual product category increased by 6.6%
year-on-year. Net sales in the business product category increased by US$11.7
million, or 30.3%, and by 34.9% on a constant currency basis for the period
due to the success of new product introductions.

Net sales in the wholesale channel increased by US$21.0 million, or 5.4%, for
the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the previous year, and by
6.4% excluding foreign currency effects. Net sales in the retail channel
increased by US$21.2 million, or 17.0%, and by 22.3% on a constant currency
basis, over the same period driven by the addition of 25 net new stores opened
since December 31, 2013. On a same store, constant currency basis, net sales
in the retail channel increased by 8.8%.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the European
region by geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total
regional net sales.

TTH49.1% @ REEEHELEILRS4.8% AR
REBEE R HEE) American Tourister ABIM iy 3
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ABN - MERED B AEEFHRFIERER
19HEBETROSEEET °
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BAFEM2I 0FERTRC.4% @ MIRE R 2
#IN6.4% o ZE2013512 A31 B URFLR25
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BENANNALEE
Year ended December 31,

2014F 82013 F LR
2014 2013 2014 vs 2013
&0 Orid) BREE 557880
HERE HETE Pl 2 i) Bt
F=T BAK SEEm Ao % increase % increase (decrease)
US$'000 % of net sales US$'000 % of net sales (decrease)  excl. foreign currency effects
Net sales by geographic
location™:
BB S D HHEFR
Germany {£E] 81,847 74,333 14.4% 10.1% 10.6%
France J£E 75,473 67,005 13.0% 12.6% 13.2%
Belgium EbFBF @ 65,239 60,330 11.7% 8.1% 8.0%
Italy ZAF 60,799 54,079 10.5% 12.4% 12.3%
United Kingdom 2] 45,684 38,705 7.5% 18.0% 12.2%
Spain FaBEF 44,812 40,286 7.8% 11.2% 11.3%
Russia flkZ&Hr 40,037 44,679 8.7% (10.4)% 5.7%
Other HAth 144,043 135,760 26.4% 6.1% 9.9%
Net sales $HEEH %R 557,934 515,177 100.0% 8.3% 10.4%
Notes ff&E

T The geographic location of the Group’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the

country in which its end consumers were actually located.
AEEEEFENEFVESHRREEERNER - Y F—ERHLIHEEEERFENER

2 Net sales in Belgium were US$21.7 million and US$21.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
Remaining sales consisted of direct shipments to distributors, customers and agents in other countries.
BZE2014F12A31BR2013F 1231 BILFE @ EHRIFNHEFEI A2 7EBEIR216BBER - BTHHERERRE FTHABIRNS #E - FFRAEY -
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Strategically extends
Samsonite’s brand
portfolio into the
casual, outdoor and
sports markets
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LATIN

AMERICA

# T 5=

Excluding foreign currency effects, the Group’s net sales in Latin America
increased by 15.7% for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2013. US Dollar reported net sales for the region
increased by US$7.0 million, or 5.7%.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, net sales in Chile improved by 8.1%
year-on-year excluding foreign currency effects. US Dollar reported net sales
for Chile decreased by US$3.7 million, or 5.9%, as reported results were
negatively impacted by foreign exchange rates. The constant currency net sales
growth in Chile was primarily due to the recently launched women’s handbag
brand Secret. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in Mexico increased
by 16.3% driven by the Samsonite and High Sierra brands. Net sales made in
Brazil increased by 105.0% on a constant currency basis, mainly due to the
direct import and sales model implemented in the second half of 2013. Net
sales for the “Other” geographic location below includes sales made in
Colombia, Panama and Peru, where the Group implemented a direct import
and sales model during the second half of 2013. Net sales in these three
markets increased by approximately 61.7% on a constant currency basis in
2014. Net sales in Argentina continued to be negatively impacted by import
restrictions imposed by the local government. Excluding net sales attributable
to Argentina, net sales for the Latin American region increased by 10.2%, or
20.0% excluding foreign currency effects.

Net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by US$6.0 million, or 11.0%, and
by 17.5% excluding foreign currency effects. Net sales of the American
Tourister brand increased by US$3.1 million, or 57.5%, and by 63.0% excluding
foreign currency effects. Net sales of the High Sierra brand in Latin America

us
Net Sales _Growth 2 70 %_jég;
- Samsonite g;é?;';; o
HETERE — ¥E 72 15.7%
1 US$m) £t (F8)
217.5% -
......... $ -I 23 6 s 1 30'6
Net Sales Growth 120 — : b
— American Tourister
HEFHER —
American Tourister 90 —
1
z 63 n 0 o/o
60 —
Net Sales Growth
- High Sierra 30 —
SEEFEILR — High Sierra
1
z ] 2 7- 8 o/o 0
Note Mzt

T Excluding foreign currency effects. fBRE %5
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during 2014 were US$2.5 million, an increase of 118.0%, or 127.8% excluding
foreign currency effects. The High Sierra brand was introduced in the region
during 2013. Sales of women’s handbags under the Secret brand name
continued to grow with net sales of US$13.6 million in 2014, an increase of
US$4.3 million, or 46.3%, and by 43.1% excluding foreign currency effects,
from the previous year.

Net sales in the travel product category increased by US$4.9 million, or 8.8%,
and by 17.4% excluding foreign currency effects. Net sales in the casual
product category decreased by US$1.3 million, or 3.8%, and increased by
6.5% on a constant currency basis. Net sales in the business product category
decreased by US$1.6 million, or 11.4%, and by 3.7% excluding foreign
currency effects.

Net sales in the wholesale channel increased by US$4.3 million, or 4.9%, for
the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December
31, 2013, and by 13.2% excluding foreign currency effects. Net sales in the
retail channel increased by US$2.7 million, or 7.5%, and by 21.6% on a
constant currency basis over the same period as the Group opened 11 net
new company-operated retail locations during the year. On a same store,
constant currency basis, net sales in the retail channel increased by 11.7%.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the Latin America
region by geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total
regional net sales.

ENMBEEFHEREEEZT BE
118.0% » HMBREE 55/ EHE R 127.8% ° High Sierra
RIER2013FEEBEARME o Secret ML L FHK
MSEHENE » R2014FHHEFES1368
BER  BAFEMAIEEETN6.3% @ Mk
ERSEINRAI31% -

MEERERNHEFTELRIBEEELY
8.8% -+ MPRIE R EER 17.4% © REERER
HEFERD13EBEH3.8%  RETER
BEAEAHEM65% - MEERBEIHEFERND
16ABERTH1.4% MWBRERFERHD3.7%

BEEZ2013F 12831 B ILFEMRL - BZE2014
F12A31 A L FEH B REHEFHENIIT
ETR4.9%  MBRE HHEIEMN13.2% ° AR
FRAAEEBRIEBENHETEY  HEER
BHEFEBRLAFRPBER2/IEBEERY
7.5% @ REEEMEERR21.6% © RAEE/EH
BEEEBEE TEREHEFHEERIT%

TREHEZ2014F12831BK2013F 12831
BIEtFEREMBS SN T EMNEHEEF
R UBEHERGHENEFEAEE S
S8R o

BZE12A3VALEE
Year ended December 31,

2014F 22013 F L&

2014 2013 2014 vs 2013

B Ofd) THERE 5 S/ &M

SHERE SHEFH Aot B Od) Bott

FEn B FEx BotE % increase % increase (decrease)
US$'000 % of net sales US$'000 % of net sales (decrease) exdl. foreign currency effects

Net sales by geographic
location:
RV BRI D HHE TR

Chile &% 58,898 45.1% 62,577 50.6% (5.9)% 8.1%
Mexico 22755 39,830 30.5% 35,475 28.7% 12.3% 16.3%
Brazil BF @ 18,925 14.5% 9,762 7.9% 93.9% 105.0%
Argentina PR & 1,784 1.4% 6,704 5.4% (73.4)% (60.1)%
Other Efth ® 11,169 8.5% 9,062 7.4% 23.2% 25.6%
Net sales $H%E# %R 130,606  100.0% 123,580 100.0% 5.7% 15.7%

Notes Ffz

T The geographic location of the Group’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the

country in which its end consumers were actually located.
FEEHEEFENBAVEIMARREEERNER - X —EAKIREEEERMENER

2 The net sales figure for Brazil includes both net sales made by the Group inside the country and certain export sales made by the Group to Brazil.

BANHEFERTEEFAKERENELHEFERARERBAFELNE T HOHESE

3 The net sales figure for the “Other” geographic location includes sales made in Colombia, Panama, Peru and through the Group’s distribution

center in Uruguay.
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Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

Cost of sales increased by US$157.4 million, or 16.6%, to US$1,106.9 million
(representing 47.1% of net sales) for the year ended December 31, 2014 from
US$949.5 million (representing 46.6% of net sales) for the year ended
December 31, 2013. The slight increase in cost of sales as a percentage of
net sales was primarily due to the increased contribution from the Group’s
business in North America, which typically yields a lower margin percentage,
to the consolidated results driven by the acquisition of Speck Products, as well
as a decrease in gross profit margin in Latin America related to the transition
to a direct sales model in Brazil. The impacts from North America and Latin
America were marginally offset by the higher gross margin percentages in Asia
and Europe.

Gross profit increased by US$155.5 million, or 14.3%, to US$1,243.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2014 from US$1,088.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2013. Gross profit margin decreased from 53.4% for
the year ended December 31, 2013 to 52.9% for the year ended December
31, 2014. This decrease was attributable to the factors noted above.

Distribution Expenses

Distribution expenses increased by US$85.7 million, or 15.9%, to US$626.3
million (representing 26.6% of net sales) for the year ended December 31,
2014 from US$540.6 million (representing 26.5% of net sales) for the year
ended December 31, 2013. This increase, which was reflected in additional
freight to customers, commissions, rent and increased personnel expenses,
was primarily due to the increase in sales volume in 2014. Distribution expenses
as a percentage of net sales remained relatively consistent year-on-year.

Marketing Expenses

The Group spent US$144.7 million (representing 6.2% of net sales) on
marketing during the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to US$129.2
million (representing 6.3% of net sales) for the year ended December 31,
2013, an increase of US$15.5 million, or 12.0%. Marketing expenses as a
percentage of net sales decreased slightly due to the impact of higher sales
from acquisitions as well as strong sales growth and some efficiencies in
advertising spend. Excluding the acquisitions completed in 2014, marketing
expenses as a percentage of net sales remained consistent with the previous
year at 6.3%. During 2014, the Group continued to employ targeted and
focused advertising and promotional campaigns. The Group believes the
success of its advertising campaigns is evident in its net sales growth, and
remains committed to enhance brand and product awareness and drive
additional net sales growth through focused marketing activities.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by US$18.1 million, or 13.6%,
to US$151.1 million (representing 6.4% of net sales) for the year ended
December 31, 2014 from US$133.1 million (representing 6.5% of net sales)
for the year ended December 31, 2013. Although general and administrative
expenses increased in absolute terms, such expenses decreased as a percentage
of net sales by 10 basis points as the Group maintained tight control of its
fixed cost base and leveraged it against strong sales growth. Share-based
compensation expense, a non-cash expense included in general and
administrative expenses, amounted to US$11.0 million, an increase of US$4.0

| Samsonite International S.A. Annual Report 2014
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million from the previous year due to the share options granted in January
2014. Excluding the increase in the share-based compensation expense,
general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales decreased
by 20 basis points.

Other Expenses

The Group recognized net other expenses of US$22.4 million and US$4.2
million for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively. Other expenses for 2014 included acquisition costs of US$13.5
million, which were primarily comprised of costs associated with due diligence
and integration activities, severance, and professional and legal fees for the
acquisitions of Lipault, Speck Products and Gregory that were completed during
2014. In comparison, other expenses for 2013 included US$1.1 million of costs
related to acquisition efforts.

Operating Profit

The Group’s operating profit was US$299.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2014, an increase of US$18.0 million, or 6.4%, from operating
profit of US$281.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The Group's
operating profit was negatively impacted by US$13.5 million of acquisition
costs, which increased by US$12.4 million from the previous year. Excluding
acquisition costs, the Group’s operating profit increased by US$30.4 million,
or 10.8%, year-on-year. Further excluding share-based compensation expense,
which increased by US$4.0 million year-on-year, operating profit increased
by 11.9%.

Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs increased by US$5.9 million, or 54.3%, to US$16.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2014 from US$11.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2013. This increase was primarily attributable to a US$6.3
million increase in foreign exchange translation losses due to the strengthening
of the US Dollar, as well as an increase of US$0.8 million of interest expense
as the Group borrowed on its Revolving Credit Facility to partially fund the
acquisitions during the year. These increases were partially offset by a US$2.1
million decrease in the expense recognized for the change in fair value of put
options related to agreements with certain holders of non-controlling interests.
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Profit before Income Tax

Profit before income tax increased by US$12.0 million, or 4.5%, to US$282.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2014 from US$270.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2013. The Group's profit before income tax in 2014
was negatively impacted by US$13.5 million of acquisition costs, an increase
of US$12.4 million from the previous year, and US$6.7 million in foreign
exchange translation losses, which increased by US$6.3 million from the
previous year. Excluding the acquisition costs and foreign exchange translation
losses, the Group's profit before income tax increased by US$30.7 million, or
11.3%. Further excluding share-based compensation expense, which increased
by US$4.0 million year-on-year, profit before income tax increased by 12.5%.

Income Tax Expense
Income tax expense increased by US$4.1 million, or 5.6%, to US$77.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2014 from US$72.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2013.

The Group's consolidated effective tax rate for operations was 27.3% and
27.0% for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively. The effective tax rate is calculated using a weighted average
income tax rate from those jurisdictions in which the Group is subject to tax,
adjusted for permanent book/tax differences, tax incentives, changes in tax
reserves and the recognition of previously unrecognized deferred tax assets.
The increase in the Group's effective tax rate is primarily attributable to
increased withholding taxes on dividend and royalty income.

Profit for the Year

Profit for the year of US$205.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2014
increased by US$7.9 million, or 4.0%, from US$197.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2013. The Group’s profit for the year was negatively impacted
by US$13.5 million of acquisition costs and US$6.7 million in foreign exchange
translation losses, which increased by US$12.4 million and US$6.3 million,
respectively, from the previous year. Excluding the acquisition costs and foreign
exchange translation losses, the Group's profit for the year increased by US$26.6
million, or 13.4%. Further excluding share-based compensation expense, which
increased by US$4.0 million year-on-year, profit for the year increased by 14.9%.

Profit attributable to the equity holders increased by US$10.2 million, or 5.8%,
from US$176.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 to US$186.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2014. Excluding the acquisition costs
and foreign exchange translation losses noted above, profit attributable to
equity holders increased by US$28.9 million, or 16.3%. Further excluding
share-based compensation expense as noted above, profit attributable to the
equity holders increased by 17.8%.

Adjusted Net Income, a non-IFRS measure, increased by US$17.0 million, or
9.0%, to US$206.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 from
US$189.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. Further excluding
the foreign exchange translation losses and share-based compensation expense
noted above, Adjusted Net Income increased by US$27.3 million, or 13.9%,
year-on-year. See the reconciliation of profit for the year to Adjusted Net
Income below for a detailed discussion of the Group’s results excluding certain
non-recurring costs and charges and other non-cash charges that impacted
reported profit for the year.
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R ZATENE S - FRRFIEMN14.9% °

BRERE ARG EREEE2013F12A8318 1L
FE1761BEETEMIO2EEETHS8% 2
HE2014F12831B1LFEE1863BEXET - Ml
MRS RINEE REE - RIEFE AR
IEERIEM28. 9B B ETE 16.3% © E—HHMR
LA XA EINR S 0 RS AR
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EREFRA (—EFIFRSHHKIETR) HEE
2013 12A31B L FEEI189 2B B X M
170EBERTRI0% ZHE2014F12A83101E
FE2063FEET  E— MR LM IMNERER
ERERURGZANHMAS  SRBEFRAZ
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REMIEFRSBANFERH  BESHETATR
FREFIERAC TR F U KU ER o



Basic earnings per share (“Basic EPS”) and diluted earnings per share (" Diluted
EPS”) increased to US$0.132 for the year ended December 31, 2014 from
US$0.125 for the year ended December 31, 2013. The weighted average
number of shares utilized in the Basic EPS calculation increased by 625
thousand shares as a result of shares issued upon exercise of share options by
certain participants in the Group's Share Award Scheme. The weighted average
number of shares outstanding utilized in the Diluted EPS calculation increased
by 2.5 million shares from December 31, 2013 as certain outstanding share
options became dilutive during 2014. During 2013, the number of shares
utilized in the Diluted EPS calculation was the same as the number of shares
utilized in the basic EPS calculation as all potentially dilutive instruments were
anti-dilutive.

Adjusted Basic EPS and adjusted Diluted EPS increased to US$0.147 and
US$0.146, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2014 from US$0.134
for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA, which is a non-IFRS measure, increased by US$46.6 million,
or 13.8%, to US$384.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 from
US$337.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. Adjusted EBITDA
margin decreased to 16.4% from 16.6% due to the impact from acquisitions
completed during the year which have lower margins while the acquisitions
are being integrated. In addition, the Group’s business in North America, which
typically yields a lower margin percentage, contributed an increased amount
to the consolidated results driven by the acquisition of Speck Products. The
Group continued to maintain tight control of its fixed cost base while
experiencing strong sales growth in its core business.

The following table presents the reconciliation from the Group’s profit for
the year to Adjusted EBITDA for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013.

BREARF ([SREAREF]) REREER
AMA([EREERF]) BBZE2013F12A3181E
FEE0IBETEMEBZ2014F 128310 1LE
E0.132% T - ARGTESRERBAN METF
HREBAREERGEEAEE TSHEETER
R RELA BB (T IR AD G 625 T B% - ANETESR
BERANESRTMEF IR BE013F128
3AEM2SEER - LA R2014F% FTE R
THRRESAABEER - H2013F  HRTE
BEHEIAYAREEER  WEARGES
REERANBBEARNTESRERBFINR
FHERE -

BARGRERBFIRCAEREREERAH
HZE2013F12831B L EE0134ETEME
BZE2014F 128310 EFESFIB0147ETR
0.1463% 7T °

A EBITDA

AR EBTDA B —TEIIFRSHIHKTETE - A
Z2013F12A31HLLFE3377EEE T &M
A6 6EBETHIZ8HEHE2014F12H318
IHFE3843EEET o KFAEEBITDAFIEZEH
16.6% THEZE164% @ WZERTROBES
BRESHBABERREATE - 1o REE
b MR — MRFDBREK - 12 U Speck
Products T8 - S HABGREEEN S RIILM o
AEBMBEFRELZTEBETERE - B Z0E
R EMARFEEYIER -

TREFIEZ2014F12831BR20135F12831H
IFFEREBFRBFELTHZEBITDALER ©

BZE12A318LEE
Year ended December 31,

(UFET25)

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

Profit for the period FR@A

Plus (Minus): n CGR) -
Income tax expense FriSBiB X
Finance costs i E A
Finance income B U A
Depreciation e
Amortization ey

EBITDA EBITDA

Plus: hn:
Share-based compensation expense BARR A7 32 A Y 57 B B =
Other adjustments® HtFREE®

Adjusted EBITDA IR EBITDA

2014 2013
205,354 197,421
77,018 72,915
17,383 11,808
(478) (852)
42,588 36,821
9,180 8,363
351,045 326,476
11,041 7,036
22,259 4,218
384,345 337,730

Note FfizE

T Other adjustments primarily comprised of ‘Other expenses’ per the consolidated income statement, which includes acquisition costs of US$13.5
million and US$1.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
Hitn AR T BEEFESRBERTN [ HBEX ] HPEEEBZE2014F12A31BK2013F 12831 AL FENRERA - ARIB 13 HEEARIIBEET

HEBABRERAE

ZO-—MEER|
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The following tables present a reconciliation from profit for the year to Adjusted ~ FT&RHHEZ20145 12831 B R2013F12 831
EBITDA on a regional basis for the years ended December 31, 2014 and BIFEZRHEEEZTINEREZANREHE
December 31, 2013. EBITDA¥I8R ©

BE2014512831HLEEFE
Year ended December 31, 2014

(AFETZ5) )| EIEY)| BN BHTEMO b1 &5
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) Asia | North America Europe Latin America® Corporate Total

Profit for the period HAR A 80,706 29,797 45,477 4,349 45,025 205,354
Plus (Minus): hn CRR) -
Income tax expense FriSHiBA
(benefit) (IER) 24,232 20,177 22,049 (926) 11,486 77,018
Finance costs B%EA 3,446 751 1,776 (13) 11,423 17,383
Finance income 5y T 0N (354) (6) (107) 9) (2) (478)
Depreciation e 14,333 8,731 15,678 2,071 1,775 42,588
Amortization N 4,302 1,389 1,525 1,930 34 9,180
EBITDA EBITDA 126,665 60,839 86,398 7,402 69,741 351,045
Plus (Minus): G -
Share-based compensation  BABRD XA
expense FHHpE 719 2,285 2,012 263 5,762 11,041
Other adjustments® HihfgzEe 62,217 53,186 6,805 3,275 (103,224) 22,259
Adjusted EBITDA #FAEE EBITDA 189,601 116,310 95,215 10,940 (27,721) 384,345

Notes ff&E

T During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Group realized lower gross margin percentage and higher operating expenses associated with the transition to a
direct sales model in Brazil, Panama, Peru and Colombia. These factors, along with the strengthening of the US Dollar, led to a temporary reduction in profitability
in Latin America.

HE2014F12A31BLFE  AREREH - B25 - WERFRETAEREHEAMBEEREENZRBSLENS - ZERFMEETRE  SHTENNBRE D LB THE

Other adjustments primarily comprised of ‘Other expenses’ per the consolidated income statement, which includes acquisition costs. Regional results include
intragroup royalty income/expense.

HittBEFZEFGERERTN [ EMS ] HhEERBAK - tEXEDEEEABNERIERA/ BIX

HE2013F12A31ALLFE
Year ended December 31, 2013

(AFERTZ5) M JEZEM BUM BT EM fise 3 A
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) Asia North America Europe Latin America Corporate Total
Profit for the period BRRF 58,197 27,304 50,243 12,558 49,119 197,421
Plus (Minus): hn GRR) -

Income tax expense TS 19,889 21,374 11,080 2,759 17,813 72,915

Finance costs B E R 4,862 353 1,511 (1,752) 6,834 11,808

Finance income BFEURA (264) (3) (254) (3) (328) (852)

Depreciation e 13,433 4,539 14,397 2,257 2,195 36,821

Amortization N 4,207 610 1,582 1,930 34 8,363
EBITDA EBITDA 100,324 54,177 78,559 17,749 75,667 326,476
Plus (Minus): o ORl) -

Share-based compensation PARRAR 2 A 89

expense 200 |53 901 1,449 1,310 179 3,197 7,036

Other adjustments HihggzEo 53,347 45,011 9,910 (169) (103,881) 4,218

Adjusted EBITDA #HAEE EBITDA 154,572 100,637 89,779 17,759 (25,017) 337,730
Note FizE

T Other adjustments primarily comprised of ‘Other expenses’ per the consolidated income statement, which includes acquisition costs. Regional results include
intragroup royalty income/expense.
Hitt BT ZEFGERERPN A% EhEERBAK - tEXEDEEEABNERIERN/ BIX
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The Group has presented Adjusted EBITDA because it believes that, when
viewed with its results of operations as prepared in accordance with IFRS and
with the reconciliation to profit for the year, Adjusted EBITDA provides
additional information that is useful in gaining a more complete understanding
of its operational performance and of the trends impacting its business.
Adjusted EBITDA is an important metric the Group uses to evaluate its
operating performance and cash generation.

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-IFRS financial measure and as calculated herein may
not be comparable to similarly named measures used by other companies and
should not be considered as a measure comparable to profit for the year in the
Group's consolidated income statement. Adjusted EBITDA has limitations as an
analytical tool and should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute
for, an analysis of the Group's results of operations as reported under IFRS.

Adjusted EBITDA by Region
Rt B &7 K EFHEEBITDA 39

RNEEZHERAZBTDARRBEME - E08
HCE %5 (IRIBIRSRE R B FE R RETE
BR) B RTAEBTDAKREESER  BAR
FAETHMASERERFEHERNBE - &
T EBITDA RSB ARG R REUR
SN-EEEEFEZE -

WA st B A4S R EBITDA B — 1B 3E IFRS 8175
STEIA > RAMAHEEMARFMEREUSSE
W ETEETHE  BRERA—BIHEASE
BRERERPFREANLENTEIE - £33
EEBDAEA—ES T TEBEERRY - TER
ABIYRRREREBRIEIFRS T2MANLEE
BT o

5%

i i \ |
B i 23% 259,
B mggﬁAmeﬁm 46 42%
l %ﬁﬁpe 2014 2013
&)
B Latin America
BT EM \

28%

28%

FEBEBRERAT —O-—NFFR|
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Adjusted Net Income

Adjusted Net Income, which is a non-IFRS measure, increased by US$17.0
million, or 9.0%, to US$206.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2014
from US$189.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. Excluding the
foreign exchange translation losses noted above, Adjusted Net Income
increased by US$23.3 million, or 12.3%, year-on-year. Further, excluding the
share-based compensation expense noted above, Adjusted Net Income
increased by US$27.3 million, or 13.9%, year-on-year.

The following table presents the reconciliation from the Group’s profit for the
year to Adjusted Net Income for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013.

FCEHE N
ERBFRAS—EEIRSEBITETE - BE
Z2013F12A31H L FE189.2H EE TEM
170BBERTH.0% EHE2014512A83181E
FE2063EFEXET - Mk L HNEE R EE
ERRFRARELMNB33AEETHI12.3% °
i — SR D AR 2 BB = - &858
BRI A IREE 27 3EEETH13.9% ©

TXREHEZ20145F128318 &2013F 128
JALFE  AEEFRENELAZFRA
HER -

HBZ12A310LEE
Year ended December 31,

P 2013

(AFET25)

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

Profit for the period HAR s A

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 1 R = AR T

Profit attributable to the equity holders RIERE AERRF]

Plus (Minus): hn CRR) -
Change in fair value of put options ROHHEN AT ERE
Amortization of intangible assets B EREEHEO
Expenses related to acquisition activities Wi E BN AERI R X
Tax adjustments IR

Adjusted Net Income®? KREFRA

205,354 197,421
(19,098) (21,334)

186,256 176,087

4,245 6,312
9,180 8,363
13,541 1,093
(6,971) (2,648)

206,251 189,207

Notes Kfs:
1

Amortization of intangible assets represents charges related to the amortization of other intangible assets with finite useful lives that were

recognized in conjunction with business combinations.
B EERNEREREB SN —ERNEREATHNEEL EENBEERNMAX

2 Represents Adjusted Net Income attributable to the equity holders of the Company.
EARRRESEABGEARTIRA

The Group has presented Adjusted Net Income because it believes this measure
helps to give securities analysts, investors and other interested parties a better
understanding of the Group’s underlying financial performance. By presenting
Adjusted Net Income, the Group eliminates the effect of a number of non-
recurring costs and charges and certain other non-cash charges that impact
its reported profit for the year.

Adjusted Net Income is a non-IFRS financial measure, and as calculated herein
may not be comparable to similarly named measures used by other companies
and should not be considered as a measure comparable to profit for the year
in the Group’s consolidated income statement. Adjusted Net Income has
limitations as an analytical tool and should not be considered in isolation from,
or as a substitute for, an analysis of the Group’s results of operations as reported
under IFRS.

| Samsonite International S.A. Annual Report2014
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management policies is to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, to provide returns for
shareholders, and to fund capital expenditures, normal operating expenses,
working capital needs and the payment of obligations. The Group’s primary
sources of liquidity are its cash flows from operating activities, invested cash,
available lines of credit and, subject to shareholder approval, the Company’s
ability to issue additional shares. The Group believes that its existing cash and
estimated cash flows, along with current working capital, will be adequate to
meet the operating and capital requirements of the Group for at least the next
twelve months.

The Group generated cash from operating activities of US$229.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2014, an increase of US$36.9 million, or 19.1%,
from net cash generated from operating activities of US$193.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2013. This increase is primarily attributable to
increased profits, less cash used for working capital and reduced contributions
to defined benefit plans, which were partially offset by an increase in taxes paid.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, net cash used in investing activities
was US$267.1 million compared to US$53.9 million in the previous year. This
increase was primarily due to the acquisitions of Speck Products, Gregory and
Lipault, as well as an increase in the purchase of property, plant and equipment
from the previous year, which was largely attributable to expenditures in
connection with expanding the existing manufacturing plant in Hungary and
completion of an additional warehouse in Belgium.

Net cash flows used in financing activities was US$41.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2014 compared to US$64.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2013. Cash flows used in financing activities are largely
attributable to the US$80.0 million distribution to shareholders, partially offset
by the Group drawing on its Revolving Facility to fund a portion of the
acquisitions of Speck Products, Gregory and Lipault.

Indebtedness
The following table sets forth the carrying amount of the Group’s loans and
borrowings as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

RBEEREFER

FEBEFAEERRTIZERARSARERE
B MRREHDE  XHERMX - —RE
BERAXREEEFRTERBESRIAEE - &
EERBELTERFALLEETH RERE -
RERE - JAFEEERARTRITHR (F
RERAER T AER) WEED - AREER - B
RERERGETRERE  MERBLEES
SEUERASERRED T ZEALERER

FER o

o 2l

HZE2014F 128318 ILEE  AEEBLEF
BELRE22988E T MEIZ2013F 128
BNALFENEEEBMEREFER193.08
BXx BIERCIFEERTRI1% o HITiIE
FTERREFIEN EEESFARSRIRE
BERAEEIRD R 2 W EAHEE
FRigEH o

BE2014F12831BLEE  REFHHIAR
EFER7IVEEET MEFRARS390E
X7t WL IR F B B U EE Speck Products »
Gregory K Lipault » LRk T ERIEFTEE QT FIH
ERRLEFRTBAEERSBENE - BRER
RN B FEIE AT o

BZE2014FN2ANBLEEE  RETEBHMAR
EREFHEAV THEET > MBZE20135F12A8
JTALFERCATEESET - METEAR
EREFTEZHNEREDIKS0OBEETHE
B WAEEE AEBREE S Speck Products *
Gregory K Lipault W i BIEIR B M A E 2 A7
HEH

=R
TREHAEBMM2014F12 831 HR20135F12
B31BHNERRERIIREE

(UAFET25)

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

Revolving Credit Facility RREERE
Other lines of credit Hitf= &%
Finance lease obligations REHERIE
Total loans and borrowings ERRERAE
Less deferred financing costs RELE Bl & B S

Total loans and borrowings less deferred
financing costs

ERRERABRELRE R A

12A31H
December 31,
2014 2013
60,000 =
7,536 15,482
32 53
67,568 15,535
(2,419) (1,858)
65,149 13,677

HEBABRERAE
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The Group had US$140.4 million in cash and cash equivalents at December
31, 2014, compared to US$225.3 million at December 31, 2013.

On June 17, 2014, the Group amended its revolving credit facility (the
"Revolving Facility”) to increase the maximum borrowings available thereunder
from US$300.0 million to US$500.0 million and to extend the term of the
facility until June 17, 2019. The facility can be increased by an additional
US$300.0 million, subject to lender approval. The Revolving Facility has an
initial term of five years from its effective date of June 17, 2014, with a one
year extension available at the request of the Group and at the option of the
lenders. The interest rate on borrowings under the Revolving Facility is the
aggregate of (i) (a) LIBOR or (b) the prime rate of the lender and (ii) a margin
to be determined based on the Group’s leverage ratio. Based on the Group’s
leverage ratio, the Revolving Facility carries a commitment fee ranging from
0.2% to 0.325% per annum on any unutilized amounts, as well as an agency
fee if another lender joins the Revolving Facility. The Revolving Facility is secured
by certain of the Group’s assets in the United States and Europe, as well as
the Group’s intellectual property. The Revolving Facility also contains financial
covenants related to interest coverage and leverage ratios, and operating
covenants that, among other things, limit the Group’s ability to incur additional
debt, create liens on its assets, and participate in certain mergers, acquisitions,
liquidations, asset sales or investments. The Group was in compliance with
the financial covenants as of December 31, 2014. At December 31, 2014,
US$437.5 million was available to be borrowed on the Revolving Facility as a
result of US$60.0 million of outstanding borrowings and the utilization of
US$2.5 million of the facility for outstanding letters of credit extended to
certain creditors. At December 31, 2013, US$294.4 million was available to
be borrowed on the previously existing US$300.0 million revolving credit facility
as a result of the utilization of US$5.6 million of the facility for outstanding
letters of credit extended to certain creditors.

Certain members of the Group maintain credit lines with various third party
lenders in the regions in which they operate. These local credit lines provide
working capital for the day-to-day business operations of such subsidiaries,
including overdraft, bank guarantee, and trade finance and factoring facilities.
The majority of these credit lines are uncommitted facilities. The total aggregate
amount outstanding under the local facilities was US$7.5 million and US$15.5
million at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

The following represents the contractual maturity dates of the Group’s loans
and borrowings (excluding the impact of netting agreements) as of December
31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

R2014F 128318 AEERESRBRESEEY
B1404ABEET mMMR2013F12831H 8B
2253EBXET °

M2014F6 8178 » AEBEITLBEREERE
(RREED  BRUEBRNESERSESR
3000ABETEMES00FEET  YERE
BHZE2019F6 4170 - & W EEIMEN300.05
BEn  WAREDRALLE - BREEH2014F6
R17BMEMBBRET IS FRARSF » WK
FEEERRERAREBLER—F - BREET
MERARBLUT EERNEH : () @RBERTRE
EFER D) ERANREBRER () $iRAEE
WERLREENEE - REREBEMNERL
F BREEHEAADANSERRESFENT
0.2% £0.325% WAEE » {65 —BERAMA
BREENARDREE - BRESUREEN
REBRBNNE TEEUARAEBREER
- BREETESHABENEERIER
REBNPKEH  UREEZE  HPEER
FREEMEEREMEE  BRHEETVEEER
SEAETOHE KB B8 EEHESREN
BEH o M2014F 128310 » AEE—EETHE
2o 20145128318 » AR KEENER
C00EBETRMRETFE TEREANKEESH
RMEA2SHEEXETME  REREETTER
W& A4375BERT - H2013F12A318
HRBIZEE TS TEEANKEBESARME A
SEEEERME  RAAMMER00EEET
BREERET T EENSER244HEET

FEEETREQAFEFBEEEMEHENS S
BZRERAFTLEEE WEBMEEEAZ
EWBATAEEREERMEESS  BEE
X RITER ESBMEURKRREERE - it
ZEEEAND, BEAGENE - R2014F12A
31AR2013F 128310 » EM@E THARER
BEARATSHBETRISSHEBRET ©

TREHMN2014F12831BK2013512H831H
REBERRER WBFELERESE) NE
HWEEA o

(AFETEH)
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

128318
December 31,

2014 2013

BERIN—FR

On demand or within one year

After one year but within two years 1F%&E2FR
After two years but within five years 2F#B5FR
More than five years HBiB5F

67,550 15,498
17
20

15,535
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Hedging

The Group’s non-U.S. subsidiaries periodically enter into forward contracts
related to the purchase of inventory denominated primarily in US Dollars which
are designated as cash flow hedges. Cash outflows associated with these
derivatives at December 31, 2014 are expected to be US$116.1 million within
one year.

Other Financial Information

Working Capital Ratios

Inventory Analysis

The following table sets forth a summary of the Group’s average inventory,
cost of sales and average inventory days for the years ended December 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013.

5

REENIZEMB AT LEFEBEE
ENHENFERENRBREN  KEEWNEER
ETRESREE P - R2014F12831HEKE
TEIAERBEMNBLINRANR-FRE116.1
ELES

HibBA &

EEERILE

BESH
TREHEZ2014F12831BK2013F 12831
ALEEAREFIIFE  SHEREARTEHEFE
HEBE -

HBZ12A310LEE
Year ended December 31,

(AFET25)

(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

Average inventory @ FHEFED

Cost of sales SHEMA

Average inventory turnover days® FHEFEEEAH?

2014 2013
315,326 287,947
1,106,881 949,475
104 111

Notes Kfz
1

Average inventory equals the average of net inventory at the beginning and end of a given period.

PHEERSREERERIRARNFEFENTIIY -

2 Average inventory turnover days for a given period equals average inventory for that period divided by cost of sales for that period and multiplied by

the number of days in the period.
HEHBHTHFEEE A RESRZDENTOFERUAZSRBNEESS - BRUZHBO AL -

The Group's average inventory increased in 2014 (US$332.3 million at
December 31, 2014 compared to US$298.4 million at December 31, 2013)
from 2013 (US$298.4 million at December 31, 2013 compared to US$277.5
million at December 31, 2012) to support increased customer demand and
new product introductions, as well as a result of the Speck Products, Gregory
and Lipault acquisitions completed during 2014.

Trade and Other Receivables

The following table sets forth a summary of the Group’s average trade and
other receivables, net sales and turnover of trade and other receivables for the
years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

014 REBFHIEE (R2014F128318 5
3323E B X T ™ R2013F12A318 Al B
298 4B B ET) B2013F (R2013F12H31H
R29BAEBE T MMR2012F128318 BI B
277.5BEERT) B LIBEREZFEEFERE
NI HEHHE G MUK 20145 58 B /Y Speck
Products * Gregory & Lipault Yt i EIEFT 2k o

P Wiz BR 0 R L fth FE U 7R IR
TREVEZ2014512831BR20135F12 431
AUEFEREETGRBERR R Lt RE
HEFHEURERRERREMmERREEEAY
AHEE o

(UFEx25)
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

BZE12A31HLFE
Year ended December 31,

Average trade and other receivables ™
Net sales SHEFH

Turnover days of trade and other receivables®

P45 FE R AR R e LA B R IE

FEW AR H A EWR R BE R # @

2014 2013
268,607 234,266
Ly 2,037,812
42 42

Notes Kz

T Average trade and other receivables equal the average of net trade and other receivables at the beginning and end of a given period.

PR BERR R B M RURAR S S F R 3 R M R R USRI RUB R BRI 198,

2 Turnover days of trade and other receivables for a given period equals average trade and other receivables for that period divided by net sales for

that period and multiplied by the number of days in the period.

HEHE SRR R AR KRR B 8IS RNZH B TR R A R Z RN HEFE - BRUZIENES -

HEBABRERAE
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The Group’s average trade and other receivables increased in 2014 (US$290.8
million at December 31, 2014 compared to US$246.4 million at December
31, 2013) from 2013 (US$246.4 million at December 31, 2013 compared to
US$222.2 million at December 31, 2012) in line with the increase in net sales
and as a result of the Speck Products, Gregory and Lipault acquisitions
completed during 2014.

Trade receivables as of December 31, 2014 are on average due within 60 days
from the date of billing.

Trade and Other Payables

The following table sets forth a summary of the Group’s average trade and
other payables, cost of sales and turnover days of trade and other payables
for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

2014 A KBTI EBERT R E M EKE (R
2014512831 A2908HEET » MK2013F
12A318 Bl 524648 B £ ) B2013F (R
20135 1283185246 4HEET » MK2012F
12A318 8 B222 2B B %) 8- EEE
FREER - K HNK20145F F K K Speck
Products * Gregory } Lipault Ut BE S 1B FT 2K o

R2014F 12 A3 HWEWRAR 1B RIRE A
HAAEET60 H N EER o

FE 1% BR 70 R L fth B 7 7R IR
TREVEZ2014512831BR20135F12 831
AEFEREETFEMARAR L ENRE
HERAUREMERREMMENREREAY
HEE o

(UFET25)
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

BZE12A31HLFE
Year ended December 31,

2014 2013

Average trade and other payables
Cost of sales SHEMA
Turnover days of trade and other payables®

PR BRI BT FRIR O 401,342 374,864

1,106,881 949,475

A RRRHMEMREEEAH? 132 144

Notes Hfz
1

Average trade and other payables equal the average of trade and other payables at the beginning and end of a given period.

PR IR R E A FURMRS S E IR R AR AR R AR SR P39 8

2 Turnover days of trade and other payables for a given period equals average trade and other payables for that period divided by cost of sales for

that period and multiplied by the number of days in the period.

SERRN RN IRR R AR RUREE A SURSNZHBN B AR R AR N RERUZABNHEERS - BRUZHBNESE

The increase in average trade and other payables in 2014 (US$415.4 million
at December 31, 2014 compared to US$387.2 million at December 31, 2013)
from 2013 (US$387.2 million at December 31, 2013 compared to US$362.5
million at December 31, 2012) was primarily due to increased inventory
purchases period over period and the timing of such purchases, as well as
a result of the Speck Products, Gregory and Lipault acquisitions completed
during 2014.

Trade payables as of December 31, 2014 are on average due within 105 days
from the invoice date.
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Capital Expenditures

Historical Capital Expenditures

The following table sets forth the Group’s historical capital expenditures for
the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

EAMX

BIEEREAX
TREIAREBMEZ2014F12831 B R2013F
12A31 BEFENBREREE o

BZE12A31BLFE
Year ended December 31,

(AFETE5)
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) 2014 2013
Land Tith 681 188
Buildings BF 11,455 906
Machinery, equipment, HES - 5RfE - FHEYENE

leasehold improvements and other TRRRHEM 57,500 56,145
Total capital expenditures ERE B 69,636 57,239

The increase in the purchase of property, plant and equipment from the
previous year was largely attributable to expenditures in connection with
expanding the existing manufacturing plant in Hungary and completion of an
additional warehouse in Belgium, as well as the addition of new retail locations.

Planned Capital Expenditures

The Group’s capital expenditures budget for 2015 is approximately US$81.6
million. The Group plans to build a new warehouse in China, refurbish existing
retail stores, open new retail stores and invest in machinery and equipment.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes scheduled maturities of the Group’s
contractual obligations for which cash flows are fixed and determinable as
of December 31, 2014.

BENX  BERRBHLEFEMEEMNE
550 5 R RO TR BUE I % LR B 5 2R B B E AR Y
X BRI B ERAE

FHEIE AR
AEE2015FEARMXARNRSI6HEET °
FEEFARTEAE-EHAE BHREE
EE - FRMZEE - URREREERRME -

AHER
TREMA2014F1N2ANBAEBFRASRRE
FEAEERUEENANETNETEMAE -

1FE2F 2FESF
(AFET25)) st 15/ Between  Between 2 and BiBSF
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) Total Within 1 year 1 and 2 years 5 years Over 5 years
Loans and borrowings ERREE 67,568 67,550 15 3 -
Minimum operating BRIEKSEHE N
lease payments 296,162 74,018 62,286 98,483 61,375
Total #et 363,730 141,568 62,301 98,486 61,375

As of December 31, 2014, the Group did not have any material off-balance
sheet arrangements or contingencies except as included in the table
summarizing its contractual obligations above.
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Gearing Ratio

The following table sets forth the Group’s loans and borrowings (excluding
deferred financing costs), total equity and gearing ratio as of December 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013.

ERLE
TREYAEER2014F12A31AK2013F12
ANBERRER MBRELRERAR) « B
HEER IR -

(AFET25)
(Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

Loans and borrowings BRRER
(excluding deferred financing costs) (BRI FIE 7 5 P AN )

Total equity BT

Gearing ratio ™ B =0

128318
December 31,
2014 2013
67,569 15,535
1,307,440 1,230,582
5.2% 1.3%

Note FfizE

T Calculated as total loans and borrowings (excluding deferred financing costs) divided by total equity.

REHRERAE (MIRELRERA) BRARSAEH -

Other Information

Human Resources and Remuneration

At December 31, 2014, the Group had approximately 8,900 employees
worldwide, compared to approximately 8,085 employees at December 31,
2013. The increase in headcount is largely driven by the addition of new retail
stores and shop-in-shop expansion in Asia, as well as acquisitions. The Group
regularly reviews remuneration and benefits of its employees according to the
relevant market practice, employee performance and the financial performance
of the Group.
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Strategic Review and Prospects
During 2014, the Group continued to implement its strategic plan in the
following areas:

Positive Financial Results
All key Group metrics showed considerable growth for the year ended
December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013.

e Net sales increased to a record level of US$2,350.7 million, reflecting a
15.4% increase from the previous year. Excluding foreign currency effects,
net sales increased by 17.3%. Excluding amounts attributable to acquisitions
made in 2014, net sales increased by US$203.2 million, or 10.0%, and by
11.9% on a constant currency basis.

e Operating profit increased by US$18.0 million, or 6.4%, year-on-year and
by US$30.4 million, or 10.8%, excluding acquisition costs.

e Profit attributable to the equity holders increased by US$10.2 million, or
5.8%, year-on-year and by US$28.9 million, or 16.3%, excluding acquisition
costs and foreign exchange translation losses.

e Profit for the year increased by US$7.9 million, or 4.0%, year-on-year and by
US$26.6 million, or 13.4%, excluding acquisition costs and foreign exchange
translation losses.

¢ Adjusted Net Income increased by US$17.0 million, or 9.0%, year-on-year
and by US$23.3 million, or 12.3%, excluding foreign exchange translation
losses.

e Adjusted EBITDA increased by US$46.6 million, or 13.8%, to US$384.3
million.

e Adjusted EBITDA margin decreased to 16.4% from 16.6% primarily due to
lower margins from brands acquired in 2014.

e The Group generated US$229.9 million of cash from operating activities.

Significant Investment in Advertising and Promotion

The Group maintained its significant investment in marketing, which amounted
to approximately 6.2 % of net sales, reflecting its commitment to advertise and
promote its brands and products to support sales growth worldwide.

Introduction of New and Innovative Products to the Market
The Group continued to focus on innovation and ensuring that its products
reflect local consumer tastes in each region. Innovation and a regional focus
on product development are key drivers of sales growth and are the means
to deliver quality and value to the Group’s customers.

Expansion of Distribution Network

The Group continued the further expansion of its distribution network by
adding over 3,600 points of sale during the year to over 49,000 points of sale
worldwide as of December 31, 2014.
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Acquisitions
The Group completed the following acquisitions during 2014:

(a) Lipault

On April 1, 2014, a wholly owned subsidiary within the Group completed the
acquisition of (i) Distri Bagages, a société a responsabilité limitée, incorporated
and organized under the Laws of France, and (ii) Licences et Développements,
a société a responsabilité limitée, incorporated and organized under the Laws
of France (collectively, the “Lipault Entities”) for cash consideration of EUR
20.0 million, with a subsequent working capital adjustment of EUR 0.1 million,
for a total purchase price of EUR 20.1 million. The Group purchased all of the
outstanding capital stock of the Lipault Entities.

Lipault is a luggage brand founded in France in 2005, whose products are
designed to meet the needs of today’s savvy travellers, featuring ultra-
lightweight, smart designs and bright fashion colors, and constructed using
luxurious but durable nylon twill fabric.

The acquisition further expands the Group’s brand portfolio and presents
opportunities to leverage the Group’s industry-leading design and product
development capabilities, as well as its distribution network and retail presence,
to significantly expand the Lipault brand in France, additional markets in Europe
and the rest of the world. Lipault is a youthful brand that will help the Group
engage with the fashionable female consumers through its signature Parisian
style and vibrant colors.

(b) Speck Products

On May 28, 2014, a wholly owned subsidiary within the Group completed
the acquisition of Speck Products for cash consideration of US$85.0 million,
with a subsequent working capital adjustment of US$0.04 million, for a total
purchase price of US$85.0 million. The Group purchased all of the outstanding
capital stock of Speck Products.

Founded in Silicon Valley, California in 2001, Speck Products is a leading
designer and distributor of slim protective cases for personal electronic
devices that are marketed under the Speck® brand. Speck Products offers a
diverse product range that is sleek, stylish and functionally innovative, and
provides superior military-grade protection for smartphones, tablets and
laptops from a range of manufacturers. The Speck brand is particularly
well-known for its “slim protection” designs such as the iconic Candy Shell
smartphone case, which is constructed using a “hard-soft” technology that
Speck Products pioneered.

The acquisition enables the Group to strategically extend its brand portfolio
beyond its traditional strength in travel luggage pro-ducts, and provides the
Group with a strong brand and product offering resulting in an immediate
foothold in the market for protective cases for smartphones, tablets, laptops
and other personal electronic devices. It also provides the Group with opportuni-
ties to leverage its well-established global distribution network and retail
presence to significantly expand the reach of the Speck brand in Asia, Europe
and Latin America.
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(c) Gregory Mountain Products

On July 23, 2014, certain of the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries (the
“Samsonite Purchasers”) purchased substantially all of the assets of Gregory
Mountain Products, LLC (“Gregory”) for cash consideration of US$84.1 million.
The Samsonite Purchasers purchased substantially all of the assets of Gregory
excluding cash, certain receivables, and certain other retained assets and
assumed all balance sheet liabilities and certain contractual liabilities of Gregory.

The Gregory brand is a leader and pioneer in its industry, responsible for many
innovations in backpack design. It is well-respected by active outdoor and
adventure enthusiasts as a leading brand in the premium technical backpack
segment. In addition to its technical backpacks, Gregory branded lifestyle
backpacks are popular in Japan and other Asian countries.

The acquisition gives the Group a strong brand and product offering to expand
its presence in the high-end segment of the outdoor and lifestyle casual
markets, as well as opportunities to leverage the Group’s global marketing
and distribution capabilities to significantly expand the Gregory brand both in
the U.S. and internationally.

Subsequent to December 31, 2014, the Group completed the following
acquisition:

Rolling Luggage

On February 16, 2015, certain of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries
completed the acquisition of the business and substantially all of the assets of
Rolling Luggage for a cash consideration of GBP 15.75 million, subject to
subsequent adjustment. The consideration was settled by cash upon completion
of the acquisition. The Group purchased substantially all of the assets, and
assumed certain liabilities of Rolling Luggage.

The acquisition provides the Group with a significant retail footprint in some
of the world’s leading airports, and further expands the Group’s portfolio of
retail store locations. For the fiscal year ended January 31, 2015, Rolling
Luggage recorded net sales of GBP 26.7 million, an increase of 11.3% from
GBP 24.0 million for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2014.

Future Prospects
The Group’s growth strategy will continue as planned for 2015, with a focus
on the following:

e continue to gain market share by leveraging the strength of the Group’s diverse
portfolio of brands, which include Samsonite, American Tourister, Hartmann,
High Sierra, Gregory, Speck and Lipault, across all of its markets;

e allocate more resources to increase the Group's direct-to-consumer sales,
including e-commerce, retail and omni-channel, in proportion to net sales;
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e allocate more resources to the markets in Latin America where the Group
is less represented and has the potential to increase market share;

e allocate more resources to the Hartmann brand to increase sales and gain
market share worldwide;

e focus on further integrating Speck Products, Lipault and Gregory into the
Group's existing business and continue to realize anticipated synergies in
sourcing, systems and back-office support functions;

e continually improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the Group’s supply
chain and global distribution network; and

e continually evaluate acquisition opportunities that have a compelling
strategic fit, leveraging the Group’s strong management team and balance
sheet capacity.

The Group aims to deliver top-line growth, maintain gross margins, increase
Adjusted EBITDA margins, generate cash and enhance shareholder value.

Qualitative and Quantitative Market Risks

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Group’s receivables from customers. Maximum exposure
is limited to the carrying amounts of the financial assets presented in the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the
demographics of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry
and country in which customers operate, as these factors may have an influence
on credit risk. There is no concentration of credit risk geographically or with
any single customer.

The Group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is
analyzed individually for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard payment
and delivery terms and conditions are offered.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their
credit characteristics, including aging profile, and existence of previous financial
difficulties. Trade and other receivables relate mainly to the Group’s wholesale
customers. Customers that are graded as “high risk” are placed on credit hold
and monitored by the Group, and future sales are made on an approval basis.

Financial Guarantees
The Group’s policy is to provide financial guarantees only on behalf of
subsidiaries. No other guarantees have been made to third parties.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the
obligations associated with its financial liabilities.
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The Group's primary sources of liquidity are its cash flows from operating
activities, invested cash, available lines of credit and, subject to shareholder
approval, its ability to issue additional shares. The Group believes that its
existing cash and estimated cash flows, along with current working capital,
will be adequate to meet its operating and capital requirements for at least
the next twelve months.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on purchases and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of
its subsidiaries.

The Group periodically uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its exposure
to currency risk on product purchases denominated in a currency other than
the respective functional currency of its subsidiaries. The forward exchange
contracts typically have maturities of less than one year.

Interest on borrowings is denominated in the local currency of the borrowing.
Borrowings are generally denominated in currencies that match the cash flows
generated by the underlying operations of the borrowing entity.

A sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to currency risk is set out in note
21(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group monitors its exposure to changes in interest rates on borrowings
on variable rate debt instruments. Although the Group does not currently have
any interest rate hedging instruments, it may from time to time enter into
interest rate swap contracts to manage interest rate risk.

Other Market Price Risk

Equity price risk arises from available for sale equity securities held by the
Group’s defined benefit pension plans to fund obligations that are used to
measure periodic net pension costs. Pension plan liabilities are presented net
of pension plan assets in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position. The Group’s investment strategy involves a de-risking program
utilizing liability hedging assets to offset changes in the Group's defined benefit
pension plan obligations. The Group engages professional pension plan asset
managers to assist in this process.

The estimated pension obligation (the actuarial present value of benefits
attributed to employee service and compensation levels prior to the
measurement date without considering future compensation levels), exceeds
the fair value of the assets of the Group’s pension plans, which is primarily the
result of the performance of equity markets and low interest rates during prior
years. Future market conditions and interest rate fluctuations could significantly
impact future assets and liabilities of the Group’s pension plans and future
minimum required funding levels.
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The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of the Company is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Company recognizes that sound corporate governance
practices are fundamental to the effective and transparent operation of the
Company and to its ability to protect the rights of its shareholders and enhance
shareholder value.

The Company has adopted its own corporate governance manual, which is
based on the principles, provisions and practices set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (as in effect from time to time, the “CG Code") contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company complied with all applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code throughout the period from January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014,
except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 discussed below regarding
the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO") and the
deviation from code provision F.1.3 discussed below regarding the Company’s
Joint Company Secretaries.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman and CEO should
be separated and should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Timothy Parker, the Chairman of the Board of the Company, also served
as the CEO of the Company from January 1, 2014 until September 30, 2014.
The Company believes this was appropriate because having Mr. Parker serve
as both the CEO and the Chairman provided the Company with strong and
consistent leadership. The Board believes that the balance of power and
authority was adequately ensured by the operations of the Board, which is
comprised of highly experienced individuals including, during the nine months
ended September 30, 2014, four Executive Directors (including Mr. Parker),
and five Independent Non-Executive Directors. Moreover, Mr. Parker was not
a member of either the Audit Committee or Remuneration Committee of the
Board, and each of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination committees is
comprised of a majority of Independent Non-Executive Directors. Mr. Ramesh
Dungarmal Tainwala was appointed CEO of the Company with effect from
October 1, 2014, after which date the Company has complied with code
provision A.2.1.

Code provision F.1.3 provides that the company secretary should report to the
Chairman and CEO.
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Mr. John Livingston, the Vice President, General Counsel and Joint Company
Secretary of the Company, reports to the Company’s Chief Financial Officer
("CFO"). The Company believes this is appropriate because Mr. Livingston is
based at the same location as the CFO and works closely with him on a day-
to-day basis. In addition, Mr. Livingston works directly with the Company’s
Chairman, its CEO and with the chairpersons of the various Board committees
with respect to corporate governance and other Board-related matters. Ms.
Chow Yuk Yin Ivy, the Company’s other joint company secretary based in Hong
Kong, reports to Mr. Livingston. The Company believes this is appropriate
because her primary role as joint company secretary is to assist Mr. Livingston
in ensuring that the Company complies with its obligations under the Listing
Rules.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own policies (the “Trading Policy”) for securities
transactions by Directors and relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company on terms no
less exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they complied
with the required standard set out in the Trading Policy during the year ended
December 31, 2014. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests in the Company’s
shares as at December 31, 2014 are set out at pages 91 to 92 of this Annual
Report.

The Board of Directors and Senior Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company, and for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs. In addition, the Board is responsible for overseeing the
corporate governance and financial reporting of the Company and for
reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal control, its
policies and procedures on compliance and corporate governance, and the
training and continuous professional development of its directors and senior
management. To assist it in fulfilling its duties, the Board has established three
board committees: the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee (for details of which see pages 64 to 66 of this
Annual Report).

The Chairman is responsible for leading the Board and ensuring that the Board
functions effectively and acts in the best interests of the Company. The CEO
is responsible for the overall strategic planning and management of the
Company.

The Board has established clear guidelines with respect to matters that must
be approved or recommended by the Board, including, without limitation,
approval and adoption of the Company’s annual operating budget and capital
expenditure budget; the hiring or dismissal of the CEO, CFO, Joint Company
Secretary or certain other members of the Company’s senior management
team; and approving and recommending significant transactions.
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The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
potential legal actions against its directors and senior management.

Composition of the Board, Number of Board Meetings and
Directors’ Attendance

The Board consists of nine directors, including three Executive Directors (“ED"),
one Non-Executive Director (“NED"), and five Independent Non-Executive
Directors (“INED"). The biographical details of each director and their respective
responsibilities and dates of appointment are included in the “Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 73 to 78 of this Annual Report. None
of the members of the Board is related to one another.

There were nine meetings of the Board held during the year ended December
31, 2014. The following is the attendance record of the directors at Board and
committee meetings, and at the shareholder meeting held during the year:

ARRCHEEER SR EEERYNETER
TERBAENRE

EZENE EFTEMABREERH
N

BEFEHNERESTAR  BEZAITES (9
TES])  —BFRTEE ([FWTESH K
LEBUFPTES ([BUFRTES]) - BE
ENEEFBERRESANBERZERABEAR
FEREBEVANESRSREEE] -
£ - ESERERILIBATMRIE

BZE2014F 12831 HILEE EEEHETAR
2F - THAFRNESHFEESSRZEREE
AR R A M0

T Mr. Korbas was elected to the Board on June 5, 2014.

Korbas £4£M20145F6 A5 AEEMAESE -

HERE
Attendance
=g REZEY FMzEe BRBFAE

5l Board of EREEY Nomination Remuneration Annual General
Category Directors Audit Committee  Committee Committee Meeting

Timothy Charles Parker NED and Chairman 9/9 - 1/1 — 1/1
FEHITESRERE

Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala  ED and CEO 9/9 - - - 1/1
HATESFRITEEE

Kyle Francis Gendreau ED and CFO 9/9 - - - 1/1
PITEERMBRE

Tom Korbas' ED and President, 4/4 - - - -
North America
BTESERLEINE

Keith Hamill INED 8/9 4/4 - - 11
BYFEHITES

Bruce Hardy McLain INED 9/9 = = 5/5 171
BN FHITES

Paul Kenneth Etchells INED 9/9 4/4 11 5/5 11
BYFHITES

Miguel Kai Kwun Ko INED 9/9 4/4 171 5/5 171

= R BYEHITES

Ying Yeh INED 9/9 4/4 11 5/5 11

g BYEHITES

Note FfizE

Each INED has provided the Company with an annual confirmation of his or
her independence, and the Company considers each of the INEDs to be
independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notice of regular Board meetings is given to all directors at least 14 days in
advance, and reasonable notice is generally given for other Board meetings.
Annual meeting schedules and the draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to directors in advance. Arrangements are in place to allow
directors to include items in the agenda, and final agendas together with board
papers are sent to directors at least 3 days before each regular Board meeting,
and as soon as practicable before other Board meetings, so that the Board can
make informed decisions on matters placed before it. Each director also has
separate and independent access to the senior management where necessary.

Minutes of the Board meetings are kept by the Joint Company Secretary. Draft
minutes are circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting.

If a director or any of his or her associates has a material interest in a transaction,
that director is required to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at the meeting for approving the transaction.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company uses a formal and transparent procedure for the appointment,
election and removal of directors, which is set out in the Company’s Articles
of Incorporation and is led by the Nomination Committee, which will make
recommendations on new director appointments to the Board for approval.

Each of the NEDs and INEDs is engaged on a service contract for a term of 3
years, subject to re-election. Each of the EDs is also party to a service contract,
with their appointment subject to re-election. Further details of the
appointment, election and removal of directors are set out in the “Directors
and Senior Management” section on pages 72 to 78 of this Annual Report.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy that provides that the Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of the Board's performance and to support the attainment of the
Company’s strategic objections. Under the policy, all Board appointments will
be based on merit, in the context of the knowledge, skills and experience that
the Board as a whole requires to be effective.

Induction and Ongoing Development

Each newly appointed director receives a formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction to ensure his or her understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and awareness of a director’s responsibilities and obligations.
All directors participate in continuous professional development in order to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Each member of the Board
attended training on corporate governance, regulatory developments or other
relevant topics during the year ended December 31, 2014, and directors are
continually updated on developments in the statutory and regulatory regime
and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

BEREHA R
BHEHESESRNBENERKD 148 AEE
BESHH MARAGESSSE-RERS
EREARHELN - BFAENZHRERESR
NEHZEBEALAESRM - AARAERR
BREEREBNBEAARET  MEKEE
ERESEMEASEHESZSSRETAR
PIRRREMESSSRANETNETTNER
TEREESZL  UEESSTRMRENS
HIFEABRE - RESTFUREEERHERR
BEBESREER -

EE2SRREMBRELOINERST - TERE
ERRBRERENSEREARESEHUK
£ER -

HESFEHEMABHBALTREBERZFEFTEKR
i BZESEMUEEERSNEE LHE
REBBTETTNEEAR -

EERERES

ALBHELE  BENRLESERLRMAE
PENRF  FHEREFERAQRANERRLE
RAAKEHREESSRE  UHHEEHES
BEZSRHEBZZRUEHE o

EFUTESRBELFPTESIRERE SN
T AHA=F  UWALEREFT SHTE
EYBRBEINING  HENETBEBER
BT - BHAZET BERBERESNE—SHE
HRRERENZBEEERRERE] —
'g\*ﬁ °

EFEMBESTILER
FRRAREARREESERES TLHRAHRK
REZRBPALBENEKREREBRS -
It EEECHRMESEREZ TILEEK - RE
RBK EEEMENMBEASRESSRRE
BEREFEMFENNE - REERERMAEL -

R RIGEER
FEENZSBESKEIES - 2ERESHIFT
MABES  URREBREAAANERRE
B BHRPPBRESNEIREE - 2HREEY
SHEBESERRE  URRRESSEHNAERR
RIGe BZE2014F12831BLFE  EEE2%
REHNESHEGEES  EERRREMEES
BEWEI > MESTEFEESEREENESE
FIEURERRENRIEE » UIRBBEITHS
WIE o

FABEBERAT —O—NEFH |

63



64

Corporate Governance Report ¥Ea#H%

Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company'’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference which are posted on the Company’s website
and are available to shareholders upon request. Meetings of the Board
committees generally follow the same procedures as for meetings of the Board.

Audit Committee

The Board has established an Audit Committee and has adopted written terms
of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the committee. The
Audit Committee consists of four members, namely Mr. Paul Etchells (Chairman
of the Audit Committee) (INED), Mr. Keith Hamill (INED), Mr. Miguel Ko (INED)
and Ms. Ying Yeh (INED).

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, at least one member of the
Audit Committee possesses appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting or related financial management expertise in discharging the
responsibilities of the Audit Committee.

All members have sufficient experience in reviewing audited financial
statements as aided by the auditors of the Company whenever required.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
Company’s financial reporting process and internal controls, to monitor the
integrity of the Company’s financial statements and financial reporting, and
to oversee the audit process.

There were four meetings of the Audit Committee held during the year ended
December 31, 2014. The following is a summary of the work performed by
the Audit Committee during 2014:

e Reviewed and approved the internal audit work plan for 2014, and received
periodic updates on the status of internal audit activities from the Company’s
Vice President of Internal Audit;

e Established a policy in respect of the engagement of the external auditors
to provide non-audit services, and approved the non-audit services that
could be provided by the external auditors during the year ended December
31, 2014;

e Reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls for the year
ended December 31, 2013;

e Reviewed the annual financial statements, annual results announcement
and annual report for the year ended December 31, 2013 and recommended
approval of such documents to the Board;

e Reviewed the independence of the Company’s external auditors and
recommended the re-engagement of the external auditors for the year
ended December 31, 2014;

e Reviewed the interim financial statements, interim results announcement
and interim report of the Company for the six months ended June 30,
2014, and recommended approval of such documents to the Board;
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e Reviewed and approved the plan for and scope of the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2014 and the fee proposal for such audit;

e Reviewed arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties;

e Met twice with the Company’s external auditors without the presence of
the EDs or management; and

e Met with the Company’s Vice President of Internal Audit without the
presence of the EDs or management.

In addition, during the first three months of 2015 the Audit Committee
reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls for the year
ended December 31, 2014, reviewed the annual financial statements, annual
results announcement and annual report for the year ended December 31,
2014 and recommended approval of such documents to the Board; and
reviewed the independence of the Company’s external auditors and
recommended the re-engagement of the external auditors for the year ending
December 31, 2015.

Nomination Committee

The Board has established a Nomination Committee and has adopted written
terms of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the committee.
The Nomination Committee consists of four members, namely Mr. Timothy
Parker (Chairman of the Nomination Committee) (NED), Mr. Paul Etchells
(INED), Mr. Miguel Ko (INED), and Ms. Ying Yeh (INED).

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, to make recommendations to the Board
with respect to any changes to the composition of the Board, and to assess
the independence of the INEDs. When identifying suitable candidates, the
Nomination Committee shall (where applicable and appropriate) use open
advertising or the services of external advisers and consider candidates from
a wide range of backgrounds on merit and against objective criteria.

There was one meeting of the Nomination Committee held during the year
ended December 31, 2014. The following is a summary of the work performed
by the Nomination Committee during 2014:

e Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

e Reviewed the time and contribution required from directors;

e Assessed the independence of the INEDs and concluded that each of the
INEDs satisfied the independence requirements applicable to INEDs;

e (Considered the retirement and re-nomination of directors to stand for re-
election, and the nomination of a new director to stand for election, to the
Board at the Company’s 2014 annual general meeting of shareholders;

e Recommended the re-designation of two NEDs as INEDs; and

e Discussed succession planning for the Company’s senior management.
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Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee and has adopted written
terms of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the committee.
The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, namely Mr. Miguel
Ko (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (INED), Mr. Paul Etchells (INED),
Mr. Hardy McLain (INED) and Ms. Ying Yeh (INED).

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration, as well as to determine the specific remuneration packages of
all EDs and certain members of senior management.

There were five meetings of the Remuneration Committee held during the
year ended December 31, 2014. The following is a summary of the work
performed by the Remuneration Committee during 2014:

e Approved the grant of share options to senior managers and the EDs, and
recommended to the Board the approval of the grant of share options to
other employees of the Group, on January 7, 2014;

e Reviewed and approved the compensation of each member of the
Company’s senior management, including the EDs, for 2014, including
certain adjustments to such compensation during the course of 2014,

e Reviewed the remuneration of directors for 2014,

e Approved the participation of newly appointed or promoted members of
the Company’s senior management, including an ED, in the Company’s
Management Severance Plan, which establishes guidelines that may be
modified by the Remuneration Committee in its discretion with respect to
severance payable to certain members of senior management, including
the EDs, if their employment with the Group is terminated by the Group
without cause or by the senior manager for good reason;

e Approved the termination of the participation of a former member of the
Company’s senior management in the Company’s Management Severance
Plan; and

e Approved amendments to the outstanding share options held by the Non-
Executive Chairman and an ED in order to clarify that the options held by
such individuals would continue to vest and would remain outstanding in
accordance with their terms so long as such individuals continue to serve
as directors of the Company.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
The following is a general description of the emolument policy of the Company,
as well as the basis of determining the emoluments payable to the directors.

The remuneration of directors is determined by the Board, which receives
recommendations from the Remuneration Committee. The remuneration of
directors also has to be approved by special resolutions at the annual general
meeting of the shareholders of the Company. All of the NEDs and all of the
INEDs received directors’ fees, except that Mr. Parker did not receive any
director’s fees following his re-designation as a NED effective October 1, 2014.
EDs did not receive any directors’ fees.
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Under the Company’s current compensation arrangements, the EDs and senior
management receive cash compensation in the form of salaries as well as
bonuses that are subject to performance targets.

Remuneration of the directors (including fees, salaries, discretionary bonuses,
share-based compensation expense and other benefits) was approximately
US$9.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2014. The aggregate amount
of emoluments for the five highest paid individuals of the Group, including
certain EDs, was approximately US$10.1 million for the year ended December
31, 2014. No amounts have been paid to the directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office for the year ended December 31, 2014. No
directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments to which they were
entitled for the year ended December 31, 2014.

The following table summarizes the emoluments, by band, of the members
of the Company’s senior management team during the year ended December
31, 2014:

US$750,000 - 1,000,000: 3 employees

Over US$1,000,000: 6 employees

External Auditors and Auditors’ Remuneration

The auditors’ statement about their reporting responsibilities for the Company’s
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on page
101 of this Annual Report.

The fees in relation to the audit and related services for the year ended
December 31, 2014 provided by KPMG, the external auditors of the Company,
were as follows:
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Annual audit and interim review services

FEELRPHEHRE

Due diligence and other acquisition related non-audit services
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Permitted tax services
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Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements
The Board acknowledges that it holds responsibility for:

e QOverseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the Company
with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company; and

e Selecting suitable accounting policies and applying them consistently with
the support of reasonable judgment and estimates.

The Board ensures the timely publication of the financial statements of the
Company.

Management provides explanations and information to the Board to enable
it to make an informed assessment of the financial and other information to
be approved.

The Board strives to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
of the Company’s financial reporting, including annual and interim reports,
other price-sensitive announcements, and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators and information required to
be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards.

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company keeps proper
accounting records, for safeguarding the Company’s assets and for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention of fraud and other irregularities.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Internal Controls
The Board places great importance on internal control and is responsible for
ensuring that the Company maintains sound and effective internal controls.

The Company’s internal audit department reviews the adequacy and
effectiveness of the internal control system. The internal and external audit
plans are discussed and agreed each year with the Audit Committee.

The Board has reviewed the overall effectiveness of the Company’s system of
internal control for the year ended December 31, 2014. The Board has
delegated to the Audit Committee responsibility for reviewing the Company’s
internal controls and reporting the committee’s findings to the Board. In
conducting such review, the Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, has (i)
reviewed the Company’s internal audit activities during the year and discussed
such activities and the results thereof with the Company’s Vice President of
Internal Audit, (i) reviewed and discussed the scope and results of the annual
audit with the Company’s external auditors, and (iii) reviewed with management
the results of the Company’s internal management representation process that
was performed in connection with the preparation of the annual financial
statements. Based on its review, the Board is not aware of any material defects
in the effectiveness of internal controls.

| Samsonite International S.A. Annual Report 2014

EXEFHGAMBRRYELE
BEEEABHAER:

o ERARNAMBHRRNERIE  UBERZ
LHRBRES AT RBRADTHEHAR
no R

o EHSEMETTERLEUSEHAER MG
ERERZEER -

EZERFAADAIRETBIMBEE -

EEEOESSRUBERENUEETHRET
RN R A EREH RS -

EERRHRRAAANSBEEETTE B
WRSBTHE  BEMBREEFERER
RS « EARESRER A RARE R
BT BEO MBI R O RRR A
HEURREATAE R EARENTAT R
BroES o

EESRABRRADAFEZESHTE R
BANREE  URRWSED R EEEAER
FREMTEEHRNER

BV FNREMIREATABEENEH
RN BEHA L AEEFECETRERR
& o

PR i
BEZERAERAMER  YEERRAQAE
FIRRR AR o

FARANELDEABEERGRERHERA
MEELRY - BRZEEBFRANRINDE
BT ERETEN REHTE

EEECHAQATEE2014F 128318 LEE
MADEEHIEN RN RETR - ES8E
ERAERZESEERFNDANABEERE
EEERZESERALERE  c ERZEERKE
EERRTBER(VRFRDRAFRARDELE
BRERAFDAPELBEHNZSTHREL
RETHE > ()T REARQ B IMNEZEE
FEEZNSEERER ki) HEEBRIALD
AEGREFENBREBETEITHANEEE
BHEFNER - REHRT  ESSL AT
RMEERAFEEMEAXNZZE ©



Communications with Shareholders and Investor Relations
The Company strives to maintain a high level of transparency in communications
with shareholders and investors. The Company keeps a constant dialogue with
the investment community through company visits, conference calls,
information sessions and participation in major investor conferences to
communicate the Company’s business strategies, developments and goals.

The Company’s annual and interim reports, the current version of the
Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the Company’s stock exchange filings,
video webcasts, press releases and other information and updates on the
Company’s operations and financial performance are available for public access
on the Company’s website, www.samsonite.com, and some of them are also

available on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend the Company’s Annual
General Meeting (“AGM") and other general meetings, to communicate their
views and concerns to the Board directly so as to ensure a high level of
accountability and also to stay informed of the Company’s strategies,
developments and goals.

The 2015 AGM wiill be held on June 4, 2015. The notice of AGM wiill be sent
to the shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

Shareholders Rights

Procedure for Shareholders to Convene a General Meeting
Pursuant to Article 13.10 of the Articles of Incorporation, any one or more
shareholder(s) who together hold not less than 5% of the issued and
outstanding shares of the Company that carry the right to vote at general
meetings may convene a general meeting by depositing a written request
signed by such shareholders and addressed to the attention of the Company’s
Joint Company Secretary at the registered office of the Company in Luxembourg
or at the Company’s office in Hong Kong, the addresses of which are set out
below.

Such request must specify the objects of the meeting. If the Board does not
within two calendar days from the date of deposit of the request proceed duly
to convene the meeting to be held within a further 28 calendar days, the
shareholders signing the request (or any of them representing more than one-
half of the total voting rights of all shareholders signing the request) may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings may be convened by the Board. No general meeting
convened by request of the shareholders may be held later than three months
after the date of deposit of the request.

Procedure for Shareholders to Make Enquires to the Board
Shareholders may make enquiries to the Board in writing by sending such
enquiries to the attention of the Company’s Joint Company Secretary at the
registered office of the Company in Luxembourg or at the Company’s office
in Hong Kong, the addresses of which are set out below. The Joint Company
Secretary will forward enquiries to the Chairman for consideration.
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In addition, shareholders in attendance at any general meeting of the
Company’s shareholders may make enquiries at such meeting to the Chairman
of the Board, the chairmen of the various Board committees, or to other
directors in attendance at such meeting.

Procedure for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at General
Meetings

Pursuant to Article 13.11 of the Articles of Incorporation, upon a written
request by (i) one or more shareholder(s) representing not less than 2.5% of
the total voting rights of all shareholders who at the date of such request have
a right to vote at the meeting to which the request relates, or (i) not less than
50 shareholders holding shares in the Company on which there has been paid
up an average sum, per shareholder, of not less than HK$2,000, the Company
shall, at the expense of the shareholders making the request (a) give to
shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may be properly moved and is intended to be
moved at that meeting, and (b) circulate to shareholders entitled to receive
notice of any general meeting a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with in the meeting.

Pursuant to Article 13.12 of the Articles of Incorporation, such request must
be signed by all the shareholders making the request (or two or more copies
between them containing the signatures of all the shareholders making the
request) and deposited at the registered office of the Company in Luxembourg
or at the Company’s office in Hong Kong, the addresses of which are set out
below.

Such request must be deposited (i) not less than six weeks before the meeting
in question in the case of a request proposing that a resolution be adopted at
the meeting, and (ii) not less than one week before the meeting in the case
of any request that does not propose that a resolution be adopted at the
meeting.

In addition, one or more shareholder(s) who together hold at least 10% of
the Company'’s issued and outstanding shares may request that one or more
additional items be put on the agenda of any general meeting. Such request
must be sent to the registered office of the Company in Luxembourg by
registered mail not less than five days before the meeting.

Except pursuant to the procedures described above, a shareholder may not
make a motion at a general meeting.

Procedure for Electionto the Office of Director upon Shareholder
Proposal

A shareholder who intends to propose a candidate for election to the office
of director of the Company shall provide the Company’s Joint Company
Secretary with a written notice reflecting its intention to propose a person for
election to the office of director of the Company.
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The notice shall be delivered by the shareholder at the registered office of the
Company in Luxembourg or at the Company’s office in Hong Kong, the
addresses of which are set out below, during a period commencing no earlier
than the day after the dispatch of the convening notice of the meeting
scheduled for such election and ending no later than seven days prior to the
date of such meeting. Such notice must be delivered by a shareholder (not
being the person to be proposed) who is entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting. In addition, the candidate proposed for election shall deliver to the
Company’s Joint Company Secretary a signed written notice reflecting his
willingness to be elected as a director of the Company.

In accordance with Article 13.5 of the Articles of Incorporation of the Company,
the appointment of the director will be made by way of a general shareholders'
meeting of the Company and by ordinary resolution adopted at a simple
majority of the votes cast.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to one
of the following addresses marked for the attention of the Joint Company
Secretary:

Registered Office in Luxembourg:
13-15 Avenue de la Liberté
L-1931, Luxembourg

Principal place of business in Hong Kong:
25/F, Tower 2, The Gateway,

Harbour City, 25 Canton Road,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.
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General
The Board currently consists of nine directors, comprising three Executive
Directors, one Non-Executive Director and five Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

In accordance with code provision A.4.2 as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, every director, including those appointed for a specific term,
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Under Article 8.1 of the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, the directors
shall be elected by the shareholders at a general meeting, and the term of
office of a director shall be three years, upon the expiry of which each shall
be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, during the year ended December 31, 2014, Mr. Kyle Gendreau
and Ms. Ying Yeh retired by rotation, and having been eligible, offered
themselves for re-election as directors at the 2014 AGM. Both were re-elected
to three-year terms at the AGM by majority vote. In addition, Mr. Tom Korbas
was elected as an Executive Director to a three-year term at the 2014 AGM
by majority vote.

The terms of Messrs. Tainwala, Hamill and Ko will expire at the 2015 AGM of
the Company. The terms of Messrs. Parker, McLain and Etchells will expire at
the 2016 AGM of the Company. The terms of Messrs. Gendreau and Korbas
and Ms. Yeh will expire at the 2017 AGM of the Company.
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Directors %
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The Board is responsible and has general powers for the management and
conduct of the Company’s business. The following table sets out certain
information concerning the directors:

A Fie Bz Z1EHH FTERE
Name Age Position Date of Appointment Principal Responsibilities’
Timothy Charles 59 Non-Executive Director and March 2011 Leading the Board and
Parker Chairman 2011534 ensuring the Board
EHITREEFHTIE functions effectively and
acts in the best interest
of the Company
BEEET > UERE
EEAREFBREAD
AIREFZRTSE
Ramesh Dungarmal 55 Executive Director and Chief As Executive Director: Overall strategic planning
Tainwala Executive Officer March 2011 and management of the
PITESRITHAS As Chief Executive Officer: Group’s operations
October 2014 REEEB BRI
RHFATES : 2011534 HEREE
RITHAEE © 20145108
Kyle Francis 45 Executive Director and Chief March 2011 Management of the
Gendreau Financial Officer 20114348 Group's finance and
HITESRUTEAE treasury matters
ERARENIHR
BEE
Tom Korbas 63 Executive Director and June 2014 Management and
President, North America 2014568 development of the
HTESFRAEINERR Group's business in
the United States and
Canada
REEREERMER
HEBEER R
Keith Hamill 62 Independent Non-Executive March 2011
Director 2011438
BUFHTES
Bruce Hardy MclLain g2 Independent Non-Executive March 2011
(Hardy) Director 20114348
BYFHTES
Paul Kenneth Etchells g4 Independent Non-Executive May 2011
Director 2011458
BN FHITES
Miguel Kai Kwun Ko g2 Independent Non-Executive May 2011
= B Director 2011458
BYFHITES
Ying Yeh 66 Independent Non-Executive May 2011
R Director 2011458
B FHITES
Note FfizE

T Asis usual for a company of this size, the Independent Non-Executive Directors do not have specific operational responsibilities but rather, with the benefit of their
particular experiences, provide strategic guidance and leadership to the Board.
RIERER  MRENDAE  BUFHTESYEBELEST  RMRENEELCREAROESSRHRKIZEREL
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Executive Directors

Mr. Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala, aged 55, has served as an Executive
Director of the Company since its incorporation in March 2011 and as an
executive director of the consolidated group since February 2011. Mr. Tainwala
has served as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer since October 1, 2014.
In his role as Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Tainwala is responsible for the
Company’s overall strategic planning and for managing the Group’s operations.
Prior to his appointment as Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Tainwala served as the
Company’s Chief Operating Officer from March 2014 until October 2014.
Before his appointment as Chief Operating Officer, Mr. Tainwala served as the
Company'’s President, Asia-Pacific and Middle East. Mr. Tainwala has been the
General Manager of the Group’s Middle Eastern operation since January 2007
and has been the Chief Operating Officer of the Group’s Indian operation since
June 2000. Prior to joining the Company in November 1995, Mr. Tainwala was
an entrepreneur in the plastic processing and consumer goods industries
including with Tainwala Chemicals & Plastics (India) Limited with which he was
associated from 1985 to 2008. Mr. Tainwala was also an independent non-
executive director of Donear Industries Limited (1990 to 2013) and Basant
Agro Tech (India) Limited (2005 to 2013), both listed on the Bombay Stock
Exchange and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited. Mr. Tainwala holds
a Master's degree in Management Studies from the Birla Institute of Technology
and Science, Pilani, India (1982).

Mr. Kyle Francis Gendreau, aged 45, has served as an Executive Director of
the Company since its incorporation in March 2011 and as an executive director
of the consolidated group since January 2009. He has served as Chief Financial
Officer since January 2009. Mr. Gendreau is responsible for managing all
aspects of the Group’s finance and treasury matters. Mr. Gendreau joined the
Company in June 2007 as Vice President of Corporate Finance and as Assistant
Treasurer. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Gendreau held various positions
including vice president of finance and chief financial officer at Zoots
Corporation, a venture capital-backed start-up company (2000 to 2007),
assistant vice president of finance and director of SEC reporting at Specialty
Catalog Corporation, a listed catalog retailer (1997 to 2000) and a manager
at Coopers & Lybrand in Boston (1991 to 1996). Mr. Gendreau holds a BS in
Business Administration from Stonehill College, Easton, Massachusetts, USA
(1991) and is a Certified Public Accountant in Massachusetts.
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Mr. Tom Korbas, aged 63, has served as an Executive Director of the Company
since June 2014. Mr. Korbas is the Company’s President, North America and
is responsible for the overall management and development of the Group’s
business in the United States and Canada. He has served as President, North
America since April 2014 before which he served as President, Americas since
2004. Mr. Korbas joined the Company in 1997. His previous positions with
the Company include: Vice President/General Manager of the Company’s US
wholesale business (2000 to 2004), Vice President of Sales and Operations
(1998 to 2000) and Senior Vice President of Soft-Side and Casual Bags (1997
to 1998). Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Korbas was vice president of
operations (1986 to 1997), director of manufacturing operations, and
engineering manager for American Tourister. Mr. Korbas holds a BS in Industrial
Engineering from Northeastern University, Boston, Massachusetts, USA (1973)
and an MBA from Babson College, Wellesley, Massachusetts, USA (1976).

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Timothy Charles Parker, aged 59, has served as the Chairman of the
Board of Directors since the Company was incorporated in March 2011. As
Chairman he is responsible for leading the Board and ensuring that the Board
functions effectively and acts in the best interests of the Company. Mr. Parker
was the Company’s Chief Executive Officer from January 2009 until September
30, 2014. He served as non-executive chairman of the consolidated group
from November 2008 until January 2009, and as executive chairman of the
consolidated group since January 2009. Mr. Parker has a long history of
managing large businesses. Prior to joining the Company he was chief executive
of: The Automobile Association (2004 to 2007), the car-repair firm Kwik-Fit
(2002 to 2004), Clarks, the shoemaker (1997 to 2002) and Kenwood
Appliances (1989 to 1995). Mr. Parker is currently a director of Archive
Investments and is a member of the U.K. Advisors Board of CVC Capital
Partners ("CVC"). Since November 2014, Mr. Parker has been Chairman of
the National Trust, a U.K. charitable organization. He has previously held non-
executive directorships with Alliance Boots, Compass and Legal and General.
Mr. Parker has also previously advised ministers and senior civil servants on
nationalized industry policy in his capacity as an economist at the British
Treasury (1977 to 1979). Mr. Parker holds a MA in Philosophy, Politics and
Economics from the University of Oxford, Oxford, the United Kingdom (1977)
and a Master’s in Business Studies from London Graduate School of Business
Studies, London, the United Kingdom (1981).
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Keith Hamill, aged 62, has served as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since June 2014, before which he served as a Non-
Executive Director from May 2011 until June 2014. He has served as a non-
executive director of the consolidated group from October 2009 until May
2011. He is currently the chairman of Horsforth Holdings Ltd., a privately held
investment holding company for a number of leisure businesses, chairman of
Bagir Group Ltd., an apparel company listed on the AIM market operated by
the London Stock Exchange (since April 2014), and an independent non-
executive director of easylet plc (since 2009), which is listed on the London
Stock Exchange. Mr. Hamill's prior experience includes being chairman of
inter-dealer broker Tullett Prebon plc (2006 to 2013), stockbroker Collins
Stewart plc (2000 to 2006) and software developer Alterian plc (2000 to 2011),
and an independent non-executive director of the distribution group
Electrocopments plc (1999 to 2008) and of Max Property Group plc (2010 to
2014), all of which are or were listed on the London Stock Exchange. He was
also an independent non-executive director of NASDAQ-listed publisher and
printer Cadmus Communications Inc. (2002 to 2007). Mr. Hamill has also
chaired the board of a number of UK privately owned companies which
included Endell Group Holdings Limited (parent company of Travelodge Hotels
Limited) (2003 to 2012), and insurance brokers Heath Lambert Limited (2009
to 2011), HGL Holdings Limited (2005 to 2011) and construction business
Avant Homes Limited (2013 to 2014). He was chief financial officer of hotel
group Forte plc (1993 to 1996), retailer WH Smith plc (1996 to 2000) and
United Distillers International Limited (1990 to 1993), and director of financial
control at Guinness plc (1988 to 1991). Mr. Hamill was a partner at
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (1986 to 1988). He was also chairman of the
board of the University of Nottingham, United Kingdon. He holds a BA in
Politics (1974) and an Honorary Doctorate in Law from the University of
Nottingham and is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants, England
and Wales.
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Mr. Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy), aged 62, has served as a Non-Executive
Director since May 2011. He served as a non-executive director of the
consolidated group from October 2007 until May 2011. Mr. MclLain is a co-
founder, and serves on the board, of CVC (formerly a subsidiary of Citigroup
known as Citicorp Venture Capital), from which he retired as managing partner
in December 2012. Mr. McLain joined Citicorp Venture Capital in 1988, and
in 1993 participated along with fellow managers in the acquisition of Citicorp
Venture Capital from Citigroup and the founding of CVC. Since founding CVC
he has been involved in and held directorships with a number of companies
including the Dorna Sports Group (1998 to 2006), Rapala VMC OYJ (1998 to
2005), Punch Taverns Plc (formerly known as Punch Group Limited) (1999 to
2002), Spirit Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Spirit Amber Holdings)
(2003 to 2006), and Kappa Holding BV (1998 to 2000). He is currently a
director of Formula One, the Haymon Sports LLC and the Lecta Group. Prior
to joining Citicorp Development Capital, Mr. McLain worked for Citicorp’s
investment management (1986 to 1987) and mezzanine finance (1987 to
1988) groups. Mr. McLain holds a BA in Public Policy and Psychology from
Duke University, Durham, North Carolina, USA, where he graduated in 1976,
and an MBA in Finance and Marketing from UCLA, Los Angeles, California,
USA (1981). He serves on the Board of Visitors for both the Sanford School of
Public Policy at Duke University and the UCLA Anderson School of Management.

Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells, aged 64, has served as an Independent Non-
Executive Director since May 2011. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of Swire Properties Limited, a leading developer, owner and
operator of mixed use, principally commercial properties in Hong Kong and
the PRC, and of China Foods Limited, a company engaged in food and
beverage processing and distribution, both of which are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Etchells has served
as an advisor to Cassia Investments Limited, a private equity firm, since
November 2012. Mr. Etchells has also held various positions at The Coca-Cola
Company (1998 to 2010), including deputy president of Coca-Cola Pacific
(2007 to 2010) and president of Coca-Cola China (2002 to 2007). Prior to
joining The Coca-Cola Company, Mr. Etchells held various positions at the
Swire Group (1976 to 1998), including managing director of Swire Beverages
(1995 to 1998), general manager of the Industries Division of Swire Pacific
(1989 to 1995) and finance manager of the Industries Division of Swire Pacific
(1981 to 1989). Mr. Etchells holds a BA in Political Studies from the University
of Leeds, Leeds, the United Kingdom (1971) and a MA in Asia Pacific Studies
from the University of Leeds (2013). He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Miguel Kai Kwun Ko, aged 62, has served as an Independent Non-
Executive Director since May 2011. Mr. Ko has held various executive and
non-executive positions in international hotel companies and other corporations
in Asia. He is currently executive director of Singbridge Holdings Pte Ltd. and
corporate advisor to Temasek International Advisors Pte Ltd. (each since
October 2014) and non-executive chairman of Starwood Hotels & Resorts,
Asia-Pacific, from which he retired as President, Asia-Pacific in 2012 after
working with Starwood Hotels & Resorts since 2000. Mr. Ko currently holds
non-executive directorships in Merlin Entertainments Plc and Surbana
International Consultants Holdings Pte Ltd., each since 2013 and Changi
Airport Group since 2010. Prior to joining Starwood Hotels & Resorts, Mr. Ko
held the position of deputy chairman and chief executive officer at City
E-Solutions (formerly known as CDL Hotels) (2000), various positions including
president at Pepsi-Cola International for Asia Pacific (1992 to 1999) and various
positions at ITT Sheraton Corporation (1979 to 1992). Mr. Ko has also previously
held various executive and non-executive directorships with Millennium and
Copthorne plc UK, Amarin Plaza, Thailand, City e-Solutions Hong Kong
(formerly known as CDL Hotels), Serm Suk Company, Thailand, Royal Orchid
Hotel (Thailand) Public Company Ltd, Civil Aviation Authority, Singapore and
Delta Topco Limited (a privately held holding company for Formula One PLC).
Mr. Ko holds a BA in Economics from the University of Massachusetts (1975)
and a MBA from Suffolk University, Boston, Massachusetts, USA (1979). He
also qualified as a Certified Public Accountant in New Hampshire in 1982,
though does not currently practice.

Ms. Ying Yeh, aged 66, has served as an Independent Non-Executive Director
since May 2011. Ms. Yeh has extensive experience as an executive and a non-
executive director of major international corporations. She was the chairman
of Nalco Greater China Region until June 2011. Nalco is one of the world’s
largest sustainability service companies. Ms. Yeh currently holds non-executive
directorships at ABB Ltd (a company listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange, the
stock exchanges in Stockholm (NASDAQ OMX Stockholm) and New York
(NYSE)) and InterContinental Hotels Group plc (a company listed on the main
board of the London Stock Exchange). She was previously a non-executive
director of AB Volvo (a company listed on the OMX Nordic Exchange,
Stockholm). Prior to joining Nalco, Ms. Yeh worked in various Asian divisions
of Eastman Kodak (1997 to 2009) and also held various positions with the
United States Government, Foreign Service (1982 to 1997). Ms. Yeh holds a
BA in Literature and International Relations from National Taiwan University,
Taiwan (1967).
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Changes in Information of Directors

A summary of changes in information concerning certain Directors of the
Company that have occurred subsequent to the publication of the Company’s
2014 interim report pursuant to Rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules is as
follows:

e Mr. Parker stepped down as Chief Executive Officer of the Company and
has been re-designated from Executive Director to Non-Executive Director
of the Company, each with effect from October 1, 2014.

e Mr. Tainwala was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company
with effect from October 1, 2014. He continues to serve as an Executive
Director of the Company.

e Mr. Hamill resigned as an independent non-executive director of Max
Property Group plc effective November 25, 2014 following the sale of the
business, and he resigned as chairman of Avant Homes Limited effective
December 12, 2014, also following the sale of the business.

e Mr. Ko was appointed as executive director of Singbridge Holdings Pte Ltd.,
and as corporate advisor to Temasek International Advisors Pte Ltd., each
effective October 2014. He resigned as a non-executive director of Delta
Topco Limited (a privately held holding company for Formula One PLC)
effective December 2014.
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Senior Management

Our senior management is responsible for the day-to-day management of our
business. The following table sets out certain information concerning our
senior management:

BREEE
EREEERERMNERNAREERE - TRH
JIEBERERRNETER

e Fie B

Name Age Position

Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala 55 Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
HTESFRITHER

Kyle Francis Gendreau 45 Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
HAITEERUEEE

Tom Korbas 63 Executive Director and President, North America
HITEEFRIENEEE

Fabio Rugarli 50 President, Europe
BUM @A

Leo Boo Suk Suh (Leo) 46 President, Asia Pacific and Middle East
DARTREAR

Frank Ma 52 President, Greater China

SR RehEBEH

Juan Roberto Guzman Martinez 49 President, Latin America

(Roberto) T EMNBRE

Andrew David Wells 54 Chief Information Officer
EAaEs

John Bayard Livingston 47 Vice President, General Counsel and Joint Company Secretary

BME - REEBERBE QATWE

Mr. Fabio Rugarli serves as the Company’s President, Europe, and is responsible
for the overall management and development of the Group’s business in
Europe. Mr. Rugarli joined the Company in 1989. His previous positions with
the Company include General Manager for Samsonite Italy (2002 to 2009)
and Marketing and Sales Director for the luggage division in Italy (1996 to
2001). Mr. Rugarli holds a degree in Business Administration from the University
Bocconi, Milan, Italy (1988).

Mr. Boo Suk Suh (Leo) serves as the Company’s President, Asia Pacific and
Middle East, and is responsible for the overall management and development
of the Company’s business in Asia (with the exception of Greater China and
the Philippines). Mr. Suh joined the Company in 2005. He was promoted to
his current role on March 18, 2014. His previous positions with the Company
include Executive Vice President, Asia (2013 to 2014) and General Manager,
Korea (2005 to 2013). Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Suh served in sales
and marketing roles with a number of global luxury brands’ South Korean
operations, including Prada, Bally and Chanel. Mr. Suh holds a bachelor’s
degree in business administration from Yonsei University, Seoul, South Korea.
He also attended the Advanced Distribution Management Program course at
Yonsei Graduate School of Economics and the Global Leader Course at Korea
Graduate School of Education in Seoul, South Korea. Mr. Suh also studied at
the University of California, San Diego.
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Mr. Frank Ma serves as the Company’s President, Greater China, and is
responsible for the overall management and development of the Group’s
business in mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and the Philippines.
He was promoted to his current role in January 2015. Mr. Ma was the Vice
President of Samsonite Greater China from 2007 until January 2015. His
previous positions with the Company include General Manager of Samsonite
China (1999 to 2007) and Operations Manager of Samsonite China (1998).
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ma held responsibilities in plant operations
and process design with CP Group, Cargill Corp. & Shandong Chemical Design
Institute. He holds a Master’s of Engineering from Tianjin University, China
(1988) and an MBA from Canberra University, Australia (2004).

Mr. Juan Roberto Guzman Martinez (Roberto) serves as the Company’s
President, Latin America, and is responsible for the overall management and
development of the Company’s business in Latin America. Mr. Guzman joined
the Company in July 2007 when the Group formed Samsonite Chile S.A. as
a joint venture with Mr. Guzman following the acquisition by the Group of
the Saxoline group of companies from Mr. Guzman's family. He was promoted
to his current role in May 2014. From 2007 until his promotion in May 2014,
Mr. Guzman served as General Manager of Samsonite Chile S.A., and he
continues to be responsible for the management of the Group’s business in
Chile. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Guzman served in various roles for
the Saxoline group including General Manager (1998 to 2007), Deputy General
Manager (1996 to 1998) and Finance and Administration Manager (1989 to
1996). From 1988 to 1989 he worked as Operations Manager for Salomon
Brothers Chile. Mr. Guzman holds a degree in business engineering from
Pontificia Universidad Catolica de Chile, Santiago, Chile. He also attended the
Senior Executive Program at the London Business School.

Mr. Andrew David Wells is the Company’s Chief Information Officer and is
responsible for developing, structuring and implementing the Group’s global
information technology strategy and outsourced IT shared services. Mr. Wells
joined the Company in March 2009. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wells
was global chief information officer and senior vice president at Shire plc, a
FTSE 100 pharmaceutical company (2000 to 2008), supply chain director for
Bristol Myers Squibb Central & Eastern Europe Division (1996 to 1999) and
manager of Information Services International at Mars (1986 to 1996). Mr.
Wells holds a M Eng (Master’s of Engineering) from Cambridge University,
Cambridge, the United Kingdom (1994).
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Mr. John Bayard Livingston is Vice President, General Counsel and Joint
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Livingston is responsible for all of
the Company’s legal matters worldwide and provides counsel to senior
management and the Directors on matters of corporate governance. Mr.
Livingston joined the Company in July 2006 and was Vice President and General
Counsel for the Company’s Americas division until September 2009 when he
became Vice President and General Counsel of the Company. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Livingston was in-house counsel (2002 to 2006) at Reebok
International Ltd. and was an associate in the corporate department of Ropes
& Gray (1995 to 2002). Mr. Livingston holds a BA in Political Science from
Colgate University, Hamilton, New York, USA (1989), and a J.D. from Boston
College Law School, Newton, Massachusetts, USA (1994).

Company Secretaries and Authorized Representatives

Mr. John Bayard Livingston and Ms. Chow Yuk Yin Ivy are the Company’s Joint
Company Secretaries while Mr. Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala and Ms. Chow
are the Company’s authorized representatives (pursuant to the Listing Rules).

During 2014, the Joint Company Secretaries complied with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules regarding professional training.

Relationships between Directors and Senior Managers
None of the directors or senior managers is related to any other director or
senior manager.
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Directors’ Report
ExgWmE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2014.

Principal Activities

Samsonite International S.A. (the “Company”), together with its consolidated
subsidiaries (the “Group”), is principally engaged in the design, manufacture,
sourcing and distribution of luggage, business and computer bags, outdoor
and casual bags, travel accessories and slim protective cases for personal
electronic devices throughout the world, primarily under the Samsonite®,
American Tourister®, Hartmann®, High Sierra®, Gregory®, Speck® and Lipault®
brand names and other owned and licensed brand names. The Group sells its
products through a variety of wholesale distribution channels, through its
company operated retail stores and through e-commerce. The principal
wholesale distribution customers of the Group are department and specialty
retail stores, mass merchants, catalog showrooms and warehouse clubs. The
Group sells its products in Asia, North America, Europe and Latin America.

Results and Distributions to Shareholders
The results of the Company are set out in the consolidated financial statements
on pages 102 to 185 of this Annual Report.

The Company will evaluate its distribution policy and distributions made (by
way of the Company’s ad hoc distributable reserve, dividends or otherwise) in
any particular year in light of its financial position, the prevailing economic
climate and expectations about the future macroeconomic environment and
business performance. The Company intends to increase distributions to
shareholders in line with its growth in earnings. The determination to make
distributions will be made upon the recommendation of the Board and the
approval of the Company’s shareholders and will be based upon the Company’s
earnings, cash flow, financial conditions, capital and other reserve requirements
and any other conditions which the Board deems relevant. The payment of
distributions may also be limited by legal restrictions and by financing
agreements that the Company may enter into in the future.

The Board recommends that a cash distribution in the amount of US$88.0
million, or approximately US$0.0625 per share based upon the number of
shares outstanding as of the date hereof (the “Distribution”) be made to the
Company’s shareholders from its ad hoc distributable reserve. The per share
amount of the Distribution is subject to change in the event that any new
shares are issued pursuant to the exercise of outstanding share options before
the record date for the Distribution. A further announcement will be made on
the record date of the Distribution in the event that the final amount per share
changes. The payment shall be made in US Dollars, except that payment to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members in Hong Kong
shall be paid in Hong Kong Dollars. The relevant exchange rate shall be the
opening buying rate of Hong Kong Dollars to US Dollars as announced by the
Hong Kong Association of Banks (wwwv.hkab.org.hk) on the day of the approval
of the Distribution.
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The Distribution will be subject to approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company. For determining the entitlement to attend
and vote at the AGM, the Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from June 2, 2015 to June 4, 2015, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. The record date to determine which
shareholders will be eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM will
be June 4, 2015. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on June 1, 2015.

Subject to the shareholders approving the recommended Distribution at the
forthcoming AGM, such Distribution will be payable on July 13, 2015 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on June 17,
2015. To determine eligibility for the Distribution, the register of members will
be closed from June 13, 2015 to June 17, 2015, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be entitled
to receive the Distribution, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch Share Registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong,
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on June 12, 2015.

The Distribution will not be subject to withholding tax under Luxembourg
laws.

Segment Information

An analysis of the Company’s performance by operating segment for the year
ended December 31, 2014 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the Company’s reserves during the year ended
December 31, 2014 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity on pages 106 and 107 of this Annual Report and in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At December 31, 2014, reserves available for distribution to shareholders
amounted to approximately US$2.2 billion as shown in the statutory financial
statements of Samsonite International S.A. and calculated in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.

| Samsonite International S.A. Annual Report 2014
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Share Award Scheme

On September 14, 2012, the Company’s shareholders adopted the Company’s
Share Award Scheme. The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to attract
skilled and experienced personnel, to incentivize them to remain with the
Group and to motivate them to strive for the future development and expansion
of the Group by providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests
in the Company. Awards under the Share Award Scheme may take the form
of either share options or restricted share units (“RSUs"), which may be granted
at the discretion of the Board to directors, employees or such other persons
as the Board may determine.

The exercise price of share options is determined at the time of grant by the
Board in its absolute discretion, but in any event shall not be less than the
higher of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.

As of February 28, 2015 (the “Latest Practicable Date”), the maximum
aggregate number of shares in respect of which awards may be granted
pursuant to the Share Award Scheme is 87,220,660 shares, representing
approximately 6.2% of the issued share capital of the Company. An individual
participant may be granted awards pursuant to the Share Award Scheme in
respect of a maximum of 1% of the Company’s total issued shares in any
12-month period. Any grant of awards to an individual participant in excess
of this limit is subject to independent shareholder’s approval.

On January 7, 2014, the Company granted share options exercisable for
12,266,199 ordinary shares to certain directors, key management personnel,
and other employees of the Group with an exercise price of HK$23.30 per
share. On May 29, 2014, the Company granted share options exercisable for
257,566 ordinary shares to an employee of the Group with an exercise price
of HK$24.77 per share. Such options are subject to pro rata vesting over a
4-year period, with 25% of the options vesting on each anniversary of the
grant date. The options have a 10-year term.

In accordance with the terms of the share options, holders of vested options
are entitled to buy newly issued ordinary shares of the Company at a purchase
price per share equal to the exercise price of the options. The fair value of
services received in return for share options granted is based on the fair value
of share options granted measured using the Black-Scholes valuation model.
The fair value calculated for share options is inherently subjective due to the
assumptions made and the limitations of the model utilized.
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The grant-date fair value of the share options granted is generally recognized
as an expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting period
of the awards. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
number of awards for which the vesting conditions are expected to be met,
such that the amount ultimately recognized is based on the number of awards
that meet the vesting conditions at the vesting date.

The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant
date of the share-based payment made on January 7, 2014.

Fair value at grant date HK$9.27
Share price at grant date HK$22.70
Exercise price HK$23.30
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 44.8%
Option life (expected weighted average life) 6.25 years
Expected dividends 0.9%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 1.7%

The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant
date of the share-based payment made on May 29, 2014.

Fair value at grant date HK$9.02
Share price at grant date HK$24.75
Exercise price HK$24.77
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 43.8%
Option life (expected weighted average life) 6.25 years
Expected dividends 1.8%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 1.4%

Expected volatility is estimated taking into account historic average share price
volatility as well as historic average share price volatility of comparable
companies given the limited trading history of the Company’s shares.

In total, share-based compensation expense of US$11.0 million and US$7.0
million was included in the consolidated income statement for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

| Samsonite International S.A. Annual Report2014
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Particulars and movements of share options during the year ended December

31, 2014 were as follows:

ZEMT :

BZE2014F12A3MBILEE  BRENFER

BREHE
Number of share options
ZERLAA
R E
(1)
#0145 il #0145 Closing price
1818 BAEE  BAGR /53 128318 SRARE  mmedately
As of Granted Exercised Cancelled As of (En) preceding the
REANEZ /B January 1, during the during the flapsed during December 31, #ikA il ] Exercise price date of grant
Name/category of grantee 2014 period period” the period 2014 Date of grant Exercise period per share (HKS) (HKS)
Directors
2
Timothy Parker - 1,821,615 - - 1,821,615 January7,2014  January 7, 2015 - 2330 2330
201481878 January 6, 2024
2015%1878 -
20245 186A
Timothy Parker 2,368,749 - - - 2,368,749 January 8,2013  January 8, 2014 - 1736 16.90
2013F188H  January 7, 2023
2014451788 -
2023%1A7R
Kyle Gendreau - 589,543 - - 589,543 January7,2014  January 7, 2015 - 2330 23.30
0141878 January 6, 2024
201551878 -
2024%1H6H
Kyle Gendreau 779,124 = = = 779,124 January 8,2013  January 8, 2014 - 17.36 16.90
2013F188H  lanuary 7, 2023
20144%148H -
2023F1A7A
Ramesh Tainwala - 638,033 - - 638,033  January7,2014  January 7, 2015- 2330 2330
20141878 January 6, 2024
2015%1878 -
20245 186A
Ramesh Tainwala 843,208 - - - 843,208  January8,2013  January 8, 2014 - 17.36 16.90
2013F1880  January 7, 2023
2014%1A8A -
2023%187H
Tom Korbas - 577,351 - - 577,351 January7,2014  January 7, 2015 - 2330 23.30
0141878 January 6, 2024
20151878 -
202451568
Tom Korbas 736,784 - (184,1%) - 552,588 January8,2013  January 8, 2014 - 17.36 16.90
20131888 January 7, 2023
2014F188H -
2023F1A7H
Total Directors 4727865 3626542  (184,19) - 8,170,211
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BREHE
Number of share options
SRR A
il G
(&)
20145 iR 20145 Closing price
1818 BARE R Vs 12A318 SRITEE immediately
As of Granted Exercised Cancelled As of (B7) preceding the
REANES /5 January 1, during the during the /lapsed during December 31, RiHA L Exercise price date of grant
Name/category of grantee 2014 period period”! the period 2014 Date of grant Exercise period per share (HK$) (HKS)
Others
A
Employees = 8,639,057 = (108,131) 85315260 January7,2014  January 7, 2015 - 23.30 2330
&8 201481878 January 6, 2024
201551778 -
2024E186H
Employee = 257,566 = = 257,566 May 29,2014 May 29, 2015 - 2477 25.25
&8 2014558298 May28, 2024
201545829 -
204558288
Employees 10,508,791 - (705,256) (129,494) 9,674,041 January8,2013  January 8, 2014 - 17.36 16.90
&8 131888 January 7, 2023
2014%F188H -
2023%1R7H
Employee 108,522 - - - 108,522 July 1,2013 July 1,2014- 18.68 18.68
& 013%7A18  June 30,2023
201487818 -
2023%6A30H
Total Employees 10,617,313 8,897,223 (705,256) (237,625) 18,571,655
(B
Total 15,345,178 12,523,765  (889,452) (237,625) 26,741,866
szt
Note Fffzt

" The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the date of exercise by participants was HK$24.21.

SRS ERETE A ARG MET IR ER242185T

Details of the accounting treatment for share options are set out in notes 3()
(vi) and 17(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Charitable Donations
Donations made for charitable and other purposes by the Group during the
year ended December 31, 2014 amounted to US$0.4 million.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company
during the year ended December 31, 2014 are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Principal Subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at December 31, 2014
are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Bank Loans
As at December 31, 2014, the Group had bank loans of approximately US$67.5
million that were repayable upon demand or within one year.

| Samsonite International S.A. Annual Report 2014
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentage of the Company’s purchases that were attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers was less than 30% during the year ended
December 31, 2014.

The percentage of the Company’s net sales that were attributable to the
Group's five largest customers was less than 30% during the year ended
December 31, 2014.

To the knowledge of the directors, none of the directors, their associates, or
any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the issued share capital of the Company) had a beneficial interest in
the Group's five largest suppliers and customers.

Five Year Financial Information
A summary of the results, assets, and liabilities of the Company for the last
five fiscal years is set out on page 186 of this Annual Report.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Incorporation or the laws of the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg.

Purchase, Sale, or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company issued 889,452
ordinary shares at a weighted-average exercise price of HK$17.36 per share
in connection with the exercise of share options that were granted under the
Company’s Share Award Scheme. There were no purchases or redemptions
of the Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended December 31, 2014.

Share Capital
Details of any movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.

TEEFRRIEER
BZ2014F12B31BEEE > A"EERRHE
BRI ADRAREENH L DA30% °

BZE2014F128318ILEE  AEFAEAREF
FELARARHEEFHENE DL PR30% °

BEEMA - BEESE  RENBBALRER
BRR BEZRA - AEEARAREHITRAS%
LLERER) RARBREAHERREFHER
BafEa -

AEMBER
ARRBERETRFENRE EEREEN
BIEHNANFHRE 186K ©

BEmEE
ARBWFEMR L ERARRERE R DA
WEBFBEBEERL -

BE HEIBEAATLHES

HZE2014F12831BLEEE  AAFFHAAT
R 7 82 B ET E1TE T 4% A0 BB R A 4T (R 1M 3
FHITEEEMR17.3658 T8 17889452 R & B
R BE2014F12831BEEE  KAAFH
B LA RASEEE BRI AN T LHES

i3
AABRFREARFZENFBERNGEEDS
Bk

FABEBERAT —O—NEFH |

89



920

Directors’ Report EE&3%

Directors
As at December 31, 2014 and up to the date of this Annual Report, the
composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors
Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala
Kyle Francis Gendreau

Tom Korbas

Non-Executive Director
Timothy Charles Parker

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Paul Kenneth Etchells

Keith Hamill

Miguel Kai Kwun Ko

Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy)

Ying Yeh

Biographical details of the directors of the Company as at the date of this
report are set out on pages 72 to 78 of this Annual Report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors who is proposed for re-election at the 2015 AGM has
or is proposed to have a service contract that is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Except as disclosed in respect of Mr. Ramesh Tainwala’s interests in certain of
the Company’s continuing connected transactions on pages 94 to 99, none
of the directors had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance subsisted during or at the end of the year to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party.

| Samsonite International S.A. Annual Report 2014
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares

As at December 31, 2014, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part
XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were
as follows:

1. Long position in the shares of the Company

EERRSTHASRERG RBHREG
BERRAE
R2014F 128310 RAREEZERBRSTHA
ERADTAREEEEE (R (BHEREHKRD
(TBHERBEK) EXVHBHER) WBRHR
mﬁﬁﬂ%}EF%E*EE*%&HM{I%WJ%XV&B?&
SAWEMEANAREITNEERKXE (B
%ﬂ&f%éﬁ&ﬁﬁ S RBINBBIR RS HEESR
BERENEZIAR) » AR ARATAERE
%5 R IRGISE XV IBE3S2REF BT
BERXA  SRELHRAMEZI0FEN (L
MRTAESETESIZNEESA) ([2E
A BSTHERATRERMNERRAR
LI N

1. RERABRGEIFE

A2014F 12831 BIEEMNEEREE.

IEREN BT DL

EENE fEmMtE Number of ordinary shares held at Approximate

Name of Director Nature of Interest December 31, 20142 shareholding %

Timothy Charles Parker Beneficial owner 60,475,844 (L)° 4.29
ERBEEA

Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala Beneficial owner 11,673,275 (L) 0.82
BEREEA

Kyle Francis Gendreau Beneficial owner 2,778,315 (L)® 0.19
BESBEAA

Tom Korbas Beneficial owner 1,826,110 (L) 0.12
BERBEEA

Bruce Hardy McLain Beneficial owner 500,000 (L) 0.03
BEREEA

Keith Hamill Beneficial owner 193,745 (L) 0.01
BESBEAA

Ying Yeh Beneficial owner 3,000 (L) 0.00

zE BEREEA

Note g
(L) represents long position.
LREFR -

b Comprised of 28,142,740 shares held by Mr. Parker and 28,142,740 shares held by his spouse, Ms. Therese Charlotte Christiaan Marie Parker, each
as beneficial and registered owner. Mr. Parker is deemed by virtue of the SFO to be interested in the shares held by Ms. Parker. Also includes share

options held by Mr. Parker that are exercisable for 4,190,364 shares.

B3E28,142,740 R 3 Parker S 5B HIRR 1D K 28,142,740 8% A ELBE 8 Therese Charlotte Christiaan Marie Parker Z 358 MR 1D

WERARBRREBCTHAA - RERHZRNERK

B+ Parker S AE AR B Parker L T FTHFAMIARAD MR o IVEIE Parker S 4E FTIS B AT 1TAERRAE 4,190,364 IR AR A7 MO BB ARAE o
¢ Comprised of 10,192,034 shares held by Mr. Tainwala and share options exercisable for 1,481,241 shares.

24%10,192,034 8% B Tainwala S 4E 58 MR 15 I AIAT1ER208 1,481,241 BRIR D MO AR A€ o

9 Comprised of 1,409,648 shares held by Mr. Gendreau and share options exercisable for 1,368,667 shares.

4% 1,409,648 % B Gendreau S 458 MR 13 I FI1T 5208 1,368,667 ARIR 17 MO AR HE o

¢ Comprised of 696,171 shares held by Mr. Korbas and share options exercisable for 1,129,939 shares.

4%696,171 B H Korbas S E:E MR I AT1T6ERRE8 1,129,939 R AR HORBARAE
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2. Interests in the shares of associated corporations 2. RIEBHEE R RIE S

2014512831 BEFEN
MREEE AE ZBEREE IERENBINE DL
EEHE Name of Associated EEMtE Number of ordinary shares held Approximate
Name of Director Corporation Nature of Interest at December 31, 20142 shareholding %
Ramesh Dungarmal Samsonite South Beneficial owner and 4,552,020 (L) 12.83
Tainwala Asia Private Limited interest in a controlled
corporation
BEREAEARRSE
HISEE R RS
Samsonite Middle Interest in a controlled 8 (L) 40.00
East FZCO corporation

REEHEE N ER

Note FfizF

@ (L) represents long position.
LREFRE -

> This amount includes 1,807,020 shares held by Mr. Tainwala as the beneficial owner, 556,000 shares held by Tainwala Holdings Private Limited and
2,189,000 shares held by Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited, of which Mr. Tainwala holds 33.96% of the issued share capital of Tainwala Holdings
Private Limited while Mr. Tainwala’s wife holds 79.08% of the issued share capital of Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited and therefore, Mr. Tainwala is
deemed to be interested in the entire equity interest in Samsonite South Asia Private Limited held by Tainwala Holdings Private Limited and Periwinkle
Fashions Private Limited. 60% of the equity interest in Samsonite South Asia Private Limited is held by the Group.
FEBEBEEREA A Tainwala £4£FEH1,807,0208 847 + Tainwala Holdings Private Limited 75 #9556,000 8% B3 & Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited #5745 92,189,000 i3 + H
A Tainwala 5 4457 Tainwala Holdings Private Limited 33.96% BIE B/TIRAS » il Tainwala 5t & F92 7 B35 Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited 79.08% BB BTIRAS - HIL - Tainwala
46 4 3% 48 1E 1 A Tainwala Holdings Private Limited 5 Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited }4 Samsonite South Asia Private Limited Fi7 15 i% 4 = # & 35 % ° Samsonite South Asia Private
Limited 60% HYBRHEFI AR IS o

¢ Mr. Tainwala holds 100% of the equity interest in Periwinkle Holdings Limited and therefore Mr. Tainwala is deemed to be interested in the entire
40% equity interest in Samsonite Middle East FZCO held by Periwinkle Holdings Limited. The remaining equity interest (60%) in Samsonite Middle
East FZCO is held by the Group.
Tainwala 5t 4 #% Periwinkle Holdings Limited & B A% #& A itk » Tainwala & 4 4 15 1F # /& Periwinkle Holdings Limited 74 Samsonite Middle East FZCO F3540% B & 9 2 Zp#E 25
Samsonite Middle East FZCO &2 T IR # (60%) R AN @I A ©

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2014, none of the directors or ~ B ESUEEE S - H2014%F 128318 » AL F
chief executives of the Company have or are deemed to have interests or short ~ EBRHSTHAERELHREREQATRE
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and  {E{AMRESEE (BB S R ERMNEXVBHE
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) %) M ~ HERDREEEFEERIEFH S
which were notifiable to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to  REIEKHIEXVEETRSABAANE AR TR
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions X FTHEZH AR (BEREZESZRBEGKM
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), MEBKIHEHEERRERENEZR K
or recorded in the register required to be maintained by the Company under &) » RILAAR R TAEREEZ SRS KHIEXV
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or as otherwise notifiable to the Company  #B#352& B EFHNETMNERIAA - HiRE

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. ZEFRASTHERD R RERZANERRK
g o

| Samsonite International S.A. Annual Report 2014



Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
the Shares and Underlying Shares

As at December 31, 2014, so far as the directors are aware, the following
shareholders (other than the directors or chief executives of the Company)
had 5% or more beneficial interests or short positions in the issued shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register required
to be maintained by the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

1. Long and short position in the shares of the Company

EERR R I 5 B HEBA AR 1 B9 R 2 Bk
B

R2014F12A318 » IBESHMA  UTRE (F
BREADNAESERSTHAE) RAQATEH
TRARAEERDPEECARDAERERS
R HRE 5515 XV 2P 58 33615 R N B 2 MAI5%
FUENBHERIAE

1. REQRBBRBTFRARKE

R2014F12A31BHEH
ZBREA’
Number of ordinary shares

RN
Bt

Approximate

BRRER b £33 held at December 31, shareholding

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest 20142 %

I b s & Gl Custodian Corporation/Approved 148,232,957 (P) 10.52
lending agent
TEEE REEHAEA

JP Morgan Chase & Co. Investment manager 10,073,100 (L) 0.71
REEEA

JP Morgan Chase & Co. Beneficial owner 445,200 (L) 0.03
BEREEA

T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. and its affiliates  Beneficial owner 99,613,900 (L) 7.07

T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. R HEB A T EREBA

Wellington Management Company, LLP Investment manager 91,623,694 (L) 6.50
REBEEA

Morgan Stanley Interest in a controlled corporation 84,097,859 (L) 5.97

ERE A REEHEERER

Morgan Stanley Interest in a controlled corporation 8,056,599 () 0.57

EEAR £ A REEGEE R ER

Note FffzE
@ (L) represents long position. (S) represents short position. (P) represents lending pool.
ORREFRE - (ORFJAA ° PRRATHEE AR o

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2014, so far as the directors are
aware, no other persons (except the directors or chief executives) or corporations
had 5% or more interests or short positions in shares and underlying shares
of the Company which were recorded in the register required to be maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

B EXHEEI  B2014F 128310 ESI
FHEEMEMAL (FZHARSTHAERN)
YEERARARRG REERGFEETALRD
RIARIER 5 REIE R XV EE 336K BTN
BERMAI5% R ERRERSAE o
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Connected Transactions

Continuing Connected Transactions

Set out below is information in relation to the continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Company and required under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules to be disclosed in the Company’s annual report:

a) Transactions between Samsonite India and associates of
Mr. Ramesh Tainwala

Samsonite South Asia Private Limited (“Samsonite India”), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has entered into transactions with associates of
Mr. Ramesh Tainwala, a director of the Company, and certain members of his
family (the “Tainwala Group”) which relate to the operation of Samsonite
India in the ordinary and usual course of its business. Mr. Ramesh Tainwala
and the Tainwala Group are also substantial shareholders in Samsonite India.

Manufacturing agreement with Abhishri

On January 3, 2009, Samsonite India entered into a memorandum of
understanding with Abhishri Packaging Private Limited (“Abhishri”), a company
controlled by certain members of the Tainwala Group. Under this memorandum
of understanding, Abhishri purchases certain raw materials and components
from Samsonite India and manufactures hard-side luggage products on behalf
of Samsonite India. The price paid by Abhishri to Samsonite India for raw
materials and components is based on the current market price paid by
Samsonite India, and the prices paid by Samsonite India for products
manufactured and manufacturing services provided by Abhishri are determined
based on Samsonite India’s current procurement policies, and are monitored
against relevant factors including the cost of raw materials, the range of
commercially appropriate margins that Samsonite India is able to make on
comparable products and, where available, quotations and market prices for
comparable third party products and services. Samsonite India followed its
procurement policies when determining the pricing and terms of all transactions
under the memorandum of understanding during the year ended December
31, 2014. The pricing under the memorandum of understanding is on normal
commercial terms as the margins available to Samsonite India and the prices
charged by Abhishri are comparable to (or better to the Company than) the
margins available from prices charged by certain other third party manufacturers
who are not connected persons under agreements with Samsonite India.
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a) Samsonite India # Ramesh Tainwala
EEMBERALZENZS

XA 7 32 E M B D 8 Samsonite South Asia
Private Limited ([ Samsonite Indial) B E&2ARAF)]
EHERamesh Tainwala EEMNBBEATRHEET
X bk B B ([Tainwalafk E1) 3T ¥ % 1B &#
Samsonite India—ft &k A EEKBRINEER
B H9 X 5 ° Ramesh Tainwala 5t 4 & Tainwala £
B35 Samsonite India B EERXEK ©

B2 Abhishri 2 B B RE 1%

7200941 A3 A8 » Samsonite India 82 Abhishri
Packaging Private Limited ([ Abhishri] » — & H
Tainwala REE TR EZGINATE) FTLRHEES
% o 1R 5 Ut 3R % 48 = 8% > Abhishri B Samsonite
India % B & T J& #1 8 & 7t 4 3 1% 3k Samsonite
India BIEE EITZFEE M © Abhishri B EH B &
7t # [E Samsonite IndiaXx {1 #9 & & T3 R 15
Samsonite ndia R X AH T EMEE > M A
Samsonite India 5t Abhishri 243 HY7E & & Fri2 LY
B8 R % 2 A V(B T3 1R 75 Samsonite India 1938
KFERBBBURMEEE » YWARISAERA R = W RM R
7K~ Samsonite India 7] B I ELL B ERZ A B
ERENBERGEELUR (F) TELBE=FE
MR RER TESETESR ° Samsonite
IndiaAEEBZ2014F 12831 A L EERFERE
SEBET 2R NEERERE 198 EEEK
B B SR o B3 7 Samsonite India Ff 2 & 9 F 58 &
Abhishri TR #9{E4& 82 B 3¢ 3FE Samsonite India Z
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Dealership agreement with Bagzone

On November 16, 2009, Samsonite India entered into a memorandum of
understanding with Bagzone Lifestyles Private Limited (“Bagzone”), a company
controlled by certain members of the Tainwala Group. The memorandum of
understanding was renewed with effect from January 1, 2015 for a period
expiring on December 31, 2017. Other than the extension of the term, all
other terms of the memorandum of understanding remained the same. Under
this memorandum of understanding, Bagzone was appointed as a preferred
dealer of Samsonite, American Tourister and other products in India, which as
of December 31, 2014 are sold in 95 exclusive Samsonite retail outlets operated
by Bagzone. Samsonite India directly rents four of these outlets and is
reimbursed by Bagzone for the associated rental costs. The other 91 outlets
are directly rented by Bagzone who bears the costs of such rentals. Bagzone
pays all operating costs of these 95 retail outlets. In addition to its exclusive
Samsonite retail outlets, Bagzone also purchases products from Samsonite
India to sell in its own multi-brand outlet stores it operates. Bagzone receives
a normal operating margin of 47.5% on the retail price for products it
purchases from Samsonite India and sells through both the exclusive Samsonite
retail outlets and the multi-brand outlet stores. Samsonite India does not own
or operate retail outlets itself because of restrictions imposed under Indian law
with respect to ownership of retail businesses by non-Indian nationals. Under
the memorandum of understanding the margin available to Bagzone will be
reviewed and amended as necessary from time to time to ensure that the
maximum profit margin with respect to products purchased from Samsonite
India does not exceed 3.0% of its net sales of such products. Samsonite India
followed the pricing terms in the memorandum of understanding for all
transactions during the year ended December 31, 2014. These transactions
are on normal commercial terms as the profit margin available to Bagzone is
within a range that is reasonably consistent with that made by other third
party dealers in India to whom Samsonite India sells products.

License and lease agreements with members of the Tainwala Group
Samsonite India has entered into six lease or license agreements for company
accommodation and office premises with members of the Tainwala Group.
These agreements are on normal commercial terms and the rent, license fees
and administrative charges payable thereunder are within the reasonable range
of the then prevailing market rates at the date of execution. Samsonite India
followed its procurement policies in relation to each of these agreements
during the year ended December 31, 2014.

Aggregate value of transactions between Samsonite India and the Tainwala
Group

The aggregate value of payments made by Samsonite India to the Tainwala
Group under all transactions described above for the year ended December
31, 2014 was approximately US$4.6 million. The annual caps for the maximum
aggregate amount payable by the Group under transactions with the Tainwala
Group for the year ended December 31, 2014 and the year ending December
31, 2015 have been set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at
US$8.4 million and US$10.4 million, respectively.

EiBagzone Z B AE R I i

#2009 11 B 16 B » Samsonite India €2 Bagzone
Lifestyles Private Limited ([Bagzonel > — R H
Tainwala SREE TR EEZHINAT) ;T LFHRES
8% o B RMABTIEE2015F 1 A1 BRBER
WH20175F12 B31 B &R © BREB RS - AR
BRBAETENEMERRSTE - RIBURE
& = % > Bagzone ¥ & X 5 #7 5 & ~ American
Tourster R EthE M ENEMNE LLEHEE > B
20145128318 HZE R A Bagzone 48 &
OSEFMBEEEZEEHE o Samsonite India B
EHENEEEEHWEPMR - 3 HBagzone &
AR EM A - Hep0 1 HEEEFRAEZSHA
£ B 7S 9 Bagzone B # 30 & ° Bagzone X f¥ 1£95
BEESEENMELEEA - REFFEESE
= EHJE 5 Bagzone B Samsonite India i B 7 1
IR HE 2 @& 8 E B & o Bagzone i 2 B
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) E B K 5R o F R Bagzone T 15 K A =R £
Samsonite India TEENE M EME = FRFHHE
ERFENABZEESE - BtEXRS
E—RRESEIRRFT AL ©
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BRI EMAERS » Samsonite India RE E2014
F12A831 B LEFE @ Tainwala EE X WAL
BHAGHBER - RIELTRAMNATE » FAEEEZ
HZ2014F 12831 B LFEREZE2015F12A
31 B I FEE Tainwala EEFTETHIR 5 B HY
BeRBENFE LRIFIEASIBEETK104
EEES

HEBABRAERLA

ZO-MEER |

95



96

Directors’ Report EE&3%

The aggregate value of payments made by the Tainwala Group to Samsonite
India under all transactions described above for the year ended December 31,
2014 was approximately US$11.7 million. The annual caps for the maximum
aggregate amount payable to the Group under transactions with the Tainwala
Group for the year end December 31, 2014 and the year ending December
31, 2015 have been set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at
US$19.0 million and US$24.7 million, respectively.

The annual caps in respect of transactions between Samsonite India and the
Tainwala Group were determined primarily on the basis of: (i) estimated annual
growth in purchases of raw materials and finished products between Samsonite
India and the Tainwala Group due to increases in sales and production in line
with Samsonite India‘s then-current business plan; (ii) estimated increases in
rental and associated costs payable by Samsonite India in line with local market
conditions; and (iii) expected market conditions and fluctuations in the foreign
exchange rate for the Indian Rupee against the US Dollar.

The highest applicable percentage ratio under the Listing Rules for the
transactions between Samsonite India and the Tainwala Group will be, on an
annual basis, more than 0.1% and less than 5.0%. Accordingly, these
transactions constitute continuing connected transactions exempt from the
circular and shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.76(2) of the
Listing Rules.

b) Transactions between Samsonite Middle East and the rest of the
Group

Samsonite Middle East FZCO (”Samsonite Middle East”), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, is held 40.0% by Mr. Ramesh Tainwala and
members of the Tainwala Group. Because Mr. Ramesh Tainwala: (i) as a director
of the Company, is a connected person of the Company; and (ii) is entitled to
control the exercise of 10.0% or more of the voting power in Samsonite Middle
East, Samsonite Middle East is also a connected person of the Company under
Rule 14A.11(5) of the Listing Rules.

With effect from June 16, 2011, Samsonite Middle East entered into a
framework agreement with the Company (the “Middle East Framework
Agreement”) covering all transactions with other subsidiaries of the Company
in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business including the purchase
by Samsonite Middle East of finished products from other subsidiaries of the
Company, the receipt and payment by Samsonite Middle East of cross-charges
and fees in relation to the sharing of global marketing, promotion, product
development and personnel costs between subsidiaries of the Company and
the payment by Samsonite Middle East of royalties in respect of intellectual
property rights licensed to Samsonite Middle East. Purchases by Samsonite
Middle East of finished products from other subsidiaries of the Company are
made at prices and on terms that are consistent with the prices and terms
applicable to intra-Group purchases made by non-connected subsidiaries of
the Company, and the royalties paid by Samsonite Middle East are consistent
with the royalty rate and terms paid by the Company’s other non-wholly owned
subsidiaries.
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Samsonite Middle East and the Company have renewed the Middle East
Framework Agreement for a period of two years with effect from January 1,
2014 (the "Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement”). Save for the
duration of, and annual caps under, the Renewed Middle East Framework
Agreement, all other terms are the same as those in the Middle East Framework
Agreement. The purpose of the Company entering into the Renewed Middle
East Framework Agreement was to ensure that Samsonite Middle East could
continue to enter into transactions with other members of the Group in the
ordinary and usual course of the Company’s business as an essential part of
the Group's global operations.

The Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement stipulates that all transactions
between Samsonite Middle East and the rest of the Group must be on normal
commercial terms consistent with those in intra-company transactions between
other subsidiaries of the Company and in compliance with all applicable
provisions of the Listing Rules. The Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement
will expire on December 31, 2015 and is renewable for further periods of two
years, subject to compliance with the then applicable provisions of the Listing
Rules, unless it is terminated earlier by mutual agreement. The Company has
followed its policies for intra-company transactions in relation to all transactions
under the Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement during the year ended
December 31, 2014.

The aggregate value of payments made by Samsonite Middle East to the rest
of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2014 was approximately US$5.1
million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate amount payable by
Samsonite Middle East to the rest of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2014 and the year ending December 31, 2015 have been set pursuant to
the requirement of the Listing Rules at US$7.0 million and US$8.9 million,
respectively.

The aggregate value of payments made to Samsonite Middle East by the rest
of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2014 was approximately
US$1.69 million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate amount payable
to Samsonite Middle East by the rest of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2014 and the year ending December 31, 2015 have been set pursuant to
the requirement of the Listing Rules at US$1.70 million and US$2.0 million,
respectively.

The annual caps under the Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement were
determined primarily on the basis of: (i) estimated annual growth in purchases
of finished products by Samsonite Middle East from the rest of the Group due
to increased sales in line with Samsonite Middle East’s then-current business
plan; (ii) estimated growth in royalty payments by Samsonite Middle East to
the rest of the Group due to growth in underlying sales; (iii) estimated growth
in marketing and development costs in line with Samsonite Middle East’s
then-current business plan; and (iv) expected market conditions.
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The highest applicable percentage ratio under the Listing Rules for the
transactions under the Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement will be,
on an annual basis, more than 0.1% and less than 5.0%. Accordingly, these
transactions constitute continuing connected transactions exempt from the
circular and shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.76(2) of the
Listing Rules.

¢) Transactions between Samsonite India and the rest of the Group

Samsonite India, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, is held
40.0% by Mr. Ramesh Tainwala and members of the Tainwala Group. Because
Mr. Ramesh Tainwala: (i) as a director of the Company, is a connected person
of the Company; and (ii) is entitled to control the exercise of 10.0% or more
of the voting power in Samsonite India, Samsonite India is also a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.07(5) of the Listing Rules.

With effect from June 16, 2011, Samsonite India entered into a framework
agreement with the Company (the “India Framework Agreement”) covering
all transactions with other subsidiaries of the Group in the ordinary and usual
course of the Group’s business including the purchase by Samsonite India of
raw materials, components, spare parts, finished products and capital assets
from other subsidiaries of the Company, the sale of finished products by
Samsonite India to other subsidiaries of the Group, the receipt and payment
by Samsonite India of cross-charges and fees in relation to the sharing of global
marketing, promotion and product development costs between subsidiaries
of the Group, and the payment by Samsonite India of royalties in respect of
intellectual property rights licensed to Samsonite India.

Samsonite India and the Company have renewed the India Framework
Agreement for a period of two years with effect from January 1, 2014 (the
“Renewed India Framework Agreement”). Save for the duration of, and annual
caps under, the Renewed India Framework Agreement, all other terms are the
same as those in the India Framework Agreement. The purpose of the
Company entering into the Renewed India Framework Agreement was to
ensure that Samsonite India could continue to enter into transactions with
other members of the Group in the ordinary and usual course of the Company’s
business as an essential part of the Group’s global operations.

The Renewed India Framework Agreement stipulates that all transactions
between Samsonite India and the rest of the Group must be on normal
commercial terms consistent with those in intra-company transactions between
other subsidiaries of the Company and in compliance with all relevant provisions
of the Listing Rules. The India Framework Agreement will expire on December
31, 2015 and is renewable for further periods of two years, subject to
compliance with the then applicable provisions of the Listing Rules, unless it
is terminated earlier by mutual agreement. The Company has followed its
policies for intra-company transactions in relation to all transactions under the
Renewed India Framework Agreement during the year ended December 31,
2014, Purchases by Samsonite India of raw materials, components, spare parts,
finished products and capital assets from other subsidiaries of the Company,
and purchases of finished products from Samsonite India by other subsidiaries
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of the Company, are made at prices and on terms that are consistent with the
prices and terms applicable to intra-Group purchases made between non-
connected subsidiaries of the Company. The royalties paid by Samsonite India
are consistent with the royalty rate and terms paid by the Company’s other
non-wholly owned subsidiaries.

The aggregate value of payments made by Samsonite India to the rest of the
Group for the year ended December 31, 2014 was approximately US$9.0
million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate amount payable by
Samsonite India to the rest of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2014 and the year ending December 31, 2015 have been set pursuant to the
requirement of the Listing Rules at US$14.0 million and US$17.5 million,
respectively.

The aggregate value of payments made to Samsonite India by the rest of the
Group for the year ended December 31, 2014 was approximately US$22.6
million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate amount payable to
Samsonite India by the rest of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2014 and the year ending December 31, 2015 have been set pursuant to the
requirement of the Listing Rules at US$34.7 million and US$43.3 million,
respectively.

The annual caps under the Renewed India Framework Agreement were
determined primarily on the basis of: (i) estimated annual growth in purchases
of raw materials and finished products between Samsonite India and the rest
of the Group due to increases in sales and production in line with Samsonite
India’s then-current business plan; (ii) estimated growth in royalty payments
by Samsonite India to the rest of the Group due to growth in underlying sales;
(iii) estimated growth in marketing and development costs in line with
Samsonite India’s then-current business plan; and (iv) expected market
conditions and fluctuations in the foreign exchange rate for the Indian Rupee
against the US Dollar.

The highest applicable percentage ratio under the Listing Rules for the
transactions under the Renewed India Framework Agreement will be, on an
annual basis, more than 0.1% and less than 5.0%. Accordingly, these
transactions constitute continuing connected transactions exempt from the
circular and shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.76(2) of the
Listing Rules.

The above continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the INEDs
of the Company, who have confirmed that these transactions were entered
into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.
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Directors’ Report EE&3%

In conducting such review, the INEDs of the Company have (i) reviewed with
management the purpose, nature and scope of the continuing connected
transactions and the policies and system of controls used by the Company to
ensure compliance with the Company’s policies and the Listing Rules, (ii)
reviewed the monitoring activities performed by the Company’s Internal Audit
department in connection with such transactions, (iii) reviewed the procedures
performed by the Company’s external auditors in connection with the
preparation of the limited assurance report described below, and (iv) reviewed
with management the Company’s disclosure with respect to such transactions
as included in this annual report and in other announcements that may be
published by the Company from time-to-time.

In addition, the Auditor of the Company was engaged to provide a limited
assurance report on the Company’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
" Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”. The auditor has issued its unqualified Limited Assurance Report
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Company in pages 94 to 99 of the Annual Report
in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s
report has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken by the Company
during the year in the ordinary course of business are set out in note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements. Other than those transactions disclosed
in the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” above, none of
these transactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined
under the Listing Rules.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors at the date of this annual report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float of more than 25% of the issued
share capital required under the Listing Rules during the year ended December
31, 2014 and up to the Latest Practicable Date.

Auditor

The financial statements were audited by KPMG LLP, who shall retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment, and a resolution to this effect
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Timothy Charles Parker
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 17, 2015
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Independent Auditors’ Report

B AR

BHEZERRR
HEBERERLR :

EPICEZMEN N ERERERQ TR
BRARANGETKERE  BFENR2014ER
2013F 12 A31HNGEMBERRE UK
BEZALFENEBSEWEREZENK
R EZEBHARBRERBRURGEY
FIRERAAERMEE ©

THEHMBRRNEE
EEEASEREER ST ERESS MG

MBI B R S AR A 2P E i
BEBRE - WRERS - BlEREELER
HE AT 2IREVBREABEHAIIE
# o SRR FEHRNRFFRERME
B KREHRIRL -

BREEmHEE

EMNEERREEMNERTENER - Y
HEREMBRERBRER - RMARREE
BN R R R E PR E AR T -
REEARERMESIETERRE - &
AREMBERS PRI PILEE RHH

B RPTREFUERG S B RRAE
THRNRBEBEENNELEE - MEENREF
BURPAMZ AT B9 - B3R B REF
SERMEBHGE M HRRFEEAERBL
MIERE o TERMEZZ AR  RBAEEHE
ZERERRATE2GE I BHRREEN
REREE - LIRETEENERRERF - Bk
AHBRBNAMEFNRERRER -
It BMFRRAESR - BRI BETE
EEEMRANETTRENSEMERFEH
MEREFEFTNSEY - UARFHEFSY
BHRERNER2IIHGK -

EMBE  BMFMEGSHNERRER ZANE
EARMANSREMAER -

BR

BfRE  LAGEAMBEREEMEERS
HHAAWENHEBRERERATRKE
ATFA2014F K% 2013F 12 B 31 BB AR
o URBEZBEFENKEXERES
RE  UWHEERSTENREEEMNE
PREFISIR 2R AVIRE ©

KPMe LLP

KPMG LLP
BESMN  DTEEE

2015538 16H

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Samsonite International S.A.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Samsonite
International S.A. and subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial
position as of December 31,2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated income statements
and statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management'’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Samsonite International S.A. and subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

KPMe LLP

KPMG LLP
Providence, Rhode Island

March 16, 2015
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Consolidated Income Statement

makmER
BE12A31ALFE
Wis Year ended December 31,

(UFETES - BREBEI) (Expressed in thousands of US Dollars, except per share data) Note 2014 2013
HEFEE Net sales 6 2,350,707 2,037,812
SHERAR Cost of sales (1,106,881)  (949,475)
EF Gross profit 1,243,826 1,088,337
Si8E % Distribution expenses (626,300)  (540,578)
b Marketing expenses (144,733)  (129,221)
—RETHEX General and administrative expenses (151,137)  (133,073)
Hitp Other expenses (22,379) (4,173)
SRS Operating profit 299,277 281,292
BAREUR A Finance income 23 478 852
BIiSE A Finance costs 23 (17,383) (11,808)
RETTSE Net finance costs (16,905) (10,956)
B ER AT%F Profit before income tax 24 282,372 270,336
FrERiEs Income tax expense 22 (77,018) (72,915)
FREF Profit for the year 205,354 197,421
BRREEE AR EF Profit attributable to the equity holders 186,256 176,087
JE 0 PR 2 A %R Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 19,098 21,334
F REF Profit for the year 205,354 197,421
SREF Earnings per share

ERERRBBEF Basic and diluted earnings per share
(UERETEH) (Expressed in US Dollars per share) 15 0.132 0.125

BEMIF B R AR S IR TR — 5 o The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEHEWEE
BE12A310LFE
Wis Year ended December 31,
(UFZETE5)) (Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) Note 2014 2013
FREF Profit for the year 205,354 197,421
Hit2EE (&i8) Other comprehensive income (loss):
KAEEFHHEEBRZIER ! Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss:
EREEAFTEIENTE - HIRHIE Remeasurements on defined benefit plans,
net of tax 17 (17,060) 4,511
(17,060) 4,511
HEeggkENsEREmscEe Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
REeREHHCATERE » HRFIE Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges,
net of tax 6,988 (1,569)
BINEREINE B H 518 Foreign currency translation losses for
foreign operations (35,087) (9,880)
(28,099) (11,449)
Hih2mElzE (EE) Other comprehensive income (loss) (45,159) (6,938)
2 HENHBEE Total comprehensive income 160,195 190,483
RESEARG2ZEKRELZE Total comprehensive income attributable
to the equity holders 145,095 173,213
IR ER L2 E N RERE Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests 15,100 17,270
FREAEKZEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 160,195 190,483

BEMIP B AR S IR — D o

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

GEBBHRE
128310
Wis December 31,
(UFZETLZ5)) (Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) Note 2014 2013
ERENEE Non-Current Assets
M BEKRRZE  FH Property, plant and equipment, net 8 178,325 155,347
e Goodwill 9(a) 270,079 214,356
HthEFEE  F58 Other intangible assets, net 9(b) 766,687 662,707
BEBIEEE Deferred tax assets 22(d) 57,752 44,401
HibEEREWFIE Other assets and receivables 10(a) 23,195 22,722
FREEEHARE Total non-current assets 1,296,038 1,099,533
RENEE Current Assets
FE Inventories 11 332,274 298,377
FEWBRFR R ELAth FEUN R IE - JFAE Trade and other receivables, net 12 290,841 246,372
AN REMERE Prepaid expenses and other assets 10(b) 71,718 65,262
ReRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 13 140,423 225,347
MENEEHALE Total current assets 835,256 835,358
EESE Total assets 2,131,294 1,934,891
ERRAE Equity and Liabilities
e Equity:
&N Share capital 14 14,080 14,071
fHiE Reserves 14 1,255,608 1,178,685
RERSEARLRESEEHE Total equity attributable to equity holders 1,269,688 1,192,756
IR R Non-controlling interests 14 37,752 37,826
FERAAER Total equity 1,307,440 1,230,582
ERBEE Non-Current Liabilities
BERRERK Loans and borrowings 16(a) 18 37
EERF Employee benefits 17 49,657 33,432
FEIE R e R HARE Non-controlling interest put options 14(f) 58,288 52,848
EEREEE Deferred tax liabilities 22(d) 107,625 111,370
Hthams Other liabilities 4,704 4,879
FRBABEE Total non-current liabilities 220,292 202,566
mENEE Current Liabilities
BRRMER Loans and borrowings 16(b) 65,131 13,640
EEEF Employee benefits 17 62,022 54,437
FES BRI EL A FE A FRIE Trade and other payables 20 415,445 387,239
BNEARIIE & & Current tax liabilities 22 60,964 46,427
mENE SRR Total current liabilities 603,562 501,743
B EBEE Total liabilities 823,854 704,309
ke EEn Total equity and liabilities 2,131,294 1,934,891
RENVEEFR Net current assets 231,694 333,615
EEABERABEE Total assets less current liabilities 1,527,732 1,433,148

BEMIB B AR S IR — D o
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Company-Alone Statement of Financial Position

QBB AR R R
128318
Wis December 31,
(UFZETE5)) (Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) Note 2014 2013
ERENEE Non-Current Assets
REBLATNRE Investment in subsidiaries 26 866,682 866,682
HithE &= Rk R B A Bl B IE Other assets and receivables due from subsidiaries - 25,852
FRENEELE Total non-current assets 866,682 892,534
RENEE Current Assets
FEUN TS A BRI BRFA I ELAth fE W g Trade and other receivables due from subsidiaries 17,127 16,278
AN REMEE Prepaid expenses and other assets 44 47
ReRkReZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,980 427
RBEELRE Total current assets 20,151 16,752
BEEHAE Total assets 886,833 909,286
HERERE Equity and Liabilities
T Equity:
B Share capital 14 14,080 14,071
s Reserves 14 787,602 866,070
R Total equity 801,682 880,141
REARE Current Liabilities
BRRERK Loans and borrowings (2,420) (1,858)
R A R BRI R HAb e 7008 Trade and other payables due to subsidiaries 26 6,675 30,324
AR R EMEATIE Trade and other payables 896 679
RBAEERE Total current liabilities 5,151 29,145
BEHEE Total liabilities 5,151 29,145
ERREEEE Total equity and liabilities 806,833 909,286
RBAEFRE Net current liabilities 15,000 (12,393)
EEBERABAE Total assets less current liabilities 881,682 880,141
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERZBX

Pt = RO EE
(UFETZ2S - REEE BRI (Expressed in thousands of US Dollars, except number of shares) Note Number of shares
#HE20135F12A3181LEE : Year ended December 31, 2013:
48450 20131818 Balance, January 1, 2013 1,407,137,004
F =R Profit for the year -
Hib2EWE (B8) : Other comprehensive income (loss):
EREEAGTEIESE - HIRFE Remeasurements on defined benefit plans, net of tax 17 -
ReREBEPZ A FERE - MNRBIE Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of tax —
SNBSS E Foreign currency translation losses =
FAZEWE (B1R) 25 Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year -
BEBANRS  BEESTAER Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity:
RONEIRE AT ERE Change in fair value of put options 21 -
ERERE AFHZRE DK Cash distributions to equity holders 15 =
LABRAD A5 -2 Er B B < Share-based compensation expense 17 -
S FERERRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests -
HihR S Other transactions =
#e > 2013128318 Balance, December 31, 2013 1,407,137,004
BE2014512A318LEE : Year ended December 31, 2014:
#ex 0 20141811 Balance, January 1, 2014 1,407,137,004
FREF Profit for the year -
Hith2E U : Other comprehensive income:
EREEAGTEIENTZ - MRBIE Remeasurements on defined benefit plans, net of tax 17 -
RERBEh e ATFESE » HIKRHIE Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of tax -
HNEE H SR Foreign currency translation losses -
FREHKEEE Total comprehensive income for the year -
BEERANKS » HiEs AR Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity:
AR 245 2 B =2 Share-based compensation expense 17 -
TEERAE Exercise of stock options 17 889,452
ROHEIRE AT ERE Change in fair value of put options 21 -
R ERE AFH ZRE DK Cash distributions to equity holders 15 -
S FERERRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests -
HihR 5 Other transactions -
468 2014128311 Balance, December 31, 2014 1,408,026,456

BEMIB B AR B IR — D
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&
Reserves

RiEFEA
FELiER
o B
FSON TS BERHE REBER Total equity IR R
&S Additional Translation HAb#E Retained attributable to Non-controlling AR
Share capital paid-in capital reserve Other reserves earnings equity holders interest Total equity
14,071 962,192 (1,671) (74,585) 151,586 1,051,593 34,512 1,086,105
= = = = 176,087 176,087 21,334 197,421
= = = 4,608 - 4,608 97) 4,511
= = = (1,576) = (1,576) 7 (1,569)
= = (5,906) = = (5,906) (3,974) (9,880)
= = (5,906) 3,032 176,087 173,213 17,270 190,483
= = = = (1,586) (1,586) = (1,586)
= = = = (37,500) (37,500) = (37,500)
= = = 7,036 = 7,036 = 7,036
- - = - - - (8,359) (8,359)
= = = = = = (5,597) (5,597)
14,071 962,192 (7,577) (64,517) 288,587 1,192,756 37,826 1,230,582
14,071 962,192 (7,577) (64,517) 288,587 1,192,756 37,826 1,230,582
- - - - 186,256 186,256 19,098 205,354
- - - (16,947) - (16,947) (113) (17,060)
- - - 6,984 - 6,984 4 6,988
- - (31,198) - - (31,198) (3,889) (35,087)
- - (31,198) (9,963) 186,256 145,095 15,100 160,195
- - - 11,041 - 11,041 - 11,041
9 2,800 - (818) - 1,991 - 1,991
- - - - (1,195) (1,195) - (1,195)
- - - - (80,000) (80,000) - (80,000)
- - - - - - (15,075) (15,075)
- - - - - - (99) (99)
14,080 964,992 (38,775) (64,257) 393,648 1,269,688 37,752 1,307,440
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

uvT\ IE%UILE;E

BZ12A318LLEE
Year ended December 31,

[F5E
(UFZETLZ5)) (Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) l[‘lfite 2014 2013
REFH2RENE ¢ Cash flows from operating activities:
FREA Profit for the year 205,354 197,421
{EH AR LU R R B S E B Adjustments to reconcile profit to net cash
TSR & FREHR - generated from operating activities:
HERLEEERSE (k&) » F8 Loss (gain) on sale and disposal of assets, net 39 (143)
e Depreciation 8 42,588 36,821
EBREE#N Amortization of intangible assets 9(b) 9,180 8,363
RIREE Provision for doubtful accounts 1,097 2,242
ROHHIE AT ERE Change in fair value of put options 21(g) 4,245 6,312
EFRINSBAGT SN E S FEEE Net change in defined benefit pension plans  17(b) (8,776) (27,813)
B AT 2 RS HR S Non-cash share-based compensation 17(a) 11,041 7,036
FrfSBim X Income tax expense 22 77,018 72,915
341,786 303,154
KeEERBEEE Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(MPREB S/ Z2E D BUEEE) ¢ (excluding allocated purchase price in
business combinations):
FEUR BR TR R E At FE LR R Trade and other receivables (42,629) (31,575)
FE Inventories (23,450) (24,663)
HibREEE Other current assets (196) (3,895)
AR E MR Trade and other payables 43,993 29,749
HthEERERE @%‘E Other assets and liabilities, net (13,492) (17,486)
RETEMEBRSE Cash generated from operating activities 306,012 255,284
[SERESS Interest paid (1,964) (1,791)
[SERIIEEE Income tax paid (74,134) (60,460)
RETEMEBRESFEE Net cash generated from operating activities 229,914 193,033
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BZ12A318LEE
Year ended December 31,

PEE
(UFZETE5)) (Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) Note 2014 2013
REFB2RENRE ! Cash flows from investing activities:
BEYXE BRERRE Purchases of property, plant and equipment 8 (69,636) (57,239)
BB EER (FIRRIEMIR®) Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired 7 (196,665) —
Hitfr8 8 (BEAFIE) Other proceeds (uses) (821) 3,306
REZEBFARSFE Net cash used in investing activities (267,122) (53,933)
RMETBzRERE Cash flows from financing activities:
BIHAE R R ERFAEFIE (FRK) - Current loans and borrowings
THER proceeds (payments), net 16 52,607 (18,793)
ATIELERE A Payment of deferred financing costs (2,001) -
TEBREMBRE Proceeds from stock option exercises 17 2,809 -
mRESEE AL 2R DK Cash distributions to equity holders 15 (80,000) (37,500)
S ERERRE Dividend payments to non-controlling interests 26 (15,075) (8,359)
REEB AR E FE Net cash used in financing activities (41,660) (64,652)
RERBESESENNEM ORL) F5E Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (78,868) 74,448
ReRkReEEY M A1H Cash and cash equivalents, at January 1 225,347 151,399
EREFBHESRESEENNTE Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents (6,056) (500)
ReERBRLZEEY  M2A318 Cash and cash equivalents, at December 31 13 140,423 225,347
BERMTMTEE AR S I RKR — D © The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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1. Background

Samsonite International S.A. (the “Company”), together with its consolidated subsidiaries
(the "Group”), is principally engaged in the design, manufacture, sourcing and distribution
of luggage, business and computer bags, outdoor and casual bags, travel accessories and
slim protective cases for personal electronic devices throughout the world, primarily under
the Samsonite®, American Tourister®, Hartmann®, High Sierra®, Gregory®, Speck® and
Lipault® brand names and other owned and licensed brand names. The Group sells its
products through a variety of wholesale distribution channels, through its company operated
retail stores and through e-commerce. The principal wholesale distribution customers of the
Group are department and specialty retail stores, mass merchants, catalog showrooms and
warehouse clubs. The Group sells its products in Asia, North America, Europe and Latin
America.

The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company was incorporated in Luxembourg
on March 8, 2011 as a public limited liability company (a société anonyme), whose registered
office is 13—-15 Avenue de la Liberté, L-1931, Luxembourg.

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 26.

2. Basis of Preparation

(a) Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), which collective term includes all International
Accounting Standards (“IAS”) and related interpretations, as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB").

The IASB has issued a number of new and revised IFRSs. For the purpose of preparing
the consolidated financial statements, the Group has adopted all these new and revised
IFRSs for all periods presented, except for any new standards or interpretations that are not
yet mandatorily effective for the accounting period ended December 31, 2014. The revised
and new accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
accounting period ended December 31, 2014 are set out in note 3(u).

These financial statements also comply with the applicable requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, which for this financial year and the comparative period
continue to be those of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in
accordance with transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76
to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The accounting policies below, where material, have been applied consistently to all
periods presented in the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors on March 16, 2015.
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2. Basis of Preparation continued

(b) Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except

for the following material items in the consolidated statement of financial position as set out

in the accounting policies below:

e derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value.

e the defined benefit liability is recognized as the net total of the plan assets, plus
unrecognized past service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses, less unrecognized
actuarial gains and the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

(c) Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates (functional currency). The functional currencies of
the significant subsidiaries of the Group are the currencies of the primary economic
environment and key business processes of these subsidiaries and include, but are not
limited to, United States Dollars, Euros, Renminbi and Indian Rupee.

Unless otherwise stated, the consolidated financial statements are presented in the
United States Dollar (“USD"), which is the functional and presentation currency of the
Company.

(d) Use of Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions and conditions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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2. Basis of Preparation continued
(d) Use of Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions continued
Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is
included in the following notes:
e Note 3(n) — Revenue recognition
e Note 7 — Business combinations
¢ Note 8 — Property, plant and equipment
¢ Note 9 — Goodwill and other intangible assets
e Note 11 — Inventories
e Note 12 — Allowances for trade and other receivables
e Note 14(f) — Non-controlling interests
e Note 17(a) — Share-based payments
¢ Note 17(b) — Obligations under defined benefit plans
e Note 21(f) - Fair value of financial instruments
e Note 22 — Income taxes
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that may have an effect
on the consolidated financial statements resulting in a material adjustment within the next
financial year is included in the following notes:
¢ Note 17(b) — Measurement of plan assets and defined benefit obligation
¢ Note 19 — Contingent liabilities
¢ Note 21 — Financial instruments
e Note 22 — Utilization of tax losses

(e) Changes in Accounting Policies

The 1ASB has issued a number of new and revised IFRSs. For the purpose of preparing the
consolidated financial information for the year ended December 31, 2014, a number of new
or revised IFRSs became mandatorily effective for the current reporting period.

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

IAS 32 was amended to address certain inconsistencies relating to the offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities criteria. The adoption of this standard did not have a significant
impact on the Group.

IFRIC 21 Levies

IFRIC 21 was issued to address uncertainties regarding the accounting for a liability to pay a
levy if that liability is within the scope of IAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets. The adoption of this standard did not have a significant impact on the
Group.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the Group to all
periods presented, where material, in these consolidated financial statements. Certain
comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in the
current year. None of the changes impacts the Group's previously reported consolidated net
sales, gross profit, operating profit, net finance costs, income tax expense, profit for the
year, earnings per share, net cash generated from (used in) operating activities, investing
activities or financing activities, or the statement of financial position.

(a) Principles of Consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

The financial information of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control
ceases. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

(ii) Non-controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the period between non-
controlling interests and the equity holders of the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognized.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognized in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognized at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset or an associate.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(a) Principles of Consolidation continued

(iii) Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method at the acquisition
date, which is the date on which control is obtained by the Group. In assessing control, the
Group takes into consideration substantive potential voting rights.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as the excess of the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured at the acquisition date. If the net fair value is greater than the
consideration transferred, then this excess is recognized immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of
pre-existing relationships. Such amounts generally are recognized in profit or loss.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities,
that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date.
If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured and settlement
is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration are recognized in profit or loss.

When share-based payment awards (“replacement awards”) are required to be
exchanged for awards held by the acquiree’s employees (“acquiree’s awards”) and relate to
past services, then all or a portion of the amount of the acquirer’s replacement awards is
included in measuring consideration transferred in the business combination. This
determination is based on the market-based value of the replacement awards compared
with the market-based value of the acquiree’s awards and the extent to which the
replacement awards relate to past and/or future service.

(b) Foreign Currency Translation and Exchange Risk

(i) Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated using foreign exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that
date. Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in profit or loss,
except for differences arising on the retranslation of qualifying cash flow hedges, which are
recognized in other comprehensive income. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary
items is the difference between amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning
of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the
amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting
period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the
date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(b) Foreign Currency Translation and Exchange Risk continued

(ii) Foreign Operations

The assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries are translated into USD at period
end exchange rates. Equity accounts denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
USD at historical exchange rates. Income and expense accounts are translated at average
monthly exchange rates. The net exchange gains or losses resulting from translating at
varied exchange rates are recorded as a component of other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity and attributed to non-controlling interests, as appropriate.

(c) Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate
to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. All operating segments’
operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group’s management to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which
discrete financial information is available.

The Group's segment reporting is based on geographical areas, representative of how
the Group’s business is managed and its operating results are evaluated. The Group's
operations are organized as follows; (i) “Asia”; (i) “North America”; (iii) “Europe”; (iv)
“Latin America”, and (v) “Corporate”, which are set out in note 6.

Segment results that are reported to management include items directly attributable to
a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items
comprise mainly corporate assets, head office expenses, income tax assets and liabilities,
and licensing activities from the license of brand names owned by the Group.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire
property, plant and equipment.

(d) Property, Plant and Equipment

[tems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the asset. Assets under finance leases are stated at the present value of
the future minimum lease payments. Improvements which extend the life of an asset are
capitalized. Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items (major components).

Gains and losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

HEBAMARAT ZO—MEFH| 115



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

REMBMRMET &

3. FEEHBREIE #

(d) 9% BERRE &
ESEREEN L AERFHRE

EMEHTEREE (WEA) NT -

BT 20E 304

Hes - RERHEM  3FE10F

HEEREE A ERAFSREE
HPEEETTE

EER  UTEAFHRRSEESTE
TERAFHEERE - AEBEEAKAE
R L R ETE -

FEBBBERHTEARES RER
BRBRENERERE - WHHLEERTA
AR RPHEE  RIEREM - B
ARG - REBE - BisER - FI -
REREEETHREEERTUZHE -

() MERHMEMEE

() ™8
WEMBARMEENBEFAELEE -
FEVEEIABSEHENEY - R
3(a)(iii) - HEAIRFERE - BBERARRE
HEBRIR - XBEHELENRERED
RESHEMETEENERIRETRE
EEBN ([REELEN]) RREEE
BuAR - WEFEIRENR (R -

(i) \EEE (FHERM)
EBREETEEARNE  BTFBE  E3R
HERE ERANEBFLEELFRAIE
o)

BMEREAEEERFHNERLEE -
AR R ES BT 2R TSR
BELEFYMESHABERRPEERS
BERERREZRENR - TEEC
American Tourister® ~ Hartmann® ~ High
Sierra® ~ Gregory® ~ Speck® & Lipault® 78 5%
EEENHE - HHELEHEEENKR
NBEGEERPLEE - ~AEEEFEREE
RREEEREH  UEEREFESMHR
BREE T2 EENERR T EAFH
fir o fE I LME - AL A FHARTAR LR
NELABRBNEHNEB BHIRRET X
HIERFHNERLEEBHEBERATEMEA
R o

116 | Samsonite International S.A. Annual Report 2014

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(d) Property, Plant and Equipment continued
Depreciation and amortization are provided on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term, if applicable, as follows:
20 to 30 years
3 to 10 years
lesser of useful life or the lease term

Buildings
Machinery, equipment and other
Leasehold improvements
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually and
adjusted if appropriate. Land owned by the Group with freehold interest is not depreciated.
The Group capitalizes the costs of purchased software and costs to configure, install
and test software and includes these costs within machinery, equipment and other in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Software assessment and evaluation, process
reengineering, data conversion, training, maintenance and ongoing software support costs
are expensed.

(e) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. For
measurement of goodwill at initial recognition, see note 3(a)(iii). Subsequent to initial
recognition, goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising
on a business combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit (“CGU"), or groups of
cash-generating units, which are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination
and are tested annually for impairment (see note 9).

(ii) Intangible Assets (other than Goodwill)
Intangible assets primarily consist of tradenames, customer relationships, patents and
leasehold rights. No recognized intangible assets have been generated internally.
Intangible assets which are considered to have an indefinite life, tradenames, are
measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses and are not amortized but are tested
for impairment at least annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that
the asset may be impaired. Samsonite®, American Tourister®, Hartmann®, High Sierra®,
Gregory®, Speck® and Lipault® are the significant tradenames of the Group. It is anticipated
that the economic benefits associated with these tradenames will continue for an indefinite
period. The conclusion that the tradenames are an indefinite lived asset is reviewed annually
to determine whether events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful
life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in accordance
with the policy for amortization of intangible assets with finite lives as set out below.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(e) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued
(ii) Intangible Assets (other than Goodwill) continued

Intangible assets which have a finite life are amortized and measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization expense is
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives from the
date that they are available for use, as this most closely reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the assets. The estimated useful
lives are as follows:
Customer relationships 10 to 20 years
3 to 6 years
1to 10 years

Leasehold rights
Patents

Intangible assets having a finite life are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Estimated useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed annually and adjusted if
applicable.

(f) Impairment
(i) Financial Assets (Including Trade and Other Receivables)

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is
impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. The allowance account for
receivables is used to record impairment losses unless the Group believes recovery is remote
and the impairment loss is applied directly against the financial asset.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency
by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would
not consider otherwise, or indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

The Group considers evidence of impairment for receivables at both a specific asset and
collective level. All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment.
All individually significant receivables found not to be specifically impaired are then
collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical trends, adjusted for
management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such
that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends.
Impairment losses that have been recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting
date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(f) Impairment continued

(ii) Non-financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and
deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. For those CGUs or group of CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated each
year at the same time.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using an appropriate discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows from continuing use
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the
"CGU"). For the purposes of goodwill impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to the group of CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. This allocation is subject to an operating segment before aggregation
ceiling test and reflects the lowest level at which that goodwill is monitored for internal
reporting purposes to the asset or CGU.

The Group's corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an
indication that a corporate asset may be impaired, then the recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the group of units, and then to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss that has been recognized on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods if estimates used to determine the recoverable amount change. For other assets,
impairment losses that have been recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting
date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(g) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method. The cost of inventory includes expenditures incurred in
acquiring the inventories, production costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to
their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in
progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal
operating capacity. Cost also may include transfers from other comprehensive income of
any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of inventories.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognized as an
expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognized. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realizable value and all losses of inventories are recognized as
expenses in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognized as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

(h) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash held at banks, deposits held at call with banks, and
other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

(i) Trade and Other Payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value. Trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

(j) Interest-bearing Borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortized
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognized and redemption value
being recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

(k) Financial Instruments

(i) Non-derivative Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Group initially recognizes receivables and deposits on the date that they are originated.
The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows

from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the

financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is

created or retained by the Group is recognized as a separate asset or liability.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(k) Financial Instruments continued
(i) Non-derivative Financial Assets and Liabilities continued

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a legal right to offset the
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, receivables are
measured at cost, less any impairment losses. Receivables are comprised of trade and other
receivables.

The Group initially recognizes debt instruments issued on the date that they are
originated. The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expire.

The Group has the following non-derivative financial liabilities: loans and borrowings
and trade and other payables. Both loans and borrowings and trade and other payables are
recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to their initial recognition, loans and borrowings are accounted for at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

(ii) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge certain of its foreign currency risk
exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for
separately if the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and the embedded
derivative are not closely related, a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative, and the combined instrument
is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. For derivatives designated in hedging
relationships, changes in the fair value are either offset through profit or loss against the
change in fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged or recognized
in hedging reserves that are reported directly in equity (deficit) until the hedged item is
recognized in profit or loss and, at that time, the related hedging gain or loss is removed
from equity (deficit) and is used to offset the change in value of the hedged item.

Other than agreements with holders of non-controlling interests, there were no
derivatives embedded in host contracts during the periods presented. The Group has certain
put option agreements that are classified as financial liabilities in accordance with IAS 32,
Financial Instruments: Presentation, in the consolidated statement of financial position, as
the Group has a potential obligation to settle the option in cash in the future. The amount
recognized initially is the fair value of the redeemable non-controlling interests and
subsequently remeasured at each reporting date based on a price to earnings multiple
discounted to the reporting date. For agreements entered into prior to the adoption of IFRS
3, Business Combinations, on January 1, 2008, subsequent changes in liabilities are
recognized in profit or loss. For agreements entered into after January 1, 2008, subsequent
changes in liabilities are recognized through equity.

Derivatives are recognized initially at fair value and any attributable transaction costs
are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are accounted for as described below.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(k) Financial Instruments continued
(ii) Derivative Financial Instruments continued

The Group periodically enters into derivative contracts that it designates as a hedge of
a forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a
recognized asset or liability (cash flow hedge). For all hedging relationships, the Group
formally documents the hedging relationship and its risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking the hedge, the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk
being hedged, how the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk will
be assessed prospectively and retrospectively, and a description of the method of measuring
ineffectiveness. The Group also formally assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and on an
ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly
effective in offsetting cash flows of hedged items by determining whether the actual results
of each hedge are within a range of 80% to 125%. For derivative instruments that are
designated and qualify as a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the
derivative is reported as a component of other comprehensive income and reclassified into
profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects
profit or loss. Gains and losses on the derivative representing hedge ineffectiveness are
excluded from the assessment of effectiveness and are recognized in current profit or loss.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when it determines that the
derivative is no longer effective in offsetting cash flows of the hedged item, the derivative
expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, the derivative is de-designated as a hedging
instrument because it is unlikely that a forecasted transaction will occur, or management
determines that designation of the derivative as a hedging instrument is no longer
appropriate.

When a derivative financial instrument is not held for trading, and is not designated in
a qualified hedging relationship, all changes in fair value are recognized immediately
through profit or loss.

(iii) Share Capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

(I) Employee Benefits

(i) Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans
are recognized as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which
services are rendered by employees.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(I) Employee Benefits continued

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted
to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any
plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is based on a high grade bond yield curve under
which the benefits were projected and discounted at spot rates along the curve. The
discount rate was then determined as a single rate yielding the same present value. When
the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognized asset is limited to the total
of any unrecognized past service costs and the present value of economic benefits available
in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the
plan. In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to
any minimum funding requirements that apply to any plan in the Group. An economic
benefit is available to the Group if it is realizable during the life of the plan, or on settlement
of the plan liabilities.

The Group recognizes remeasurements related to all actuarial gains and losses arising
from defined benefit plans in other comprehensive income and those amounts cannot
subsequently be reclassified into profit or loss. Actuarial valuations are obtained annually at
the end of the fiscal year.

(iii) Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than pension
plans is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service
in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value,
and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The discount rate is based on a high
grade bond yield curve under which the benefits were projected and discounted at spot
rates along the curve. The discount rate was then determined as a single rate yielding the
same present value. Any actuarial gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. Actuarial valuations are obtained annually at the end of the fiscal
year.

(iv) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of an
employee’s employment as a result of either an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s
employment before the normal retirement date or an employee’s decision to accept an offer
of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.

(v) Short-Term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected
to be paid under short-term cash bonus plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(I) Employee Benefits continued

(vi) Share-based Compensation

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment awards granted to
employees is recognized as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The
amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the
related service and non-market performance conditions are expected to be met, such that
the amount ultimately recognized as an expense is based on the number of awards that
meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date. For
equity-settled share-based payment awards with market performance conditions or non-
vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to
reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual
outcomes.

(m) Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination,
items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences:
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination
and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, and differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. In addition, deferred tax is not recognized for taxable temporary
differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on
the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, if they intend to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible
temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realized.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(n) Revenue Recognition

Revenues from wholesale product sales are recognized when (i) evidence of a sales
arrangement at a fixed or determinable price exists (usually in the form of a sales order), (ii)
collectability is reasonably assured, and (iii) title transfers to the customer. Provisions are
made for estimates of markdown allowances, warranties, returns and discounts at the time
product sales are recognized. Shipping terms are predominately FOB shipping point (title
transfers to the customer at the Group’s shipping location) except in certain Asian countries
where title transfers upon delivery to the customer. In all cases, sales are recognized upon
transfer of title to customers. Revenues from retail sales are recognized at the point of sale
to consumers. Revenue excludes collected sales taxes.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognized in profit or
loss.

The Group licenses its brand names to certain third parties. Net sales in the accompanying
consolidated income statement include royalties earned on licensing agreements with third
parties, for which revenue is earned and recognized when the third party makes a sale of a
branded product of the Group.

(o) Cost of Sales, Distribution, Marketing and General and Administrative
Expenses
The Group includes the following types of costs in cost of sales: direct product purchase and
manufacturing costs, duties, freight in, freight out, receiving, inspection, internal transfer
costs, depreciation and procurement and manufacturing overhead. The impairment of
inventories and the reversals of such impairments are included in cost of sales during the
period in which they occur.
Distribution expenses are primarily comprised of rent, employee benefits, customer
freight, depreciation, amortization, warehousing costs and other selling expenses.
Marketing expenses consist of advertising and promotional activities. Costs for
producing media advertising are deferred until the related advertising first appears in print
or television media, at which time such costs are expensed. All other advertising costs are
expensed as incurred. Cooperative advertising costs associated with customer support
programs giving the Group an identifiable advertising benefit equal to at least the amount
of the advertising allowance are accrued and charged to marketing expenses when the
related revenues are recognized. From time to time, the Group offers various types of
incentive arrangements such as cash or payment discounts, rebates or free products. All
such incentive arrangements are accrued and reduce reported revenues when incurred.
General and administrative expenses consist of management salaries and benefits,
information technology costs, and other costs related to administrative functions.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(p) Finance Income and Costs

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested and gains on hedging
instruments that are recognized in profit or loss. Interest income is recognized as it accrues
in profit or loss, using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the discount on
provisions, changes in the fair value of put options associated with the Group’s majority-
owned subsidiaries, and losses on hedging instruments that are recognized in profit or loss.
Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

Costs incurred in connection with the issuance of debt instruments are included in the
initial measurement of the related financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Such costs are amortized as finance costs using the effective interest
method over the term of the related debt obligation.

(q) Earnings Per Share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS") data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the
period, adjusted for shares held by the Group. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for shares held by the Group, for the effects of all
potentially dilutive ordinary shares, which comprise share options granted to employees, as
applicable.

(r) Leases

An arrangement comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a lease if
the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases in which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an
amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy applicable to that asset. Other leases are operating leases and the
leased assets are not recognized in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group leases retail stores, distribution centers and office facilities. Initial terms of
the leases range from one to twenty years. Most leases provide for monthly fixed minimum
rentals or contingent rentals based upon sales in excess of stated amounts and normally
require the Group to pay real estate taxes, insurance, common area maintenance costs and
other occupancy costs. The Group recognizes rent expense for leases that include scheduled
and specified escalations of the minimum rent on a straight-line basis over the base term of
the lease. Any difference between the straight-line rent amount and the amount payable
under the lease is included in other liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Contingent rental payments are expensed as incurred.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(r) Leases continued

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the
finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is
allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

(s) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognized for other liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

(t) Related Parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group.

(ii) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(1) the entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, the subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(2) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member);

(3) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(4) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(5) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(6) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (i); or

(7) a person identified in (i) (1) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be

expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.



3. EESHBIRBE «
(u) HEFERIRRE
HZE2014F12831HILFE ETHE
A EAMETTRBEHALEN > BREEME
REMBERREFLARER o

2014578 » IASBJE #i IFRS 995 &
AT A ([IFRSEEI%R]) » EILEHEEEE
HeBMBHMNILENRE—{EETT ° IFRSSE
IORIEEMAE A EEEELE I ERGE
B - E—-AEMEREEREER U RE
HENEENERRERE o IFRRSEHKS
R2018F 1A 1A LA IREEM - &
SEENABEHEMBERENTERE -

M2014% 58 + IASB 98 IFRS 58 155547
EFF VAWK (TIFRSE153E]) ©
IFRS B 155EMEBE PRI LT E &N TR
HIUREEHIETHRRE © IFRSEE 15882017618
THEMN  HAREEMR - KEBREKREE
HEMERRMFERE o

4. AFEMEE
AEMSESHBERBELEEESBK
FEMEERAEOHATE - AEHER
RIRBENATEDREUTHEEE - 58
BELATEEFMEBRNEMER (B
) EHEEER S ENHERE -

(a) FEMARTR R H b REWRIR

YRR R EMRERFIRN A FETRES
AN SAERTRERRRERERER
HoWDAFEDAREMEEBBEEAR
[EER

(b) $TETR
EHMNESHN A FEDREFRSE EhmiE
WEEREE - WE LT TiENEK  BIEBR
RAZRAKBAE (UBRFESFAEE) TR
EHRBRFHNENHEERERHEE
BOEZEMmM T2 FE -

RERERRATEERMEELRAT
[EERE- 30

AFERIRRTARERHFNEE
[ELBg o

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(u) New Standards and Interpretations

Certain new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective
for the year ended December 31, 2014, and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements.

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final element of its comprehensive response to the
financial crisis by issuing IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (”IFRS 9"). The improvements
introduced by IFRS 9 include a logical model for classification and measurement, a single
forward-looking expected loss impairment model and a substantially reformed approach to
hedge accounting. IFRS 9 will come into effect on January 1, 2018 with early application
permitted. The Group has not determined the extent of the impact on its financial
statements.

In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers ("IFRS
15"). IFRS 15 sets out requirements for recognizing revenue that apply to all contracts with
customers. IFRS 15 is effective as of January 1, 2017 with earlier application permitted. The
Group has not determined the extent of the impact on its financial statements.

4. Determination of Fair Values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of
fair value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been
determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods.
When applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair
values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

(a) Trade and Other Receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. This fair value is
determined for disclosure purposes and generally approximates carrying value.

(b) Derivatives
The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on their listed market price. If a listed
market price is not available, then fair value is estimated by discounting the difference
between the contractual forward price and the current forward price for the residual
maturity of the contract using a risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds).
Call options are considered derivative financial assets and are recorded at fair value.
Fair value estimates reflect the credit risk of the Group and counterparty.
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4. Determination of Fair Values continued

(c) Non-derivative Financial Liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present
value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at
the reporting date.

Redeemable Non-controlling Interests
The Group has entered into agreements that include put and call option arrangements to
sell and to acquire non-controlling interests in certain majority-owned subsidiaries exercisable
at fair value at certain predetermined dates. Pursuant to these agreements, the Group has
call options to acquire the remaining shares owned by the non-controlling interest holders
and these non-controlling interest holders have put options to sell their ownership in these
subsidiaries to the Group. In addition, the Group has the right to buy-out these non-
controlling interests in the event of termination of the underlying agreements. The table of
contractual maturities (note 21) does not include amounts for the repurchase of non-
controlling interests as they do not include contractual maturities.

The put option agreements are classified as financial liabilities in accordance with IAS
32 in the consolidated statement of financial position as the Group has a potential obligation
to settle the option in cash in the future. The amount recognized initially is the fair value of
the redeemable non-controlling interests and subsequently remeasured at each reporting
date based on a price to earnings multiple discounted to the reporting date. For agreements
entered into prior to the adoption of IFRS 3 on January 1, 2008, subsequent changes in
liabilities are recognized in profit or loss. For agreements entered into after January 1, 2008,
subsequent changes in liabilities are recognized through equity.

(d) Intangible Assets

The fair value of tradenames is based on the relief-from-royalty method of valuation. The
fair value of leasehold interests is determined using the income approach. The fair value of
customer relationships is determined using a combination of the income approach and the
multi-period excess earnings method, whereby the subject asset is valued after deducting a
fair return on all other assets that are part of creating the related cash flows.

5. Financial Risk Management Overview
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
e credit risk
e liquidity risk
e market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks,
the Group's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the
Group’s management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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5. Financial Risk Management Overview continued

(a) Risk Management Framework

The Company's Board of Directors (the “Board”) has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The Group’s risk
management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group,
to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

(b) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Group’s receivables from customers. Maximum exposure is limited to the carrying amounts
of the financial assets presented in the consolidated financial statements.

Trade and Other Receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of
each customer. However, management also considers the demographics of the Group’s
customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers
operate, as these factors may have an influence on credit risk. No single customer accounted
for more than 5% of the Group’s sales for the periods presented or accounts receivable as
of the reporting dates. Geographically there is no concentration of credit risk.

The Group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed
individually for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard payment and delivery terms
and conditions are offered.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit
characteristics, including aging profile, and existence of previous financial difficulties. Trade
and other receivables relate mainly to the Group’s wholesale customers. Customers that are
graded as “high risk” are placed on credit hold and monitored by the Group, and future
sales are made on an approval basis.

(0) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities.

The Group's primary sources of liquidity are its cash flows from operating activities,
invested cash, available lines of credit (note 16(b)) and, subject to shareholder approval, its
ability to issue additional shares. The Group believes that its existing cash and estimated
cash flows, along with current working capital, will be adequate to meet the operating and
capital requirements of the Group for at least the next twelve months.
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5. Financial Risk Management Overview continued
(d) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

The Group periodically buys and sells financial derivatives, such as forward purchase
contracts for hedging purposes, in order to manage market risks.

(i) Currency Risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk on purchases and borrowings that are denominated
in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of the Group’s subsidiaries.
The Group periodically uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its exposure to
currency risk on product purchases denominated in a currency other than the respective
functional currency of the Group’s subsidiaries. The forward exchange contracts typically
have maturities of less than one year.
Interest on borrowings is typically denominated in the local currency of the borrowing.
Borrowings are generally denominated in currencies that match the cash flows generated by
the underlying operations of the borrowing entity.

(ii) Interest Rate Risk

The Group monitors its exposure to changes in interest rates on borrowings on variable rate
debt instruments. Although the Group does not currently have any interest rate hedging
instruments, it may, from time to time, enter into interest rate swap contracts to manage
interest rate risk.

(iii) Other Market Price Risk

Equity price risk arises from available for sale equity securities held by the Group’s defined
benefit pension plans to fund obligations that are used to measure periodic net pension
costs. Pension plan liabilities are presented net of pension plan assets in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group’s investment strategy involves a de-
risking program utilizing liability hedging assets to offset changes in the Group’s defined
benefit pension plan obligations. The Group engages professional pension plan asset
managers to assist in this process.

(iv) Other Pension and Post-retirement Obligations

The estimated pension obligation (the actuarial present value of benefits attributed to
employee service and compensation levels prior to the measurement date without
considering future compensation levels) exceeds the fair value of the assets of the Group’s
pension plans, which is primarily the result of the performance of equity markets during
prior years. Future market conditions and interest rate fluctuations could significantly impact
future assets and liabilities of our pension plans and future minimum required funding
levels.
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5. Financial Risk Management Overview continued
(e) Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management policies is to safeguard its ability
to continue as a going concern, to provide returns for shareholders, fund capital expenditures,
normal operating expenses and working capital needs, and the payment of obligations. The
primary source of cash is revenue from sales of the Group’s products. The Group anticipates
generating sufficient cash flow from operations in the majority of countries where it
operates and will have sufficient available cash and ability to draw on credit facilities for
funding to satisfy the working capital and financing needs.

The Group’s capital needs are primarily managed through cash and cash equivalents
(note 13), trade and other receivables (note 12), inventories (note 11), property plant and
equipment (note 8), trade and other payables (note 20) and loans and borrowings (note 16).

6. Segment Reporting

(a) Operating Segments

Management of the business and evaluation of operating results is organized primarily

along geographic lines dividing responsibility for the Group’s operations, besides the

Corporate segment, as follows:

¢ Asia — which includes operations in South Asia (India and Middle East), China, Singapore,
South Korea, Taiwan, Malaysia, Japan, Hong Kong, Thailand, Indonesia, Philippines and
Australia;

e North America — which includes operations in the United States of America and Canada;

e Europe — which includes operations in European countries as well as South Africa;

e Latin America — which includes operations in Chile, Mexico, Argentina, Brazil, Colombia,
Panama, Peru and Uruguay; and

Corporate — which primarily includes certain licensing activities from brand names owned
by the Group and Corporate headquarters overhead.

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below.
Performance is measured based on segment operating profit or loss, as included in the
internal management reports. Segment operating profit or loss is used to measure
performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in
evaluating the results of the Group’s segments.
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FREUBHRMET &
6. DIPHME & 6. Segment Reporting continued
(a) BENB 4 (a) Operating Segments continued

201412831 BREEZALEE
HoEBERMT :

Segment information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014 is as follows:

B jﬁliﬁ BUM HTENM % At

UFETZ) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Asia America Europe  Latin America Corporate  Consolidated
ShEB U AR External revenues 892,258 761,310 557,934 130,606 8,599 2,350,707
e RF Operating profit 108,030 50,719 69,195 3,401 67,932 299,277
MEREBMAIBER Operating profit excluding

K& R T intragroup charges 169,043 101,868 74,335 6,644 (52,613) 299,277
EREH Depreciation and amortization 18,635 10,120 17,203 4,001 1,809 51,768
BAREX Capital expenditures 18,931 12,259 32,480 3,955 2,011 69,636
FEUWA Interest income 354 6 107 9 2 478
FERX Interest expense (622) (17) (164) (219) (2,672) (3,694)
RS8R (B%) Income tax (expense)

%) benefit (24,232) (20,177) (22,049) 926 (11,486) (77,018)
BEEMLE Total assets 568,960 767,971 441,078 100,427 252,858 2,131,294
BEHEE Total liabilities 209,397 494,438 181,636 65,964 (127,581) 823,854

M2013F 12831 B REBEZBLEE
HoEHERMT !

Segment information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013 is as follows:

i e B BT EM o% ast

KUFETZ25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Asia America Europe  Latin America Corporate  Consolidated
SMEBUK 2= External revenues 768,363 621,741 515,177 123,580 8,951 2,037,812
R Operating profit 82,685 49,027 62,580 13,562 73,438 281,292
MEREBAZBER  Operating profit excluding

K& R T intragroup charges 135,233 94,277 71,692 15,172 (35,082) 281,292
ER Depreciation and amortization 17,640 5,149 15,979 4,187 2,229 45,184
BARMX Capital expenditures 14,307 8,332 27,024 4,281 3,295 57,239
FIE U A Interest income 264 3 254 3 328 852
FIERX Interest expense (1,016) - (119) (364) (1,430) (2,929)
FrEBiRX Income tax expense (19,889) (21,374) (11,080) (2,759) (17,813) (72,915)
EERHE Total assets 527,534 571,347 444,601 105,727 285,682 1,934,891
BEHEE Total liabilities 211,822 421,379 197,164 61,944 (188,000) 704,309
(b) HbigiEH (b) Geographical Information

TREFBRATSENEECENEME  The following tables set out enterprise-wide information about the geographical location of
BR () REEREMIFFHWER (A (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers and (i) the Group’s property, plant, and
SEENYE - RERRE BEEEMURE  equipment, intangible assets and goodwill (specified non-current assets). The geographical
B2 (BENERBEE) - EFMMIEME  location of customers is based on the selling location of the goods. The geographical
DBENREREENE - EENFEREEE  location of the specified non-current assets is based on the physical location of the asset.

HiE BN EREENERYE
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6. DIPRE & 6. Segment Reporting continued

(b) iREH & (b) Geographical Information continued
(i) FAIMDEFBIKE (i) Revenue from External Customers
TREWEAEBHEEEBNEIEMFHNE  The following table presents the revenues earned from customers in major geographical
WEFEEHE - locations where the Group has operations.
BE12A31ALEE
Year ended December 31,
KUFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
M Asia:
FE China 227,454 192,187
L South Korea 189,502 161,182
ENRE India 126,653 110,526
=R Japan 77,855 64,172
& Hong Kong® 74,899 66,765
M Australia 48,613 42,666
MR ABEERE United Arab Emirates 37,208 30,501
SN Singapore 25,622 23,056
Z=E Thailand 24,897 22,949
= Taiwan 23,131 19,582
ENE e Indonesia 20,347 20,195
Hith Other 16,077 14,582
BMEET Total Asia 892,258 768,363
JEEM: North America:
xE United States 720,737 589,618
PV Canada 40,573 32,123
EEMNES Total North America 761,310 621,741
BuM - Europe:
B=E Germany 81,847 74,333
SEE] France 75,473 67,005
e l]53 Belgium 65,239 60,330
=V [taly 60,799 54,079
HE United Kingdom 45,684 38,705
ST Spain 44,812 40,286
REEHT Russia 40,037 44,679
Gl ] Holland 26,474 25,140
®t Switzerland 19,567 19,334
i Sweden 17,053 16,549
+EH Turkey 15,925 13,422
B A Austria 15,695 14,309
W, Norway 15,170 15,992
Hith Other 34,159 31,014
BUMEF Total Europe 557,934 515,177
RTEM: Latin America:
&H Chile 58,898 62,577
=7 Mexico 39,830 35,475
B Brazil 18,925 9,762
Hith Other 12,953 15,766
BT EMEF Total Latin America 130,606 123,580
tERHEM (BRKE) Corporate and other (royalty revenue):
EHE Luxembourg 8,456 8,797
xH United States 143 154
TERHAEMES Total Corporate and other 8,599 8,951
st Total 2,350,707 2,037,812
g3 Note
0 EEERP " Includes Macau
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REMBMRMET &

6. DEPERE &

(b) iisi&H} &

(i) IBEMERDEE
THREZBHUELINAEMYEAER

6. Segment Reporting continued

(b) Geographical Information continued

(ii) Specified Non-current Assets

The following table presents the Group’s significant non-current assets by geographical

BEE - ROBRWIEEFRBEEETEEIE  location. Unallocated specified non-current assets mainly comprise goodwill.
[GEE
128318

December 31,
HUFET25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
ERE Luxembourg 639,777 588,952
xH United States 87,851 31,127
Lt FIBF Belgium 66,569 58,747
®FR Hungary 21,632 18,331
EnE India 18,378 18,772
FRE China 16,719 16,096
] Hong Kong 14,569 9,205
= Chile 12,738 15,099
LS South Korea 10,856 10,790
7. ¥BEH 7. Business Combinations

HZE2014F12A831BLLEE » XEBETK
=IEEKEH -

(a) Lipault
R2014F4818 > AEBHP—B2EK
B2 B 55 X UK BE ()Distri Bagages (—BIiR1E
ZEEERTMRIRABNERSIEA
7l) » K (i)Licences et Développements (—
BRBEBREETMR L RABNERET
AR (HBMLpautBEERE])  BeREA
2000HBE T ZMO I EERTHRESE
EESHE LRBER201BEBET K
EEEHEE Lipaut BN BEBITRY °
Lipault 272005 F REE A 7 1T
Bme HERRFHIERTRBEREEN
ER ERFOBEEERI - BB WETTR
HBONHEY  WHRAZZEAMANEE
R RS -
B EIE I E— S ERANEEN @S
HE o WRHREEAEEREHBLER
VR RERBRENURESHEHRERT
EMSHES  FEIRER - BUNEM
5 R it RE T 5 K REIER Lpault &
Mo Lipault tER—BFEERmE - BEBARE
EEBEBRIGEREME K HMET TS| M
KL EEE -
BUEE BHAE » Lipaut B AXEER
F2014F12A3N AL FENGEMBEE
BRSSHEBERKEROTEBETEE -

134 | Samsonite International S.A. Annual Report 2014

The Group completed three business combinations during the year ended December 31,
2014.

(a) Lipault

On April 1, 2014, a wholly owned subsidiary within the Group completed the acquisition of
(i) Distri Bagages, a société a responsabilité limitée, incorporated and organized under the
Laws of France, and (ii) Licences et Développements, a société a responsabilité limitée,
incorporated and organized under the Laws of France (collectively, the “Lipault Entities”) for
cash consideration of EUR20.0 million, with a subsequent working capital adjustment of
EURO.1 million, for a total purchase price of EUR20.1 million. The Group purchased all of the
outstanding capital stock of the Lipault Entities.

Lipault is a luggage brand founded in France in 2005, whose products are designed to
meet the needs of today’s savvy travellers, featuring ultra-lightweight, smart designs and
bright fashion colors, and constructed using luxurious but durable nylon twill fabric.

The acquisition further expands the Group’s brand portfolio and presents opportunities
to leverage the Group’s industry leading design and product development capabilities, as
well as its distribution network and retail presence, to significantly expand the Lipault brand
in France, additional markets in Europe and the rest of the world. Lipault is a youthful brand
that will help the Group engage with the fashionable, female consumers through its
signature Parisian style and vibrant colors.

From the date of acquisition, the Lipault Entities contributed US$5.5 million of revenue
and a loss of US$0.7 million to the consolidated financial results of the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2014.



7. ¥%&He

(a) Lipault &
TREERGEARIRBEEREE

URFAEEENERISHERBBEN

S °

HUFETZZ

7. Business Combinations continued
(a) Lipault continued

The following table summarizes the recognized amounts of assets and liabilities
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date as an allocation of the purchase
price.

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

3 - BE K RE
BB EE
HitIFRBEE

FE

FEW AR EL A FE W RRIR
HitnBEE

A RR R HAEARUR
EEBIRRE
HitnBaE

FEWERR R E bR FE EERIHE X
REF12EBRTHREIRR - RUEEHE
HRELHEER TR -

ERIITELBEEIE - MEFRR
2014 IR EREN DL WIBED B
BESHFHEE -

AEECHKWBEERZISABR
THEE - BB T EHRESE Lipault &6
EREEREEBIERNIBE MBI
B ECHRIFEIRBEE T U

(b) Speculative Product Design, LLC

(I'Speck Products |)
20145658280  AKEBEHEB—H2 &
Ff B8 2 =) 52 A UL BB Speck Products @ B &K
BERSSOEBERL RELEESHES
0.04EEXET  BWIBERS.OABET
REEE 88 B Speck Products 2 E 1T
BRAp e

Speck Products FA2001 £ 1 N 7 18 B
EMNHARRYL  R—FRELEERNEBTRS
$HAF  LSpeck® mIBEHBANE 7B
4B IR 2R o Speck Products 12 AE1Y - =
BRARFENSELLERRY BT X
BENERFH  TRERRFREMEME
B ARG = AR E o Speck f B R [ 458
REIZRFLEES HIWMARKMEDN
Candy Shell & &€ F # R #E 7% » T3 LA Speck
Products B AIAY [ BXIERR | Hilidis o

Property, plant and equipment 600
Identifiable intangible assets 14,838
Other non-current assets 121

Inventories 1,231

Trade and other receivables 1,249
Other current assets 54
Trade and other payables (1,114)
Deferred tax liabilities (4,695)
Other current liabilities (448)

The trade and other receivables includes trade receivables with gross contractual
amounts due of US$1.2 million, none of which was expected to be uncollectible at the
acquisition date.

The table above represents the final purchase price allocation. No changes were made
to the preliminary purchase price allocation of provisional amounts disclosed in the 2014
Interim Report.

Goodwill in the amount of US$15.8 million was recognized as a result of the acquisition.
The goodwill is attributable mainly to the synergies expected to be achieved from integrating
Lipault in the Group’s existing business. None of the goodwill recognized is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.

(b) Speculative Product Design, LLC (“Speck Products”)

On May 28, 2014, a wholly owned subsidiary within the Group completed the acquisition
of Speck Products for cash consideration of US$85.0 million, with a subsequent working
capital adjustment of US$0.04 million, for a total purchase price of US$85.0 million. The
Group purchased all of the outstanding capital stock of Speck Products.

Founded in Silicon Valley, California in 2001, Speck Products is a leading designer and
distributor of slim protective cases for personal electronic devices that are marketed under
the Speck® brand. Speck Products offers a diverse product range that is sleek, stylish and
functionally innovative, and provides superior, military-grade protection for smartphones,
tablets and laptops from a range of manufacturers. The Speck brand is particularly well-
known for its “slim protection” designs such as the iconic Candy Shell smartphone case,
which is constructed using a “hard-soft” technology that Speck Products pioneered.
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REMBMRMET &

7. ¥%&He
(b) Speculative Product Design, LLC

(I'Speck Products |) #&

AEERBHELRBSEEERTEE
M ESRIE UM IR E MRS
WHAEERE—EELBANREREER
BHNERAES  HENEZEFHK - FIRE
B~ FIREBEREMEAE FRBRERT
S — N - WIS ETRHMEELEE
BREHZRRBBANZRDHREREEDS
AL E S - F I KRIEIER Speck @ R
M BONRR T ENEBNESEHE -

B Ui B #34E » Speck Products B
EHEZ2014F12A31BLEENGEETE
XEERNCEBETWERIEEET
A o

TREMRE BB BRIBEERER
URFFAREEBEHNERISEEABRBEN
S °

UFETZ2Z

7. Business Combinations continved
(b) Speculative Product Design, LLC (“Speck Products”) continued

The acquisition enables the Group to strategically extend its brand portfolio beyond its
traditional strength in travel luggage products, and provides the Group with a strong brand
and product offering resulting in an immediate foothold in the market for protective cases
for smartphones, tablets, laptops and other personal electronic devices. It also provides the
Group with opportunities to leverage its well-established global distribution network and
retail presence to significantly expand the reach of the Speck brand in Asia, Europe and Latin
America.

From the date of acquisition, Speck Products contributed US$91.6 million of revenue
and profit of US$1.6 million to the consolidated financial results of the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2014.

The following table summarizes the recognized amounts of assets and liabilities
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date as an allocation of the purchase
price.

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

Y3 - BE KRR
AR EE
HitFRBEE

FE

P AR e H b FE W R IR
HitnggE
HitIEnaaE

FE A BRI L A FE 3 008
HipReaE

FEW AR H AR RR B E RIS 4
THRBF128BBETNEBIERT - BRI
AHHEFoSERETHSRTRD -

RARAM2014F FHIRE T DL
WREIENEESHEE - ARTCTHE
HMOTEBEARBER - ERIITERLNW
BESE  YEETHREEHARRLES

FEECHRBSERR22IBEE
THEE - B8 X ERRNEY M Speck
Products &t EAEBR A X FTERNIH
B AE - RN —FORIHEIRHR
5B 89T LAIRR o
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Property, plant and equipment 6,420
Identifiable intangible assets 43,900
Other non-current assets 1,008
Inventories 24,073
Trade and other receivables 12,085
Other current assets 1,877
Other non-current liabilities (2,041)
Trade and other payables (19,170)
Other current liabilities (6,096)

The trade and other receivables include trade receivables with gross contractual
amounts due of US$12.8 million, of which US$0.8 million was expected to be uncollectible
at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to the publication of the preliminary purchase price allocation of provisional
amounts in the Company’s 2014 Interim Report, an additional US$0.7 million of current
liabilities was identified. The table above represents the final purchase price allocation and
has been updated from the interim disclosure to reflect this amount.

Goodwill in the amount of US$22.9 million was recognized as a result of the acquisition.
The goodwill is attributable mainly to the synergies expected to be achieved from integrating
Speck Products in the Group's existing business. Approximately half of the goodwill
recognized is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.



7. ¥%&He
() Gregory Mountain Products
(I'Gregory )
R201457H238  AEBE T2 EWE
AR ([HEEER]) US4 1 BEEEEE
Gregory Mountain Products, LLC
(IGregoryl) EFFEEE - HTIEEBERE
B Greqoryd i FFREEE HRE - BETHE
WHERETHMREEERD  WHAE
Gregory BEEEBBRTPIBEEBRETAN
=N
REBBRE BB BERN—EENE
YHmERERES  BRENRSHFINK
HREEETISDMBNEE - ARFTFALER
RERK  REHIREHERIHEDNE
2 A Gregory RIER EBI R B T35
FIRMEIER © Gregory BB R HITENBE
REBR  fE T BEERTTNSEAN - BT
SERNFPIRERREFEES  RomEHE
EENEERE - REEEEI  Gregory
mENKEEEEARR AT NERINE
B Uk B 8 » Gregory AAEEEHZE
014F 12 AN BLEEENGEBEES
126 EBERTRER02BEEUGH
TREMRERBIRBEEREE
URFAESENERISHERRBEN
DE °

7. Business Combinations continved
(c) Gregory Mountain Products (“Gregory”)

On July 23, 2014, certain of the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries (the “Samsonite
Purchasers”) purchased substantially all of the assets of Gregory Mountain Products, LLC
("Gregory”) for US$84.1 million. The Samsonite Purchasers purchased substantially all of
the assets of Gregory excluding cash, certain receivables, and certain other retained assets
and assumed all balance sheet liabilities and certain contractual liabilities of Gregory.

The acquisition gives the Group a strong brand and product offering to expand its
presence in the high-end segment of the outdoor and lifestyle casual markets, as well as
opportunities to leverage the Group’s global marketing and distribution capabilities to
significantly expand the Gregory brand both in the U.S. and internationally. The Gregory
brand is a leader and pioneer in its industry, responsible for many innovations in backpack
design. It is well-respected by active outdoor and adventure enthusiasts as a leading brand
in the premium technical backpack segment. In addition to technical backpacks, Gregory
branded lifestyle backpacks are popular in Japan and other Asian countries.

From the date of acquisition, Gregory contributed US$12.6 million of revenue and
profit of US$0.2 million to the consolidated financial results of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2014.

The following table summarizes the recognized amounts of assets and liabilities
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date as an allocation of the purchase
price.

HUFETZ25 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

Al BB EE Identifiable intangible assets 54,660
rE Inventories 7,117
FEUR BR R R EL At FE U R IE Trade and other receivables 6,253
HitRE&EE Other current assets 124
FEAFEBRFR R EAth FE(S TR IE Trade and other payables (1,485)
HttRsas Other current liabilities (1,588)

FEUEER R EMERREEESHEH
SEHAEISHBEETMNEIERR » AU
BEEFO 1T EEE TR ATRE -

FRITREBEESE - NEBEH
WIEEIEER 10.0FBXTHEE - B X
EHATEEE Gregory A EAREBIRAE
BEEBWHRMEE - EHA—¥ER
REAEA BB TR ©

The trade and other receivables include trade receivables with gross contractual
amounts due of US$4.8 million, of which US$0.1 million was expected to be uncollectible
at the acquisition date.

The table above represents the final purchase price allocation. Goodwill in the amount
of US$19.0 million was recognized as a result of the acquisition. The goodwill is attributable
mainly to the synergies expected to be achieved from integrating Gregory in the Group’s
existing business. Approximately half of the goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible
for tax purposes.
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7. ¥

(d) HEEE

TS WEEER2014FE1818EE » K
B 2014F R EHETENR24178
BXE M04FREEFMANAE1SSEE
ExX o FEENESEN  AEBRERK
BHMEENATEARSHNKESEER
2014F 1 B 1 HEAEEER -

(e) WaRESSIEHMRARAE
AEBEREZE2014F12A31H K2013%F
NAMNALFEESREENI3SBEEET
RINBEETHRBESEEERE - BE
BAFERREEREERAHERERN
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ME B TR o

8. W% - BERREFHE

7. Business Combinations continued
(d) Pro forma results

If these acquisitions had occurred on January 1, 2014, the Group estimates that consolidated
net sales for 2014 would have been approximately US$2,417 million, and consolidated

profit for 2014 would have been approximately US$183 million. In determining these

amounts, the Group has assumed that the fair value adjustments that arose on the date of

acquisition would have been the same if the acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2014.

(e) Acquisition-related costs

The Group incurred approximately US$13.5 million and US$1.1 million in acquisition related
costs during the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
Such costs are primarily comprised of costs associated with due diligence and integration
activities, as well as professional and legal fees, and are recognized within other expenses

on the income statement.

8. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

s R
HEMERE
RHft
Machinery,
equipment,
leasehold
ot 1] #F improvements st
HUFETZ25 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Land Buildings and other Total
20144 2014
B Cost:
R2014F181H At January 1, 2014 11,292 50,546 374,993 436,831
BENE  BERRE Purchases of property, plant and equipment 681 11,455 57,500 69,636
BREBANTE Additions through business combinations
(BIzE7) (note 7) - - 7,020 7,020
HE Disposals - - (10,890) (10,890)
ERSENE Hib Effect of movements in exchange rates/other (702) (6,408) (26,324) (33,434)
7A2014%12831H At December 31, 2014 11,271 55,593 402,299 469,163
ZETIERAE - Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
#2014F181H At January 1, 2014 1,333 24,218 255,933 281,484
FRIFE Depreciation for the year 26 3,140 39,422 42,588
HE Disposals - - (10,060) (10,060)
EREENFE Hit Effect of movements in exchange rates/other (161) (3,526) (19,487) (23,174)
7201451283180 At December 31, 2014 1,198 23,832 265,808 290,838
SREE : Carrying value:
A20145F12831H At December 31, 2014 10,073 31,761 136,491 178,325
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8. Y% - MERREFH«

8. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net continued

g -
HEYERE
REAM
Machinery,
equipment,
leasehold
Tt #F  improvements st
HUFETZ2S Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Land Buildings and other Total
2013%F 2013
B Cost:
#2013F181H At January 1, 2013 10,900 48,680 319,342 378,922
BEME  BERR Purchases of property, plant and equipment 188 906 56,145 57,239
e Disposals - (420) (14,952) (15,372)
ERSENTE Hih Effect of movements in exchange rates/other 204 1,380 14,458 16,042
P2013F12831H At December 31, 2013 11,292 50,546 374,993 436,831
FFHTERAE Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
M2013F181H At January 1, 2013 1,255 20,132 221,71 243,098
FERFE Depreciation for the year 25 3,527 33,269 36,821
HE Disposals - (412) (14,319) (14,731)
ER2BNE Hit Effect of movements in exchange rates/other 53 971 15,272 16,296
7A2013F12H31H At December 31, 2013 1,333 24,218 255,933 281,484
BRMEE : Carrying value:
#2013%F12831H At December 31, 2013 9,959 26,328 119,060 155,347

B £2014% 128318 Kk2013F128
BSVELEFENFEER A ARAEE
TR368EEBERT - EZELEP 698

ENRSIBBERSBIFFABZE20145F
12831HK2013F 12 831 HILEEMHEE
B o R T RN DR —MRITBBXA
2% RNEB T N2015FHESI6EBEE
THEREX  HPPY1678BERER
20145 12A31BI#E - MERASEREE
Bt i R K A SERE o

R2014%128318 » MEEERED
&£ o

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
amounted to US$42.6 million and US$36.8 million, respectively. Of this amount, US$6.9
million and US$5.9 million was included in cost of sales during the years ended December
31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Remaining amounts were presented in
distribution and general and administrative expenses. The Group has authorized capital
expenditures of US$81.6 million in 2015, of which approximately US$16.7 million has been
committed as of December 31, 2014. All land owned by the Group is freehold.

No impairment indicators existed at December 31, 2014.
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9. HERHMBREE

(a) HE

R2014F 128310 AEENEEEHRE
FFHR2701BEEx  HRHNS53HEET
FEHEARI R ATISHE B M F AR ©

9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

(a) Goodwill

The Group’s goodwill balance amounted to US$270.1 million at December 31, 2014, of

which approximately US$55.3 million is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.
The carrying amount of goodwill was as follows:

HEWRAENT
128310
December 31,

HUFET25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
B Cost:

w1B18 At January 1 1,184,143 1,184,143

BREBEOARE (HE7) Additions through business combinations (note 7) 57,690 -

EZSHNTE Effect of movement in foreign exchange rates (1,967) -

128318 At December 31 1,239,866 1,184,143
2IHREEE Accumulated impairment losses:

M ATBRMI2A31H At January 1 and at December 31 (969,787)  (969,787)
BREME - Carrying Amount: 270,079 214,356

The aggregate carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each operating segment were

T: as follows:

) BIES) BUM FT XM At
HUFETZ25 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Asia  North America Europe  Latin America  Consolidated
#2014%12A8318 At December 31, 2014 170,661 84,018 15,400 = 270,079
720135128318 At December 31, 2013 153,212 61,144 = = 214,356
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9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued

(a) Goodwill continued

In accordance with IAS 36, Impairment of Assets (“IAS 36"), the recoverable amounts
of the Group’s CGUs with goodwill were determined using the higher of fair value less cost
to sell or value in use, which is determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows
generated from the continuing use of the unit.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s operating
segments, comprised of groups of CGUs, as these represent the lowest level within the
Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. The allocation
is made to those CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose.

Separate calculations are prepared for each of the groups of CGUs that make up the
consolidated entity. These calculations use discounted cash flow projections based on
financial estimates reviewed by management covering a five year period. Cash flows beyond
the five year period are extrapolated using estimated growth rates appropriate for the
market in which the unit operates. The values assigned to the key assumptions represent
management’s assessment of future trends and are based on both external sources and
internal sources (historical data) and are summarized below.

e A pre-tax discount rate of 11% was used in discounting the projected cash flows. The
same pre-tax discount rate has been used for all segments as the specific local market
risks are embedded in the cash flow projections.

¢ Segment cash flows were projected based on the historical operating results and the five
year forecasts.

The terminal value is extrapolated using a constant long term growth rate of 3%, which
is consistent with the average growth rate for the industry.
The sales prices were assumed to be a constant margin above cost.

Management has considered the above assumptions and valuation and has also taken
into account the business plans going forward. Management believes that any reasonably

foreseeable change in any of the above key assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of goodwill to exceed the recoverable amount. Judgment is required to determine
key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and the changes to key assumptions
can significantly affect these cash flow projections.
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9. HERAMENEE«

(b) HibEREE

(b) Other Intangible Assets

9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued

Hit\E EE a4 Other intangible assets consisted of the following:
Hitp
BEERE
EFREE EHBRE Total other
Customer Hith Total subject [EES] intangible
UFETZ7) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars relationships Other to amortization Tradenames assets
AR Cost:
A2013F181H At January 1, 2013 115,250 5,721 120,971 595,035 716,006
INEEZZFHTE Effect of movement in foreign
currency exchange rate - - = (452) (452)
A2013F 128318 K At December 31, 2013 and
20141818 January 1, 2014 115,250 5721 120971 594,583 715554
EBEBRSOIIRE Additions through business
(Ff=E7) combinations (note 7) 23,664 701 24,365 89,033 113,398
HitnRE Other additions - 1,744 1,744 = 1,744
INEEZSENTE Effect of movement in foreign
currency exchange rate (143) 131 (12) (1,970) (1,982)
220145%E12A318 At December 31, 2014 138,771 8,297 147,068 681,646 828,714
HET#EE ¢ Accumulated amortization:
M2013F181H At January 1, 2013 (39,282) (5,202) (44,484) - (44,484)
FREH Amortization for the year (7,968) (395) (8,363) = (8,363)
A2013F 128318 K At December 31, 2013 and
20141818 January 1, 2014 (47,250) (5,597) (52,847) - (52,847)
FREH Amortization for the year (8,895) (285) (9,180) - (9,180)
#2014%12H31H At December 31, 2014 (56,145) (5,882) (62,027) - (62,027)
BREE : Carrying amounts:
20145128318 At December 31, 2014 82,626 2,415 85,041 681,646 766,687
#A2013F12A31H At December 31, 2013 68,000 124 68,124 594,583 662,707

ZEEZHENAREBENT ¢ The aggregate carrying amounts of each significant tradename were as follows:
12H318
December 31,
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
TEE Samsonite 462,459 462,459
American Tourister American Tourister 69,969 69,969
High Sierra High Sierra 39,900 39,900
Hartmann Hartmann 16,500 16,500
Speck Speck 36,800 -
Gregory Gregory 38,600 -
Hth Other 17,418 5,755
mEeT Total tradenames 681,646 594,583
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9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued

(b) Other Intangible Assets continued

Amortization expense for intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013 was US$9.2 million and US$8.4 million, respectively, and is presented
as a distribution expense in the consolidated income statement. Future amortization expense
as of December 31, 2014 for the next five years is estimated to be US$10.3 million, US$10.3
million, US$10.0 million, US$8.4 million, US$8.4 million and a total of US$37.6 million
thereafter.

In accordance with IAS 36, the Group is required to evaluate its intangible assets with
definite lives for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate that
their carrying amount might not be recoverable. As of December 31, 2014 and December
31, 2013 there were no impairment indicators and there were no accumulated impairment
losses at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

The Group’s tradenames have been deemed to have indefinite lives due to their high
quality and perceived value. In accordance with IAS 36, the recoverable amounts of the
Group’s tradenames were determined using the relief-from-royalty income approach to
derive fair value less cost to sell.

The calculations use discounted projections based on financial estimates reviewed by
management covering a five year period. Revenues beyond the five year period are
extrapolated using estimated growth rates appropriate for the market. The values assigned
to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends and are based
on both external sources and internal sources (historical data) and are summarized below.
e A pre-tax discount rate of 11% was used. The same pre-tax discount rate has been used

for all tradenames as the specific risks associated with each are embedded in the cash
flow projections.

e Revenues were based on anticipated selling prices and projected based on the historical
operating results, the five year forecasts and royalty rates based on recent transfer pricing
studies in the jurisdictions the Group operates in.

e The terminal value is extrapolated using a constant long term growth rate of 3%, which
is consistent with the average growth rate for the industry.

e The sales prices were assumed to be a constant margin above cost.

Management has considered the above assumptions and valuation and has also taken
into account the business plans going forward. Management believes that any reasonably
foreseeable change in any of the above key assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of its indefinite lived intangible assets to exceed their recoverable amounts.
Judgment is required to determine key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections
and the changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash flow projections.
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10. FARFX « v B ERFEWRIE

10. Prepaid Expenses, Other Assets and Receivables

(a) FimEN (a) Non-current
HitE E REWREERE Other assets and receivables consisted of the following:
128318
December 31,

UFETZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
N Deposits 19,097 15,738
Hth Other 4,098 6,984
Hibh g EREWFIEALE Total other assets and receivables 23,195 22,722

(b) HEE
ANAXRAEMRESEERDR —FRKE
X o

(b) Current
Prepaid expenses and other current assets are expected to be recoverable or expensed
within one year.

1. BE 11. Inventories
FEEEUTEE: Inventories consisted of the following:
128318
December 31,

UFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
AT Raw materials 17,558 20,564
&M Work in process 2,099 2,424
SR Finished goods 312,617 275,389
wEE Total inventories 332,274 298,377

L ESBEEER2014E12A318 &
2013F 12 A3 R EE FE (D FER
HERR) JIRNEFEES B A1028BEE
TR7M4ABEETT - BE20145F12831H
R2013F12A31BLLEE  FEMBAZET
BHFEIACSEEBELKIIEEE
Tt o & E2014F 128310 K2013F 128
BNALEFEE REFTEINMRED 2
BA23EBEARIIEEET  AAERE
UeRERGHNEELEBIMEFS -
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The amounts above include inventories carried at net realizable value (fair value less
costs to sell) of US$102.8 million and US$71.4 million as of December 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2014 and December
31, 2013, the impairment of inventories to net realizable value amounted to US$6.8 million
and US$3.3 million, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2014 and December
31, 2013 the reversal of write-downs recognized in profit or loss amounted to US$2.3
million and US$1.1 million, respectively, where the Group was able to sell the previously
written down inventories at higher selling prices than previously estimated.
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12. Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are presented net of related allowances for doubtful accounts
of US$13.5 million and US$14.4 million as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively.

(a) Aging Analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful
accounts) of US$276.3 million and US$233.7 million as of December 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively, with the following aging analysis by invoice date:

12A31H
December 31,
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
BHA Current 234,230 195,080
B Past Due 42,066 38,612
FEWBRFR AR Total Trade Receivables 276,296 233,692

FEHINREENEFHEEMRE
20145128310 » BWERRAFIEIH
AARZHMBF60RMA -

(b) FEMARTREY IS E

BB REUCRT AR ESEEAREIRCE
BRIFREEARBWERENRSER - FIt
BRT - BEREEEERIRIGETH
e AEBEI A ZEERTEEMER

Credit terms are granted based on the credit worthiness of individual customers. As of
December 31, 2014, trade receivables are on average due within 60 days from the date of
billing.

(b) Impairment of Trade Receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables directly. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

m ° The movement in the allowance for doubtful accounts during the year:
FRRERESBNT ¢
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
M1B1H At January 1 14,353 12,872
2HERHEEE Impairment loss recognized 1,097 2,242
2R EIHERE Impairment loss written back (1,991) (761)
®12A31H At December 31 13,459 14,353
13. RERBAEFEY 13. Cash and Cash Equivalents
128318
December 31,

UFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
IR1TEEER Bank balances 138,906 195,162
FEHRE Short-term investments 1,517 30,185
RekReEEYEE Total cash and cash equivalents 140,423 225,347

EHREEERERBREFREST
e 20145128318 K2013F 12831
B AEEREAHBESWETMBRSH -

Short-term investments are comprised of overnight sweep accounts and time deposits.
As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 the Group had no restrictions on the use
of any of its cash.
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14. BEREE
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14. Share Capital and Reserves
(a) Ordinary Shares
At December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the Company had 99,872,010,543 and
99,872,899,995, respectively, shares authorized but unissued and 1,408,026,456 and
1,407,137,004, respectively, ordinary shares with par value of US$0.01 per share issued and
outstanding.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to one vote per share at shareholder
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares in issue rank equally and in full for all dividends
or other distributions declared, made or paid on the shares in respect of a record date.

(b) Treasury Shares
There are no treasury shares held by the Group.

(c) Equity of the Company

Details of the equity components of Samsonite International S.A. Company-alone statement
of financial position as included in the consolidated financial statements as of December 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013 are set out below.

B
Reserves
REBEFI
(R5HEE8)
Retained
FEIMIABRA earnings
S Additional Hithf##  (accumulated e AKE
KUFETZ25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Share capital  paid-in capital ~ Other reserves deficit) Total equity
2013%F181H At January 1, 2013 14,071 962,192 - (58,550) 917,713
BRI E AEHM2IR  Distributions to equity holders = = — (37,500) (37,500)
BiEEE AEGEER Loss attributable to equity holders = = — (7,108) (7,108)
LURR AR 32 A< 9 385 B Share-based compensation = = 7,036 = 7,036
A2013F128318 K At December 31, 2013 and
2014%181H January 1, 2014 14,071 962,192 7,036 (103,158) 880,141
BIREZEAEHESIR  Distributions to equity holders - - = (80,000) (80,000)
RiEEE AELEE Loss attributable to equity holders - = = (11,094) (11,094)
1TPIERR #E Exercise of share options 9 2,800 (818) = 1,991
AR AD S A 69 357 B Share-based compensation - - 11,041 - 11,041
Hth Other - - (397) - (397)
720145128318 At December 31, 2014 14,080 964,992 16,862 (194,252) 801,682

HEEERERAREZE20145F128
31HXR20135F 12831 B FENRERE
ANEGGEENERENAEENERRE
BN BEERAR7 1 BEERER

R2014F 128318 A IRFEED
AREER WHFEERERABEE
SRR R RAREAR QAR ZMA L ERA
AlFtESBE -
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The consolidated profit attributable to the equity holders of Samsonite International
S.A. for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 included a loss of
US$11.1 million and US$7.1 million, respectively, which are dealt with in the financial
statements of the Group.

At December 31, 2014, distributable reserves amounted to approximately US$2.2
billion as shown in the statutory financial statements of Samsonite International S.A. and
calculated in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.
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14. Share Capital and Reserves continued

(d) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations.

(e) Other Reserves

Other reserves comprises amounts related to defined benefit pension plans, the cumulative
net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments related to hedged transactions
that have not yet occurred and the share option reserve for share-based payments made by
the Company.

(f) Non-controlling Interests

The Group currently operates in certain markets by means of majority-owned subsidiaries
that are operated in conjunction with a non-controlling partner in each country. Under these
arrangements, the Group contributes brands through trademark licensing agreements and
international marketing expertise and the partner contributes local market expertise. All
interests acquired were paid in full at the time of the acquisition and each of these
subsidiaries are operated on a self-financing basis. There are no current or future requirements
for the Group to contribute any further investment amount to any of these entities.

The agreements governing certain majority-owned subsidiaries include put and call
options whereby the Group may be required to acquire the respective non-controlling
interests at amounts intended to represent current fair value. As of December 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, the financial liabilities recognized related to these put options were
US$58.3 million and US$52.8 million, respectively.

The call options were deemed to have a fair value of nil at each reporting date as the
agreements call for redemption at fair value upon the option being exercised.

15. Earnings Per Share

(a) Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
equity shareholders of the Company.

HOCBTLER
HABTRBREN METHZE

HARRPOIEF I

RIS ARGER

BREFER
HEKRETZS]

BEI12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars, except share and per share data 2014 2013
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of the period 1,407,137,004  1,407,137,004
Weighted-average impact of share options exercised

during the period 624,648 -
Weighted-average number of shares at end of the period 1,407,761,652  1,407,137,004
Profit attributable to the equity holders 186,256 176,087
Basic earnings per share

Expressed in US Dollars per share 0.132 0.125
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15. Earnings Per Share continued

(b) Diluted

Dilutive earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

EBEROIETIR (BX)
BREE

HARRG O IETIH

IR REsE ARE(L SR

SREERA
HUERETZ)

() BERDIK
M2014%F38180 > ESEERBHET
HREBRR2014FE6 178 IR K
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#10.0568E TR E DK © BREMA20145F6
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K> MOIKER2014FE7 811 BX{T -
M2013F3H18A EEEEEES
Bl A 4 5 R 5% B E R 2013F 6 A208 B 5
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HPR0.02665E TR E DK  BRFRM2013
FoACHBRTHRRBEARE L EZE
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MW E E2014512A318 K2013F12

A3BLFE  ARALBERA XA
AEMREH DR o
16. BERRER

(a) FEMENERS :

HZ12A31ALEFE
Year ended December 31,

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars, except share and per share data 2014 2013
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (basic) 1,407,761,652  1,407,137,004
Effect of share options 2,520,360 -
Weighted-average number of shares at end of the period 1,410,282,012  1,407,137,004
Profit attributable to the equity holders 186,256 176,087
Diluted earnings per share

Expressed in US Dollars per share 0.132 0.125

(c) Dividends and Distributions

On March 18, 2014, the Board recommended that a cash distribution in the amount of
US$80.0 million, or approximately US$0.0568 per share, be made to the Company’s
shareholders of record on June 17, 2014 from its ad hoc distributable reserve. The
shareholders approved this distribution on June 5, 2014 at the annual general meeting and
the distribution was paid on July 11, 2014.

On March 18, 2013, the Board recommended that a cash distribution in the amount of
US$37.5 million, or US$0.02665 per share, be made to the Company’s shareholders of
record on June 20, 2013 from its ad hoc distributable reserve. The shareholders approved
this distribution on June 6, 2013 at the annual general meeting and the distribution was
paid on July 12, 2013.

No other dividends or distributions were declared or paid during the years ended
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

16. Loans and Borrowings
(a) Non-current obligations:

128310
December 31,
KUFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
Rl & ERIE Finance lease obligations 32 53
BENER D HR 1S K Less current installments (14) (16)
RN ERRER Non-current loans and borrowings 18 37
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16. Loans and Borrowings continued
(b) Current Obligations

AEBRRBEBOT : The Group had the following current obligations:
128310
December 31,

UFETZ25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
RREERE Revolving Credit Facility 60,000 -
HtEREEE Other lines of credit 7,536 15,482
ETRENETE WV ENER D BRI R Current installments of non-current obligations 14 16
TMBNERHELE Total current obligations 67,550 15,498
BELE R E A AN Less deferred financing costs (2,419) (1,858)
ENERE R B Current loans and borrowings 65,131 13,640

AEBE THBAREKEE BT
BHNZER=AERATLEAEE - Z%
Ei=AEEANBAR A EEHEBIRM
BEES  BREEX  HRITER REZR
BEURERREEE - BSERBEEADS
BEAZENRE - R2014F128318 K
2013128310 > EhRE THWREEZEL
BEARATISEHEETRISSEEET ° K
FATEAERAEER2014F12A318R
2013F12A31H 2 Al R873E B E TR
812HBETR °

Certain subsidiaries of the Group maintain credit lines with various third party lenders
in the regions in which they operate. These local credit lines provide working capital for the
day to day business operations of the subsidiaries, including overdraft, bank guarantee, and
trade finance and factoring facilities. The majority of these credit lines are uncommitted
facilities. The total aggregate amount outstanding under the local facilities was US$7.5
million and US$15.5 million at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
The unused available lines of credit amounted to US$87.3 million and US$81.2 million as of
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
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16. Loans and Borrowings continued
(b) Current Obligations continued

On June 17, 2014, the Group amended its revolving credit facility (the “Revolving
Facility”) to increase the maximum borrowings available thereunder from US$300.0 million
to US$500.0 million and to extend the term of the facility until June 17, 2019. The facility
can be increased by an additional US$300.0 million, subject to lender approval. The
Revolving Facility has an initial term of five years from its effective date of June 17, 2014,
with a one year extension available at the request of the Group and at the option of the
lenders. The interest rate on borrowings under the Revolving Facility is the aggregate of (i)
(a) LIBOR or (b) the prime rate of the lender and (ii) a margin to be determined based on the
Group’s leverage ratio. Based on the Group’s leverage ratio, the Revolving Facility carries a
commitment fee ranging from 0.2% to 0.325% per annum on any unutilized amounts, as
well as an agency fee if another lender joins the Revolving Facility. The Revolving Facility is
secured by certain of the Group’s assets in the United States and Europe, as well as the
Group's intellectual property. The Revolving Facility also contains financial covenants related
to interest coverage and leverage ratios, and operating covenants that, among other things,
limit the Group’s ability to incur additional debt, create liens on its assets, and participate in
certain mergers, acquisitions, liquidations, asset sales or investments. The Group was in
compliance with the financial covenants as of December 31, 2014. At December 31, 2014,
US$437.5 million was available to be borrowed on the Revolving Facility as a result of
US$60.0 million of outstanding borrowings and the utilization of US$2.5 million of the
facility for outstanding letters of credit extended to certain creditors. At December 31,
2013, US$294.4 million was available to be borrowed on the previously existing US$300.0
million revolving credit facility as a result of the utilization of US$5.6 million of the facility for
outstanding letters of credit extended to certain creditors. In connection with increasing the
Revolving Facility, the Group capitalized US$2.0 million of deferred financing costs that will
be amortized over the five-year term.
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17. Employee Benefits
Employee benefits expense, which consists of payroll and other benefits, amounted to
US$287.6 million and US$247.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively. Of these amounts, US$23.6 million and US$22.5 million
was included in cost of sales during the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, respectively. Remaining amounts were presented in distribution and general and
administrative expenses.

Average employee headcount worldwide was approximately 8,492 and 7,580 for the
years ending December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

(a) Long-Term Incentive Schemes

On September 14, 2012, the Company’s shareholders adopted the Company’s Share Award

Scheme. The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to attract skilled and experienced

personnel, to incentivize them to remain with the Group and to motivate them to strive for

the future development and expansion of the Group by providing them with the opportunity
to acquire equity interests in the Company. Awards under the Share Award Scheme may
take the form of either share options or restricted share units (“RSUs"), which may be
granted at the discretion of the Board to directors, employees or such other persons as the

Board may determine.

The exercise price of share options is determined at the time of grant by the Board in
its absolute discretion, but in any event shall not be less than the higher of:

a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant;

b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and

¢) the nominal value of the shares.

As of February 28, 2015 (the “Latest Practicable Date”), the maximum aggregate
number of shares in respect of which awards may be granted pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme is 87,220,660 shares, representing approximately 6.2% of the issued share capital
of the Company. An individual participant may be granted awards pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme in respect of a maximum of 1% of the Company’s total issued shares in any
12-month period. Any grant of awards to an individual participant in excess of this limit is
subject to independent shareholder’s approval.

On January 7, 2014, the Company granted share options exercisable for 12,266,199
ordinary shares to certain directors, key management personnel, and other employees of
the Group with an exercise price of HK$23.30 per share. On May 29, 2014, the Company
granted share options exercisable for 257,566 ordinary shares to an employee of the Group
with an exercise price of HK$24.77 per share. Such options are subject to pro rata vesting
over a 4 year period, with 25% of the options vesting on each anniversary of the grant date.
The options have a 10 year term.
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17. Employee Benefits continued
(a) Long-Term Incentive Schemes continued

In accordance with the terms of the share options, holders of vested options are entitled
to buy newly issued ordinary shares of the Company at a purchase price per share equal to
the exercise price of the options. The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is based on the fair value of share options granted measured using the
Black-Scholes valuation model. The fair value calculated for share options is inherently
subjective due to the assumptions made and the limitations of the model utilized.

The grant-date fair value of the share options granted is generally recognized as an
expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting period of the awards. The
amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the
vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized is
based on the number of awards that meet the vesting conditions at the vesting date.

The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant date of
the share-based payment made on January 7, 2014.

Fair value at grant date HK$9.27
Share price at grant date HK$22.70
Exercise price HK$23.30
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 44.8%
Option life (expected weighted average life) 6.25 years
Expected dividends 0.9%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 1.7%

The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant date of
the share-based payment made on May 29, 2014.

Fair value at grant date HK$9.02
Share price at grant date HK$24.75
Exercise price HK$24.77
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 43.8%
Option life (expected weighted average life) 6.25 years
Expected dividends 1.8%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 1.4%

Expected volatility is estimated taking into account historic average share price volatility
as well as historic average share price volatility of comparable companies given the limited
trading history of the Company’s shares.

In total, share-based compensation expense of US$11.0 million and US$7.0 million was
included in the consolidated income statement for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively.
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17. Employee Benefits continued
(a) Long-Term Incentive Schemes continued

Particulars and movements of share options during the year ended December 31, 2014
and December 31, 2013 were as follows:

hnE

AT EE

BREHE Weighted-

Number of average

Options exercise price

M2014F1 B 1 BERITE Outstanding at January 1, 2014 15,345,178  HK$17.37&7T
HIREE Granted during the period 12,523,765  HK$23.33#JT
HRITE Exercised during the period (889,452) HK$17.36i&7T
HAREESE, R Cancelled/lapsed during the period (237,625) HK$20.29i#7T
2014512 A31 B RITE Outstanding at December 31, 2014 26,741,866  HK$20.13#7T
R2014%F 12831 BH{TE Exercisable at December 31, 2014 2,946,828  HK$17.37#TT
hnkE

FIIITREME
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Options exercise price

M2013F1 B 1 BERIT Outstanding at January 1, 2013 = =
HRES Granted during the period 15,404,402 HK$17 3738 T
HAR S, R Cancelled/lapsed during the period (59,224)  HK$17.36587T
M2013F 1231 HERITE Outstanding at December 31, 2013 15,345,178 HK$17.37# 7T
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Exercisable at December 31, 2013 - -

At December 31, 2014, the range of exercise prices for outstanding share options was
HK$17.36 to HK$24.77 with a weighted average contractual life of 8.5 years. At December
31, 2013, the range of exercise prices for outstanding share options was HK$17.36 to
HK$18.68 with a weighted average contractual life of 9.0 years.

No RSUs had been issued under the Share Award Scheme as of December 31, 2014.

On January 7, 2015, the Group granted an additional 16,006,812 ordinary share
options to certain directors, key management personnel, and other employees. The exercise
price of the options granted is HK$23.31. Such options are subject to pro rata vesting over
a 4-year period, with 25% of the options vesting on each anniversary date of the grant and
have a 10-year term.

On January 7, 2015, the Group made an additional special grant of 10,040,399 share
options to an Executive Director and to five additional members of the Group’s senior
management team. The exercise price of the options granted is HK$23.31. 60% of such
options will vest on January 7, 2018 and 40% will vest on January 7, 2020 and such options
have a 10-year term.
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17. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes

(i) Plan Descriptions

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have pension plans and post-retirement health benefit
plans which provide retirement benefits for eligible employees, generally measured by
length of service, compensation and other factors. The Group follows the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure provisions of 1AS 19, Employee Benefits (“IAS
19"”). Under IAS 19, remeasurements, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return
on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest) are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income and not subsequently
reclassified into profit or loss. The measurement date for all pension and other employee
benefit plans is the Group’s fiscal year end. Details of the significant plans sponsored by the
Group are presented below.

Under IAS 19, the Group determines the net interest expense (income) for the period
on the net defined benefit liability (asset) by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net defined benefit
liability (asset) at the beginning of the annual period, taking into account any changes in the
net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit
payments. Consequently, the net interest cost on the net defined benefit liability (asset) now
comprises:

— Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation;
— Interest income on plan assets; and
— Interest on the effect of asset ceiling.

A U.S. subsidiary of the Group sponsors a defined benefit retirement plan, the
Samsonite Employee Retirement Income Plan, that covers certain employee groups.
Retirement benefits are based on a final average pay formula. This plan was closed to new
entrants effective January 1, 2010. Effective December 31, 2010, the plan was frozen to
future accruals. This plan was terminated effective December 31, 2014. The administration
of the plan will be moved to a third party insurance company. For those participants who
will receive a benefit in the form of an annuity, the Group intends to purchase an annuity
contract for such participants’ benefits from an insurer to be selected at a later date. The
Group anticipates the administration of the plan will be moved within the next two years.

The Group also maintains a supplemental retirement plan for certain management
employees. This plan was closed to new entrants effective January 1, 2010. Effective
December 31, 2010, the plan was frozen to future accruals.

A U.S. subsidiary of the Group also provides health care and life insurance benefits to
certain retired employees who meet certain age and years of service eligibility requirements.
The plan was closed to new entrants with regards to life insurance benefits effective January
1, 2009 and closed to new entrants with regards to medical benefits effective December 31,
2009. Eligible retirees are required to contribute to the costs of post-retirement benefits. The
Group's other post-retirement benefits are not vested and the Group has the right to modify
any benefit provision, including contribution requirements, with respect to any current or
former employee, dependent or beneficiary. As of December 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, the percentage of health insurance cost that the retiree must contribute was 100%.
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(i) REEMBRILE D ERZHE

17. Employee Benefits continued
(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(i) Plan Descriptions continued

A Belgium subsidiary of the Group sponsors a pre-pension defined benefit retirement
plan to certain employees who meet certain age and years of service eligibility requirements.
Benefits are calculated based on a final pay formula and are contributed until the employee
reaches the legal retirement age.

The U.S. plans are administered by trustees, which are independent of the Group, with
their assets held separately from those of the Group. These plans are funded by contributions
from the Group in accordance with an independent actuary’s recommendation based on
annual actuarial valuations. The latest independent actuarial valuations of the plans were as
of December 31, 2014 and were prepared by independent qualified actuaries, who are
members of the Society of Actuaries of the United States of America, using the projected
unit credit method. The actuarial valuations indicate that the Group’s obligations under
these defined benefit retirement plans are US$244.2 million and US$213.4 million as of
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, which are 87.7% and 93.3%
funded by the plan assets held by the trustees at December 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, respectively.

(ii) Amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position

128318
December 31,
UFETZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
REBERENRE Present value of unfunded obligations (15,853) (17,110)
B ERERENRE Present value of partly funded obligations (241,534)  (211,027)
FEEENATE Fair value of plan assets 213,991 199,102
B8 E&EFH Net pension liability (43,396) (29,035)
FTEIBEMEENKRAZE Experience adjustments arising on plan liabilities 1,878 (1,084)

RAESEEFRUASAGEMBIRRE

HESEFF - ARAEEREM2EKE

BAFERERS - HAKELERER
RBEBRFE -

The net pension liability is recorded in employee benefits in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group does not have net unrecognized actuarial losses as the
Group recognizes all actuarial gains and losses in other comprehensive income.
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17. Employee Benefits continued

(b) BAEEIRTEEEFE & (b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(i) REGEMBRAZRPECEIHRIE & (ii) Amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position continued
LB EEERR—FHRBFE - R A portion of the above liability is expected to be settled after more than one year.

o BARARRERERF BEMRMMNARTE  However, it is not practicable to segregate the amount from the amounts payable in the
URBEREETRIAREEME » FHE  next twelve months, as future contributions will also relate to future services rendered,
TEEBZEREEARR T —EAMEMRI  future changes in actuarial assumptions and market conditions. The Group estimates that
BHHREE - REFFEFR2015FMEIK  the benefit payments for the pension and post-retirement benefits will be approximately
SRENREBBIGRBENR1778EETK  US$17.7 million during 2015 and between US$16.8 million and US$17.4 million each year
#2016 £2019F » BFNF16.8EHEX  from 2016 through 2019.

TE174BBET -

The net pension liability is shown below:

RAESEEFHENTHR

20145128318
December 31, 2014

EEBR KR PEFIBF B K

EEBR*E =7 2F
=7 US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement st
UFETZ) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
EREEFNAENERE Present value of the defined benefit obligation (244,229) (1,826) (11,332)  (257.,387)
FEEEATYE Fair value of plan assets 213,991 - - 213,991
FaE Net liability (30,238) (1,826) (11,332) (43,396)
2013%12A31H
December 31, 2013
EEIRAE LEFBFR AR
XEERKRE &F B/
L=l US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement st
KUFETZ25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
EREEFAENERE Present value of the defined benefit obligation (213,419) (1,938) (12,780)  (228,137)
FTEEEATE Fair value of plan assets 199,102 — = 199,102
=N Net liability (14,317) (1,938) (12,780) (29,035)

(i) ERBEFRERELD

(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations

#HE2014F12A31HLLFE
Year ended December 31, 2014

KEBRIKIR PE BB 4k

EERKE =# =7
&7 US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement @zt
UFETZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
BRRESE Change in benefit obligation:
M1 A1 BREFRIEE Benefit obligation at January 1 213,419 1,938 12,780 228,137
BR A% A A Service cost - - 626 626
FIE R A Interest cost 9,054 80 328 9,462
FTEIZEE MR Plan participants’ contributions - 211 - 211
BHEE Remeasurements 38,974 (180) (445) 38,349
2R Benefits paid (17,218) (223) (419) (17,860)
INEFR Foreign exchange adjustments - - (1,538) (1,538)
M12A31 BB FIEE Benefit obligation at December 31 244,229 1,826 11,332 257,387
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17. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued

(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations continued

HZE2013F12A3181LEE
Year ended December 31, 2013

XERKE LEFBFR AR
XERARE =% LR
=/ US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement st
KUFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
BRAERE Change in benefit obligation:
M1 A1 BRERIEE Benefit obligation at January 1 243,515 2,511 11,159 257,185
BRA% A AR Service cost - — 554 554
B R A Interest cost 8,174 81 328 8,583
FTEIZEE MR Plan participants’ contributions - 376 - 376
EEe Remeasurements (19,666) (737) 703 (19,700)
BAER Benefits paid (18,604) (293) (465)  (19,362)
IVERE Foreign exchange adjustments - - 501 501
MW12831 BRREAIEE Benefit obligation at December 31 213,419 1,938 12,780 228,137
(iv) FHEIEEZH (iv) Movement in plan assets
#HZE2014F12A31HLFEE
Year ended December 31, 2014
XEBKE 2 &[:53:87
EEBRKE &7 12F
=7 US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement st
KUFETZ25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
FrEIEESE Change in plan assets:
B1A1BMNETEIEENAFE  Fair value of plan assets at January 1 199,102 - - 199,102
FIEURA Interest income 8,606 - - 8,606
B2 Remeasurements 10,261 - - 10,261
EEH Employer contributions 14,139 12 419 14,570
FTEIZEE M Plan participants’ contributions - 211 - 211
[EEbEER! Benefits paid (17,218) (223) (419) (17,860)
THAX Administrative expenses (899) - - (899)
R12A31BRFTEIEEMAFE  Fair value of plan assets at December 31 213,991 - - 213,991
BZE2013F1283101LEE
Year ended December 31, 2013
EERARE LERIBFR AR
XERNRE &F &/
=R US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement Foy
HUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
FTEEESE Change in plan assets:
MMA1ENEFEIEENATE Fair value of plan assets at January 1 188,807 - - 188,807
FIEUTA Interest income 7,174 — = 7,174
Ede Remeasurements (10,598) — = (10,598)
EEMK Employer contributions 33,323 (82) 465 33,706
FTEIZEE M Plan participants’ contributions - 375 - 375
2EF Benefits paid (18,604) (293) (465) (19,362)
THAX Administrative expenses (1,000) — = (1,000)
R12A31BHETEIBEMAF{E Fair value of plan assets at December 31 199,102 = = 199,102
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17. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(v) Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income

#HE2014F12A31HLFE
Year ended December 31, 2014
EEBKE [Z&: 34873
EEEKE 1&F =7
&F US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement st
UFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
MATENEF 2 Cumulative amount at January 1 106,928 (3,573) 2,473 105,828
AOZRFHRBEEENEE Effect of changes in
demographic assumptions 22,250 (80) (2,287) 19,883
R BRREBNTE Effect of changes in financial assumptions 14,681 116 1,791 16,588
KEPEAENTE Effect of experience adjustments 2,043 (216) 51 1,878
FEEE (E3R) (Return) on plan assets
(FEEFSLA) (excluding interest income) (10,461) - - (10,461)
MW12BA31BMNEFTS5 Cumulative amount at December 31 135,441 (3,753) 2,028 133,716
BZE2013F 128318 LFEE
Year ended December 31, 2013
EEIERE LERIBFE AR
XERKE =R LR
&R US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement #st
UFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
M B1BNEFTE%E Cumulative amount at January 1 116,297 (2,836) 1,770 115,231
UNEEEREE S 0 Effect of changes in
demographic assumptions 1,878 (6) 130 2,002
RN E Effect of changes in financial assumptions (20,134) (156) 246 (20,044)
KERENTE Effect of experience adjustments (1,411) (575) 327 (1,659)
FHEEE (B3R) (Return) on plan assets
(FEFERELA) (excluding interest income) 10,298 = = 10,298
R12A31BNESE Cumulative amount at December 31 106,928 (3,573) 2,473 105,828
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17. EEEH =
(b) BHESHEIRTEEHE &
(Vi) Gk PEERAO B A

17. Employee Benefits continued
(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(vi) Costs recognized in the consolidated income statement

#HE2014F12A318LFE
Year ended December 31, 2014
EEBKE EEFIBF B 1K
EEEAKE =F &F
=F US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement st
UFETZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
Ji56 3% Service cost - - 626 626
EREE AR A SR Interest expense on defined benefit obligation 9,054 80 328 9,462
FEIEENRE (BA) Interest (income) on plan assets (8,606) - - (8,606)
THHX Administrative expenses 1,100 - - 1,100
BRI B Total net periodic benefit cost 1,548 80 954 2,582
BZE2013F1283101LEE
Year ended December 31, 2013
EERARE b BFR AR
XERKRE & &R
L= US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement g
HUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
R B AN Service cost = — 554 554
ERERARENFISX Interest expense on defined benefit obligation 8,174 81 328 8,583
SEIEENRE (KA) Interest (income) on plan assets (7,174) — = (7,174)
TR Administrative expenses 1,300 — = 1,300
FEH BRI R A EEE Total net periodic benefit cost 2,300 81 882 3,263

REERERD  FAXRUTEER

The expense is recognized in the following line items in the consolidated income

A statement:
BZ12A3BLEE
Year ended December 31,
HUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
—MRITER X General and administrative expenses 1,412 1,490
Hibpax Other expenses 1,170 1,773
2,582 3,263

BAEHZBEEAEE A A EKER
WmEAE (HRERKEBRIERLQT
(MRAEEAMERAT]) M19935F1HE
HEAEEHHAKEERE) UEEBEER
REMZBRAMNEAMEARRX - #1993
FA0 - ZEAREARGLE (REERHE

—#7) H—EFD e

was a part of, prior to 1993.

HEBABRAERLA

Pension expense included in other income and expense relates to the actuarial
determined pension expense associated with the pension plans of two companies unrelated
to the Group’s current operations whose pension obligations were assumed by the Group
as a result of a 1993 agreement with the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (the
"PBGC"). The plans were part of a controlled company of corporations of which the Group

—O—mEE®K| 159
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FEMBRKMET &

17. EEEH =
(b) BASIHEIRTFHEBREE &
(vii) BT ¥ E B

17. Employee Benefits continued
(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(vii) Actuarial assumptions used

EER K% EEFIBFIR AR

XERKE &R =2
B US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits
20144 2014
FERER12 831 BEAIEEN Weighted average assumptions used to
IMERGEERE > He determine benefit obligations
as of December 31:
BhIE = Discount rate 3.68% 3.68% 1.5%
WEERE Rate of compensation increase TEAN/A FEAN/A -
B Lik= Rate of price inflation TEAN/A TEAN/A 2.0%
AERENREBZ12A3IBALEENSER Weighted average assumptions used to
BRIRAWIREE LB » Heh - determine net periodic benefit cost
for the year ended December 31:
BRIRZ Discount rate 4.42% 4.42% 2.8%
AEERER Rate of compensation increase - TEAN/A _
20135 2013
FAYERER12A31 BERRIEN Weighted average assumptions used to
IREFIEIRR - HAp determine benefit obligations
as of December 31:
BRIR =& Discount rate 4.42% 4.42% 2.8%
AEERER Rate of compensation increase TEEANA  FiEANA -
B EIR=R Rate of price inflation THEANA  FEANA 2.0%
AEAERBZ12A31 B LFENFER Weighted average assumptions used to
BRI AR MEF SRR - H determine net periodic benefit cost
for the year ended December 31:
BRIR = Discount rate 3.48% 3.48% 3.0%
HEERER Rate of compensation increase - FTEANA -

20145128318 K2013F 1283181
EENEREHRESAA10% K (2)% °

BEEDENSTRESRZME R
BZAZEHE  BRLUREHENTHKE
G RE - BREABWAEREEN
EIREMNEBFIE o

MEARBEFFEMS  BE2015F
ANBLEE  REBRREEANNHA
HRATEFTL7.6% MEFRER > ZIER
RIEFBEHRL EHE2027F 1283181k
FERIA5% LR RFZIGERE
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The actual rate of return on assets for December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was
10% and (2)%, respectively.

The discount rate is based on a high-grade bond yield curve under which benefits were
projected and discounted at spot rates along the curve. The discount rate was then
determined as a single rate yielding the same present value.

For post-retirement benefit measurement purposes, a 7.6% annual rate of increase in
the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed for the year ended
December 31, 2015. The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 4.5% for the year
ended December 31, 2027 and remain at that level thereafter.



17. BERH =

(b) BHREHEIRTHEEE &

(vii) PR ERR &
RBEBE - Hh—EiEREE R

SEUASE (AMBRTE) eFEEHE

ERRE IS RE\ERAT o

17. Employee Benefits continued
(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(vii) Actuarial assumptions used continued

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial
assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit
obligation by the amounts shown below.

20145128318
December 31, 2014
H TR
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Increase Decrease
BRIEZ (50%5F) Discount rate (50 basis points) (10,870) 11,833
EEBERBELR . (1%%H) Medical cost trend rate (1% movement) 7) 7

FEETRFIRE (FEEARRBERE -
Rit 2 EESRERBERESEGNET
BEEME) 252 HMR2014F12A318 K
2013F 12 A3 AMTBIEEN A FEL34
BBETR290EEET ©

(vii) EEBAEHBIFAEEN A FEEE
ERENE

The estimated benefit obligation (the actuarial present value of benefits attributed to
employee service and compensation levels prior to the measurement date without
considering future compensation levels), exceeded the fair value of plan assets as of
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 by US$43.4 million and US$29.0 million,
respectively.

(viii) Fair values of the assets held by the U.S. pension plan by major asset category

2014412831
December 31, 2014
B E
Targeted AFE
allocation Fair value
(F33T)
(US$°000)
ferE Equity -%-40% -
EE U= Fixed Income -%-100% 155,864
EEDE Asset allocation 20%-40% 55,226
Hith Other -%-10% 2,901
#ct Total 100% 213,991
2013% 128318
December 31, 2013
BESE

Targeted AVE
allocation Fair value
(F%7)
(US$°000)
e Equity —%—-40% —
B E Wi Fixed Income —%-100% 132,361
BED Asset allocation 20%-40% 63,500
Hith Other -%-10% 3,241
#ct Total 100% 199,102

HEBABRAERLA
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FEMBRKMET &

17. BERH =
(b) BUHSHBIRTEBHE &
(i) EBRHEHBHEEENATEEE
EEENEZ
EESENE DR BEESOEEEE
RERBNI AN EREESHESN
RE o EESEZBNEDER - BB RAE
ERFERRARMREERNBASER
BAER o
BN HRBERRERHTERT
REESEFRBEENREHRERNER
H o 20155 - EFEKS L EREMLR
ZR o

(ix) ELEH

17. Employee Benefits continued
(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(viii) Fair values of the assets held by the U.S. pension plan by major asset category
continued
The asset allocation targets are set with the expectation that the plan’s assets will fund the
plan’s expected liabilities with an appropriate level of risk. Expected returns, risk and
correlation among asset classes are based on historical data and input received from our
investment advisors.
The funding policy for the plans is to contribute amounts sufficient to meet minimum
funding requirements as set forth in employee benefit and tax laws. In 2015, there is no
minimum required contribution for the U.S. pension.

(ix) Historical Information

128318
December 31,

UFETZ7) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
EREEFNAENERE Present value of the defined

benefit obligation (257,387) (228,137) (257,185) (242,453) (234,748)
SEIEENATE Fair value of plan assets 213,991 199,102 188,807 182,728 157,624
FEE Net liability (43,396) (29,035) (68,378) (59,725) (77,124)
STEIBEMEENKRIFAZE  Experience adjustments arising

on plan liabilities 1,878 (1,084) 7,354 (2,660) 9,897

(c) EERHRRETE
AEE-—HEEKHBARRMERMR
401(k) RIRET &8 W ENREZWB A RE
RBAIIEREE BENERAEBSEES
BREE- TR 2EETOFEFLESER
FHE75% HWEF MAKETERZEST
EHEEHR REETFAIRSEERFE
HIEREN MR 2EENERREFIR 4
NEBRURE - HEMARFREBEERTE
PRIREBMER=FEFESHE - A&
ERWHER T AERD R REEHAK,
AT °
HE2014F12831 A% 20135FE12 831

HIEFE  AEERILFTEIBI%R258

ENR2ABEEMNEL - RTE5IH
B BBNHRLEREK -
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(c) Defined Contribution Plan
A U.S. subsidiary of the Group provides a defined contribution 401(k) retirement plan. The
plan covers substantially all non-union employees of the subsidiary for the sole purpose of
encouraging participants to save for retirement. Plan participants may contribute up to 75%
of their compensation to the plan, a percentage of which is matched by the Group. The
Group may also make non-elective contributions to participants’ accounts. Participant
contributions and the earnings thereon are fully vested upon contribution. Participants
become vested in the matching and non-elective contributions upon completion of two and
three years of service, respectively. Forfeited contributions made by the Group are used to
reduce future matching contributions and/or administrative expenses.

In connection with this plan, the Group recognized an expense of US$2.5 million and
US$2.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
Forfeited contributions were inconsequential for the periods presented.



17. EEEN o
(d) Samsonite LLCHIEEIR A LETEIGE
ek
Samsonite LLC (REBEMN—BEXEKH B LD
7)) BERSBAERADBEEREN
N7 RiEZHE  BRSBAERIAR
Samsonite LLCR EE T XBEMBARMNE
FTEREE(MBARMNEARER
Samsonite LLC 2k H EEI I B 2 R M EMTF
EREWRERIN)  URFTFEREEN
MBEERFSBENBETHEARRE=
F RIS AR E R AR A R R R T
PERLHINEER - RERSEMNERLAA
W3S SEHEETHERRRTHEBELD
ERERANZEEENBEEMNS BTS2
RIRLLA o R EMAER R ZREER
EEFEBBREINEE - R2014F12831
B AEEEFLHERE -
ZHEERQAEEREELEIER
BREBSRERIRE )&t ENER
MEFEFEERERENEEZR > OF
SEERABEREEREERESITANZ
BHATN—HD 2B - H(d) IR
Kbz AER °

18. &iE

(a) BEXRERIE
REBER201I5FNERAHAZTEENAR81.6
BE Xt R2014F12A31H k20135
12A31BERBITHNERRESBIH16.7
BEERRI42BEET  ZSLERLET
BEWREL  MABRGEETBEMR TR
BRAAE-

(b) EERERE
TEBNEEREFTZEERAE - RER
ZEFENEEREENTUHERE - ©
20149128318 X% 20135128318 ° &7
HESHEBE THARRESRERBNOT ¢

17. Employee Benefits continued
(d) Samsonite LLC's US Pension Plan Settlement Agreement

Samsonite LLC (a U.S. subsidiary of the Group) and the PBGC are party to a settlement
agreement under which PBGC was granted an equal and ratable lien on certain domestic
assets of Samsonite LLC and certain of its U.S. subsidiaries (excluding any equity interests in
subsidiaries and any inventory or accounts receivable of Samsonite LLC or its U.S.
subsidiaries), together with Samsonite’s intellectual property rights in the U.S. and
Samsonite’s rights under licenses of such intellectual property to affiliates or third parties.
The PBGC's lien, which is in the amount of US$35.8 million, is equal and ratable with the
lien granted over such assets to Samsonite’s senior secured lenders. Other provisions of the
agreement restrict the transfer of U.S. assets outside of the ordinary course of business. The
Group is in compliance with these requirements as of December 31, 2014.

The agreement will expire upon (a) the Group obtaining investment grade status on its
senior unsecured debt, (b) the date the plan has no unfunded benefit liabilities for two
consecutive plan years, () the date on which the Group becomes part of a controlled
company whose unsecured debt has investment grade status, or (d) the date the plan is
successfully terminated.

18. Commitments

(a) Capital Commitments

The Group’s capital expenditures budget for 2015 is approximately US$81.6 million. Capital
commitments outstanding as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 were US$16.7
million and US$14.2 million, respectively, which were not recognized as liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position as they do not meet the recognition criteria.

(b) Operating Lease Commitments

The Group’s lease obligations primarily consist of non-cancellable leases of office, warehouse
and retail store space and equipment. As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
future minimum payments under non-cancellable leases were as follows:

12A31H
December 31,
KUFETZS] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
—FR Within one year 74,018 68,558
—FREMER After one year but within two years 62,286 55,054
MERERLFR After two years but within five years 98,483 86,657
HEE More than five years 61,375 21,479
EERERIEAE Total operating lease commitments 296,162 231,748
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FEMBRKMET &

18. HiE &
(b) BERERE &
AEETRBESETHY - ZETHED
TEERERERNSREFEEMESHA
& FIMRER 0 HUBESENETER -
B 22014F K2013F 128318 I &
B TRERTUREEEREETNES
M 2B B1N22BEETRGEEE
ETSEHERHEENBEET I LLE
SNEHEE - BE2014%F12 8318 K 2013
FNRANBLEFE  LEBENIEMFHEESS
BBE36EBERARI2EEER  HAER
HER -

19. BAREE
RAEEKBRES  FEERHSERLXN
FAREERF - TARAERDREURLE
RRES IR TS EBRIERENS
BERRE > m—&BRE  AIFMEEARFRD
HENRERSRN - AEEBEREBAL
BEREREACHNBERBERCHE
& o BBRINGRERERPH—RRITH
M PHER - ERBURIEN BB EE
2R BESTHRARERIBEARBE
& o

HZE2014F12A31HLEEFE  7&H
W AR AT E KRR ©

20. FEFHRRFR R R AL FE (T RRIA

18. Commitments continued
(b) Operating Lease Commitments continued

Certain of the leases are renewable at the Group’s option. Certain of the leases also
contain rent escalation clauses that require additional rents in later years of the lease term,
which are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Rental expense under cancellable and non-cancellable operating leases amounted to
US$112.2 million and US$96.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Certain of the retail leases provide for additional rent payments based on a
percentage of sales. These additional rent payments amounted to US$3.6 million and
US$3.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively,
and are included in rent expense.

19. Contingent Liabilities
In the ordinary course of business, the Group is subject to various forms of litigation and
legal proceedings. The facts and circumstances relating to particular cases are evaluated in
determining whether it is more likely than not that there will be a future outflow of funds
and, once established, whether a provision relating to specific litigation is sufficient. The
Group records provisions based on its past experience and on facts and circumstances
known at each reporting date. The provision charge is recognized within general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement. When the date of the
incurrence of an obligation is not reliably measureable, the provisions are not discounted
and are classified in current liabilities.

The Group did not settle any significant litigation during the year ended December 31,
2014.

20. Trade and Other Payables

128318
December 31,
UFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
PR Accounts payable 316,509 282,183
HitENFIERETE A Other payables and accruals 92,155 96,739
HibpEHiE Other tax payables 6,781 8,317
AR R H AR FIR AR Total trade and other payables 415,445 387,239

FENFEEERMRR - ERREAN
SREQ DATINT -

Included in accounts payable are trade payables with the following aging analysis as of
the reporting dates:

12A31H
December 31,
KUFETZ25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
BIHA Current 234,857 211,743
BER Past Due 26,855 20,132
A ERFAEEE Total trade payables 261,712 231,875

2014512 B31 BB BRI F TR
HEZHH-EFTA 105 BARIE -
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Trade payables as of December 31, 2014 are on average due within 105 days from the
invoice date.



21. £MTH

(a) FiEEYEERM
TRMEENRAEERRNEERR - RS
B BAEERBEENT :

21. Financial Instruments

(@) Exposure to Credit Risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

128310
December 31,
HUFETZ25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
FEWBR TN E A FE UL RIS Trade and other receivables 290,841 246,372
ReRASEEY Cash and cash equivalents 140,423 225,347
st Total 431,264 471,719

REER » i

HEE 80 EWIRR

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by

WEXEERMBIER : geographic region was:
128318
December 31,

KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
M Asia 85,438 77,856
SIS North America 114,000 69,536
BUM Europe 49,943 54,133
BT EM Latin America 26,915 32,168
FEWBRFR AR Total trade receivables 276,296 233,693

(b) FiEHREESEIE

(b) Exposure to Liquidity Risk

PTERFITESRMBEN SN HIFR The following are the contractual maturities of derivative and non-derivative financial
WmT o liabilities.
2014%12A31H
December 31, 2014
REE SHRLERE DR1E 5%ELLE
Carrying  Contractual Less than 1E25 2ES5E More than
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars amount cash flows one year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years
ELTESBEMR ©  Non-derivative financial
liabilities:
BRI Trade and other
HihpEFE payables 415,445 415,445 415,445 - - -
RREE Revolving Facility 60,000 60,000 60,000 - - -
HibfEAREE Other lines of credit 7,536 7,536 7,536 - - -
HEEE Minimum operating lease
HERIE payments - 296,162 74,018 62,286 98,483 61,375
IMEREREH Foreign currency forward
contracts:
BE Assets 7,311 116,132 116,132 - - -

HEBABRAERLA
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REVISRRMET &
2. @M TR 21. Financial Instruments continued
(b) RiBEWRENESRE & (b) Exposure to Liquidity Risk continued
2013%12A31H
December 31, 2013
REE SHESRE DR SELE
Carrying Contractual Less than 1225 2855 More than
HUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars amount cash flows one year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years
FETEEBMEM ©  Non-derivative financial
liabilities:
EIRAR Trade and other
HihpE(FE payables 387,239 387,239 387,239 - - -
HiEAREE Other lines of credit 15,482 15,482 15,482 - - =
BIEEE Minimum operating lease
*H‘ff" | payments - 231,748 68,558 55,054 86,657 21,479
IMEREIEH Foreign currency forward
contracts:
af& Liabilities 2,464 94,665 94,665 - - -
TRETHESREWITNITEIASR The following table indicates the periods in which the cash flows associated with
BENRERERHTEBENHM - derivatives that are cash flow hedges, are expected to occur and impact profit or loss.
BREME FEHRESRE DR SELE
Carrying Expected Less than 12286 2E5F More than
KUFETZ25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars amount cash flows one year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years
2014% 128318 : December 31, 2014:
BE Assets 7,311 116,132 116,132 - - -
2013%12A31H : December 31, 2013:
afE Liabilities 2,464 94,665 94,665 - - -
(o) RIBMEWEME (c) Exposure to Currency Risk

AEEEREERARAKRNEBNEZS  The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk arising from the currencies that more
B HASENBEREABLBREAFEN  significantly affect the Group’s financial performance was as follows based on notional

EBWIMNERBWT amounts of items with largest exposure:
20145128318
December 31, 2014
ENERELL
BT AR% Indian
Euro Renminbi Rupee
(FEx) (AR¥FT) (FENEEL)
(Euro “000)  (RMB "000) (INR “000)
/e Cash 19,663 131,318 160,895
FEURBRS &Eﬂﬂﬁgﬂﬁl  BE Trade and other receivables, net 40,324 99,662 1,221,652
NEIEER () &K Intercompany receivables (payables) (2,578) (8,169) 110,629
FEFERE &ﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬁ Trade and other payables (51,108) (113,577)  (864,003)
BAFEAR R 3R LB Statement of financial position exposure 6,301 109,234 629,173
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21. €T R
(o) FRiEMEREEM &

21. Financial Instruments continued
(c) Exposure to Currency Risk continued

2013412H31R
December 31, 2013
ENEELL
Bt AR Indian
Euro Renminbi Rupee
(F&rx) (AR¥®TR) (FEHEEL)
(Euro '000) (RMB '000) (INR '000)
B Cash 31,008 196,853 91,830
FEWBRFR R E A FEUR RIS » TR Trade and other receivables, net 38,913 80,100 1,322,660
AR () FIE Intercompany receivables (payables) (10,289) (64,230) 21,379
AR R HMEAFRIE Trade and other payables (39,337) (91,903)  (808,149)
B AR R R LB Statement of financial position exposure 20,295 120,820 627,720
REREANEREZMT : The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:
FigER HEAEER

Average rate Reporting date spot rate
2014 2013 2014 2013
&t Euro 1.3249 1.3292 1.2099 1.3746
AR Renminbi 0.1623 0.1627 0.1611 0.1652
EEEL Indian Rupee 0.0164 0.0171 0.0159 0.0162

(d) IMERURERH
BTRETHABEIO% EDRNSEE20145F
128318 % 2013512 831 B L EEHER
EM4sEBETRITEEET  RoR<S
2014512831 B K 2013512831 B
W24 6EBETN24.6ABET ° %5
MBRERAEHMTERE (RHERNE) #
BARE o BMTiRE10% S ZBENER
RRANEREANESZELESEBARNY
& o

HMARBHETHEIOS » BE2014
F12A318 R2013F12A31HLELFEMN
EAE S BIEM I EBELR22EEBSE
7T RR2014512 4318 R2013512 8431
HERSE S RIE M3 sEEETR3TH
BERL ZoMBRAEEMAIEZRERE (£
HERNRE) #ETE - A\ARBRE10% 5
FZHEMNERNRRALEREANEEREES
EEEARNEE -

WEEELRETHEIOS BE
20145128318 K20135F128310 1L F
ERENE 2SI 4ABBETR06EE
Xt RA2014%F12831H K20135F12
A3 BEMNEREESBIEM30EEERR
QIHBER - ZoMBRAEHMTERE
R (RERAER) #E57% - EELRE
10% BHZHEWEFRALEREAN
REELESEEHARNTE -

(d) Foreign Currency Sensitivity Analysis

A strengthening of the Euro by 10% against the US Dollar would have increased profit for
the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 by US$4.5 million and US$4.7
million, respectively, and increased equity as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
by US$24.6 million and US$24.6 million, respectively. The analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. A 10% weakening in the Euro would
have an equal but opposite impact to profit for the period and equity as of these reporting
dates.

If the Renminbi had strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar profit would have
increased for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 by US$2.1
million and US$2.2 million, respectively, and equity as of December 31, 2014 and December
31, 2013 would have increased by US$3.8 million and US$3.7 million, respectively. The
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. A 10%
weakening in the Renminbi would have an equal but opposite impact to profit for the
period and equity as of these reporting dates.

If the Indian Rupee had strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar profit would have
increased for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 by US$1.4
million and US$0.6 million, respectively, and equity as of December 31, 2014 and December
31, 2013 would have increased by US$3.0 million and US$2.1 million, respectively. The
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. A 10%
weakening in the Indian Rupee would have an equal but opposite impact to profit for the
period and equity as of these reporting dates.

HEBABRAERLA
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FEMBRKMET &

21. €T R«
(e) FIZARR
AEEGFEERMIAENFIRRRNT

21. Financial Instruments continued
(e) Interest Rate Profile
The interest rate profile of the Group’s interest bearing financial instruments was:

128318
December 31,
UFETZ) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
FEIR: Variable rate instruments:
EHEE Financial assets 1,517 30,185
==L Financial liabilities (67,536) (15,482)
(66,019) 14,703

72014512 B31 B R20135128318 »
AEBYEFTMZEEFNRFENERT
Bo

(f) AFEEREENLE
FEEREEREBEND PEEHERAEEE

4

=

(9) AFEZFREE
RNFERNGFEATE2EERERTRS
PHEEETURREREEAXTNE
1 o IRSEM —EAFEERERE - ZBHE
BE5I A LG 2 A T EN A ES EZRABIEH

BEER - ZERRBHTRERT ST

BEERRENAERABRRERSSER (5

—HBIFE)  URFRERTTHRERHA

HENHEREER (BE=RAFTE) - 2

FESREBHZERNAT

o F—RBWABBAREBEREINTE
RN T2 ERNEERABRERED
SHHRE CRAR) -

o BLRBWMABERTRIEE —RBIHH
ENEEREBEN I HEERBRERNE
AE -

s FZARNWABBAEEREENTITE
EAHE -

DHEFBELHESRRBTNER
DENDERHATENERBMEEEAN
RIEERMARE -

HRRERRSEEY - BRERNK - &
N0 ~ EREB KRBV EH AHF
HEgE - Al ZETANREEREATE
B e

INBEMENN AP EEBBSERTR
RO TISREMET -
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The Group did not have any interest bearing financial instruments with a fixed rate at
December 31, 2014 or December 31, 2013.

(f) Fair Value Versus Carrying Amounts
All financial assets and liabilities have fair values that approximate carrying amounts.

(g) Fair Value Hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. IFRS

establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to

measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in

active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority

to measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The

three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Group has the ability to access at the measurement date.

e Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair measurement in its entirety falls
is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, accounts payable,
short-term debt, and accrued expenses approximates fair value because of the short maturity
or duration of these instruments.

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts is estimated by reference to market
guotations received from banks.



21. &R TR &
(9) AFEFREE #

T &R 25 MR20145F12A31H K2013
FNRABRFEREEUQNFETENE
EREE (BEEAEAAFENEMNER) :

21. Financial Instruments continued
(g) Fair Value Hierarchy continued

The following table presents assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis (including items that are required to be measured at fair value) as of December

31, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

RREHEATIRIETBHATE
Fair value measurements at reporting date using

E2EREE
RiEEHISH
BfE HHEXTHE
(55—45) LD 67 EXATHR
Quoted prices (SE=4RA) LN ¢
in active Significant (B=85A)
20144 markets for other Significant
12A31H identical observable  unobservable
December 31, assets inputs inputs
HUFETZS Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BiE Assets:

ReRREeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 140,423 140,423 - -

IMEREIE X Foreign currency forward contracts 7,311 7,311 - -
BEE Total assets 147,734 147,734 - -
=N Liabilities:

IR Non-controlling interest put options 58,288 - - 58,288
BEE Total liabilities 58,288 - - 58,288

RFEREATHS B ENAFE
Fair value measurements at reporting date using
TEMEEAEE
RIERTISH
HwE HEATEE
(EB—#5I) [oPN ¢/ BARRAHE
Quoted prices (B4 A 2PN ¢
in active Significant (BB=#51)
20135 markets for other Significant
12A318 identical observable unobservable
December 31, assets inputs inputs
LFETZZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BE Assets:

RERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 225,347 225,347 = =
HEE Total assets 225,347 225,347 - -
afE: Liabilities:

IR LA Non-controlling interest put options 52,848 - - 52,848

IMEIRERE R Foreign currency forward contracts 2,464 2,464 — —
=R Total liabilities 55,312 2,464 — 52,848

REEETHFEEME A FERRT L
REFEUEAGENFERRNESRS
X HBEEEARSREBL W o« EHPEMRM
TIRIBIASSEIEL AT A - BRI ER
e A2014%F 128318 K20135F12 831
B WETEAWNAFESAAREETIRE
EnRBE25HEBET

Certain non-U.S. subsidiaries of the Group periodically enter into forward contracts

related to the purchase of inventory denominated primarily in USD which are designated as

cash flow hedges. The hedging effectiveness was tested in accordance with IAS 39, Financial

Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The fair value of these instruments was an
asset of US$7.3 million and a liability of US$2.5 million as of December 31, 2014 and

December 31, 2013, respectively.
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FEMERRMET &

21. 2T R 21. Financial Instruments continved
(9) AT EEREE 7 (g) Fair Value Hierarchy continued
TRESFEE=FBIA FERRAHN The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring the Level 3 fair

RESE  URFRANERATATBREBAZ  value, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.
e

EXTTHEMABBRRATEE
FHEZREIRRE
Inter-relationship between
Rl BlEsE EXFUHREABEER significant unobservable inputs
Type Valuation Technique Significant unobservable inputs and fair value measurement
A Wz 5ok — EENEEAEBITDA o  EBITDAEH i IR THER » AEGSEM
BEENHESHERAE-ER « #BRE: (20145 :3%) ORid)
EHRERE  RUMSENHZEN « KRERBUBERE o EBMDABELEF (TFE)
ESENEY - (20145 1 11%) o BRELFH (TK) 5k
o RARBEBAIRETE (LEFH) -
Put options Income approach — The valuation e EBITDA Multiple The estimated value would increase
model converts future amounts e Growth Rate: (2014: 3%) (decrease) if:
based on an EBITDA multiple to a e Risk adjusted discount rate e The EBITDA multiple were higher
single current discounted amount (2014: 11%) (lower);
reflecting current market e The growth rate were higher (lower);
expectations about those future or
amounts. e The risk adjusted discount rate were

lower (higher).

TREFE=ZRH A FERILDLEERER The following table shows reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing
BARAEERIVEIER ¢ balances for Level 3 fair values:
UFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars
R20135F1 81 BHI%EER Balance at January 1, 2013 44,950
FAARRNATEES Change in fair value included in equity 1,586
AR ERNATESE Change in fair value included in finance costs 6,312
M2013F12A831HKR2014F1B1HK4EE:  Balance at December 31, 2013 and January 1, 2014 52,848
FARRNATEES Change in fair value included in equity 1,195
AR ERNALERE Change in fair value included in finance costs 4,245
A2014F12 31 BR&EER Balance at December 31, 2014 58,288
MR AHEN AT EMS  EEF—1E For the fair value of put options, reasonably possible changes to one of the significant

BARIBEMASBEHRSE AR unobservable inputs, holding other inputs constant, would have the following effects at
mEME A BIE#IETE  FEMN2014F  December 31, 2014:
12A31BEEUTHE

B RS
Profit or loss Shareholders’ Equity
£ T EH T
UFETZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
EBITDAfEE (% E0.14%) EBITDA multiple (movement of 0.1x) 1,452 (1,452) 403 (403)
WREZ (50%7F) Growth rate (50 basis points) 376 (375) = —
KRAEREBERE Risk adjusted discount rate
(100%:7) (100 basis points) (478) 490 = =
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o B EEEREE o RRNETTEE

HEHMMITBRERTE -

22. 8%
(a) RESWERPHBIE

21. Financial Instruments continved
(g) Fair Value Hierarchy continued

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market
information and information about the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective
in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and therefore
cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the
estimates.

22.Income Taxes
(a) Taxation in the Consolidated Income Statement

HZ12A310ILEE
Year ended December 31,

UFETZ) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
REARIIRBA S — BB AER ¢ Current tax expense — Hong Kong Profits Tax:

7 HA HA ] Current period (1,769) (655)
AHBIER X — ] ¢ Current tax expense — Foreign:

ZRHRHA ] Current period (88,235) (69,314)

paked i Bk Adjustment for prior periods (2,043) 3,396
AR B R A% Total current tax expense (90,278) (65,918)
BELEHEESR (%) Deferred tax benefit (expense):

RERBEERER Origination and reversal of temporary differences 16,827 (12,088)

(RS ) Change in tax rate (881) 3,655

ERRERE=RSE Change in recognized temporary differences (917) 2,091
FEERIEE R (BA%) 2% Total deferred tax benefit (expense) 15,029 (6,342)

BFrEHAX Total income tax expense (77,018) (72,915)

B £2014%F 128318 K2013F128
NALFENEBRESRBEREFAMG
TERBURAIZF R 16.5% 51 & © BB
AFNREREERREANBITRES

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013 is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation in
the relevant countries.
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FEMBRKMET &

22. 88 =
(b) BEMXERBARAIRERRETY

22. Income Taxes continued

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and profit before taxation at applicable

HYERR tax rates
BZE12A310LLEE
Year ended December 31,
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
FREF] Profit for the year 205,354 197,421
HBITEHBAX Total income tax expense (77,018) (72,915)
FRETISFLANRR Profit before income tax 282,372 270,336
BRAEEERREGTENMEHREAX Income tax expense using the Group’s applicable tax rate (79,064) (76,457)
HBEE Tax incentives 19,292 19,886
BiREE Change in tax rates (881) 3,655
BIEAERE Change in tax reserves (472) (3,632)
AR ESE Non-deductible differences (7,793) (16,443)
ROWMBRNRBLELH Change in tax effect of undistributed earnings 3,445 (3,039)
RERELEFBEEENNFEFIE Current year losses for which no deferred tax assets
is recognized (1,989) (2,131)
CHRAEREREEH Change in recognized temporary differences (917) 2,091
DARR A2 S A5 69 S5 B Share-based compensation (1,596) (20)
FEHL Withholding taxes (6,338) (3,002)
Hith Other 1,338 2,781
BIIHEBRERE (BETR) Over (under) provided in prior periods (2,043) 3,396
(77,018) (72,915)

BZ2014F12H31AR2013F12A31
A 1EFERBUIRRME D Bl R ERE AR
#28.0% K283% T H - WRABRDER
REEMMEF G ERBEME

(0 REMEZEKSEZHMER (FAX)

The provision for taxation for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013 is calculated using the Group’s applicable tax rate of 28.0% and 28.3%, respectively.
The applicable rate is based on the Group’s weighted average worldwide tax rate.

(c) Income tax (expense) benefit recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

KR
HBE20145128318LEE BZE2013F12A318LFE
Year ended December 31, 2014 Year ended December 31, 2013
P8t FRSHE
(%) #% (BA%) &%
Income tax Income tax
BB A (expense) BRBi1E BRELAT (expense) BREL%
UFETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Before tax benefit Net of tax Before tax benefit Net of tax
BRIEHEIRN Remeasurements on
Eb e benefit plans (28,109) 11,049 (17,060) 7,511 (3,000) 4,511
REREEF Cash flow hedges 10,560 (3,572) 6,988 (2,449) 880 (1,569)
BINETE RIS Foreign currency translation
ERER differences for foreign
operations (35,087) - (35,087) (9,880) - (9,880)
(52,636) 7,477 (45,159) (4,818) (2,120) (6,938)
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(d) EEHEEEREMR
BSEESEEERAENT ¢

22. Income Taxes continued
(d) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

128318
December 31,
UFETZ) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
EIERIREE © Deferred tax assets:
RIREE Allowance for doubtful accounts 2,390 2,110
7 Inventory 8,397 5,592
WEREE Plant and equipment 5,231 4,087
BARERBRERER Pension and post-retirement benefits 18,713 11,927
LARR 43 2 A5 9 57 i Share-based compensation 1,568 1,309
BIEEE Tax losses 4,755 3,107
& Reserves 23,271 20,028
Hith Other 1,355 6,204
FIRIK S Set off of tax (7,928) (9,963)
BIELBIREE Total gross deferred tax assets 57,752 44,401
BEERBEEE ! Deferred tax liabilities:
MEREE Plant and equipment (9,983) (9,728)
‘B EE Intangible assets (99,217) (99,825)
Hith Other (6,353) (11,780)
BIEIK S Set off of tax 7,928 9,963
BIEERIEEE Total gross deferred tax liabilities (107,625)  (111,370)
FELERESE Net deferred tax liability (49,873) (66,969)

B £2014%F12A8318 K2013F128

Movement in temporary differences for the years ended December 31, 2014 and

BNHEFENERERSE

December 31, 2013:

20134 REMEE 20144

128318 WaERER 126318

iEER R Recognized in 4R

Balance ®’R other Balance

December 31, Recognizedin ~ comprehensive Hfh' December 31,

UFETZZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 profit or loss income Other' 2014
RIREE Allowance for doubtful accounts 2,110 433 - (153) 2,390
=FE Inventory 5,592 3,046 - (241) 8,397
W BEKEE Property, plant and equipment (5,641) 491 — 398 (4,752)
‘BILEE Intangible assets (99,825) 4,866 — (4,258) (99,217)
EBIREREBRERER Pension and post-retirement benefits 11,927 (3,666) 11,049 (597) 18,713
LU 49 2 A 9 5 A Share-based compensation 1,309 302 - (43) 1,568
HIEEE Tax losses 3,107 2,150 - (502) 4,755
18 Reserves 20,028 2,891 - 352 23,271
Hith Other (5,576) 4,516 (3,572) (366) (4,998)
FIRERIEEE (81F) Net deferred tax asset (liability) (66,969) 15,029 7,477 (5,410) (49,873)

BfEE

| HMBERERAHRAN SR (4,695%T) (RHK

H7) RERZE -

Note

exchange rate effects.

HEBABRAERLA
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FEMBRKMET &

22. 88 =

(d) EEHEEERAR &

22. Income Taxes continued
(d) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities continued

20124 REM2E 2013%

128318 WaERER 128318

whek Rigs Recognized in F

Balance ®R other Balance

December 31, Recognized in comprehensive December 31,

HUFETZS Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 profit or loss income 2013

RIREE Allowance for doubtful accounts 2,294 (184) = 2,110

FE Inventory 5,969 (377) = 5,592

MEE - BEREE Property, plant and equipment (11,116) 5,475 - (5,641)

BEE Intangible assets (101,772) 1,947 - (99,825)

BRERBRINEER Pension and post-retirement benefits 26,992 (12,065) (3,000) 11,927

LARRAD 3 1 89 355 B Share-based compensation - 1,309 = 1,309

FIAEE Tax losses 3,436 (329) = 3,107

e Reserves 18,229 1,799 = 20,028

Hth Other (2,539) (3,917) 880 (5,576)

FIELERIEEE Net deferred tax liability (58,507) (6,342) (2,120) (66,969)
KREREERELE Unrecognized Deferred Tax Assets

BRI T HE B WIEERIE S 2 14 R IR HERT

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following items:

128318
December 31,
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
AENERER Deductible temporary differences 437 4,164
BHIEEE Tax losses 20,047 22,975
FRESR Balance at end of year 20,484 27,139
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22. Fif8#i =
(d) BERESERER &

AERECHREE &
REBATHE - ATERNERE=REIH

B EEHRBEEEHARILEREESHE
R AREET AR AR RAERBUER
BEZSEENER -

AHEARIEEE (CRRBKRER)

22. Income Taxes continued
(d) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities continued
Unrecognized Deferred Tax Assets continued

The deductible temporary differences do not expire under current tax legislation.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of these items because it is not
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the Group can utilize the
benefits from them.

Available tax losses (recognized and unrecognized):

12A318
December 31,
UFETZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
&M Europe 20,385 25,418
M Asia 2,314 692
FT XM Latin America 11,753 6,989
wEt Total 34,452 33,099

BIEBEREE B R A BIEERE
H o BUNE 1B 820165 ER o ZMNE
B E2022FBER - T RMNEIEKA
2019 FHEHA ©

FERETEHEEE
AREEEH RS HERAEEREERA
BERTEBHRER - R2014F 128318
X2013%F 128318 EAMBARKRESH
WIEEREE BB B21 S ABETR25.7
BBEETREER

Tax losses expire in accordance with local country tax regulations. European losses will
expire beginning in 2016. Asian losses will expire beginning in 2022. Latin American losses
will expire beginning in 2019.

Unrecognized Deferred Tax Liabilities
At December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 a deferred tax liability of US$21.5 million
and US$25.7 million, respectively, related to investments in subsidiaries is not recognized
because the Group controls whether the liability will be incurred and it is satisfied that it will
not be incurred in the foreseeable future.
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FEMBRKMET &

23. MBKARMZEER
REEWRERRGEZERERAHER O
BRARAEBRABERIINT X

23. Finance Income and Finance Costs
The following table presents a summary of finance income and finance costs recognized in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income:

BZE12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

KUFETZZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
RAREERIER Recognized in income or loss:
IRITFERAF WA Interest income on bank deposits 478 852
RS A Finance income 478 852
SRMABsENAERX Interest expense on financial liabilities (3,694) (2,929)
ROLHEN AT ERE Change in fair value of put options (4,245) (6,312)
INEEIBFEE Net foreign exchange loss (6,716) (456)
HithBi &R Other finance costs (2,728) 2,111)
B ER Finance costs (17,383) (11,808)
RIEEPERNTSE AT Net finance costs recognized in profit or loss (16,905) (10,956)

REMZEKE (BE) PER:
BOIEBHIMNEELZR

RER BN AFERD
REM2E RS RROABUAR
RS 4 PO
ML 2 E W PR B SR A -
MEBIR
TIA SR -
ADFRBIEA
iy
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Recognized in other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign
operations (35,087) (9,880)
Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 10,560 (2,449)
Income tax on finance income and finance costs
recognized in other comprehensive income (3,572) 880

Net finance costs recognized in other

comprehensive income, net of tax (28,099) (11,449)
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company (24,214) (7,482)

Non-controlling interests (3,885) (3,967)




24. FX
H =20145%F 128318 K&2013F12831H
ILEE - BRAISHAEANSHBRUTEIE :

24. Expenses
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging the following for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

BZE12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

UFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
EEEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 42,588 36,821
B EE#E Amortization of intangible assets 9,180 8,363
% BB 2 B Auditors’ remuneration 4,715 3,854
MERERE Research and development 26,140 22,386
ERAMENEEREER Operating lease charges in respect of properties 112,177 96,573
BHEA Restructuring charges - -

FBEAEBIIEZEEAMKPMGREZE
2014512 B31 B I FEREMNEZRE
BERSHNERANT :

The fees in relation to the audit and related services for the year ended December 31,
2014 provided by KPMG, the external auditors of the Group, were as follows:

UFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

FEEZR P EERRS Annual audit and interim review services 3,479
EHEE R HEME BRI EZRE Due diligence and other acquisition related non-audit services 622
B AT AR Permitted tax services 534
Hith 3% B RS Other non-audit related services 80
et Total 4,715
25. FEARS 25. Related Party Transactions

(a) BEEEEABNRS
BRHMTESREMEEEEASHNER M
- AEETEAREREFIRERF - AR
REPRAZEBULR o

TREEEREAREESENGHNEE
B - TREEASHNFHELE

(a) Transactions with Key Management Personnel
In addition to their cash compensation, the Group also provides non-cash benefits to
Executive Directors and other key management personnel, and contributes to a post-
employment plan on their behalf.

Key management is comprised of the Group’s Directors and Senior Management. Key
management personnel compensation comprised:

BZE12A3ALEE
Year ended December 31,

HUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
FEHS Director’s fees 530 530
2117 IN= 321y SRk =7 blE Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind 5,818 5,105
TEALO Bonus™" 4,257 2,927
LU A2 A 9 3 A Share-based compensation 4,845 3,198
RIKEFHEIER Contributions to post-employment plans 93 172
HrEEE Total compensation 15,543 11,932
g3 Note

O AR AEBNRBREE o

M Bonus is based on the performance of the Group.

HEBABRAERLA
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FEMERRMET &
25 FERRXS e 25. Related Party Transactions continued
(b) EEHE (b) Directors’ Remuneration

RIEHE B D RMRS (35622F) MiR1128  Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong
TBIERESEZEFTBARMEN ($32F) 8 Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor

1611%  EEMSIFT|WOT ¢ Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:
HE2014F12A318 L EE
Year ended December 31, 2014
N RRER
HibBEHFE B
Salaries, AR 3% £ BN
allowances K#FMREZ  Contributions
and other Share-based to post-
WS benefits T4  compensation  employment st
HUFETZ2 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Directors' fees in kind Bonus™ expense plans Total
HITEE Executive Directors
Ramesh Tainwala Ramesh Tainwala - 1,254 388 596 - 2,238
Kyle Gendreau Kyle Gendreau - 524 343 551 28 1,446
Tom Korbas Tom Korbas - 505 336 533 36 1,410
FHITEE Non-Executive Director
Timothy Parker Timothy Parker - 786 1,018 1,693 - 3,497
BUHHTEE Independent Non-Executive
Directors
Paul Etchells Paul Etchells 130 - - - - 130
Keith Hamill Keith Hamill 100 - - - - 100
=R Miguel Ko 100 - - - - 100
Bruce Hardy McLain  Bruce Hardy McLain 100 - - - - 100
R Ying Yeh 100 - - - - 100
st Total 530 3,069 2,085 3,373 64 9,121
B = Note
O RARAEBHRRRELE o M Bonus is based on the performance of the Group.
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25. BAEFXS &

25. Related Party Transactions continued

(b) EEE & (b) Directors’ Remuneration continued
BZE2013F12A310LEE
Year ended December 31, 2013
HE - RBR
HiEYFE BIRE
Salaries, AR A% BE 2
allowances O Contributions
EEHS and other Share-based to post-
Directors' benefits ALY compensation employment st
HUFETZH Expressed in thousands of US Dollars fees in kind Bonus!" expense plans Total
HITEE Executive Directors
Timothy Parker Timothy Parker - 971 943 1,090 - 3,004
Kyle Gendreau Kyle Gendreau - 494 286 358 33 1171
Ramesh Tainwala Ramesh Tainwala - 1,018 274 388 - 1,680
HHTEE Non-Executive Directors
Keith Hamill Keith Hamill 100 - - - - 100
Bruce Hardy McLain  Bruce Hardy McLain 100 - - - - 100
BUIHITEE Independent Non-Executive
Directors
Paul Etchells Paul Etchells 130 - - - - 130
f)re: Miguel Ko 100 - - - - 100
2R Ying Yeh 100 - - - - 100
st Total 530 2,483 1,503 1,836 33 6,385

By
O FARAEBENRRBEE -

B ZE2014% 128318 K20135F128
BTALEFE BEESEHAEEREEM
MEERMASIMAREEZRNER - R2
AR SMRESHEIRBHRR M
& B £2014F128318 K2013F128
BNALFE BMEESHETLAQARNES
B A E R R EE S AR
L WEE AT ©

Note
" Bonus is based on the performance of the Group.

No director received any emoluments from the Group as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group during the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013. No
director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the periods presented. No
director received any compensation during the years ended December 31, 2014 or December
31, 2013 for the loss of office as a director of the Company or of any other office in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

FEMERRMET &
25 FERRXS e 25. Related Party Transactions continued
(0 mEEHFAL (c) Individuals with the Highest Emoluments

BZE2014F12A31HEFE - REBERA  The five highest paid individuals of the Group include four directors during the year ended
BeHATEFENEESE  MEAZE2013F  December 31, 2014 and three directors during the year ended December 31, 2013, whose
1A3MALFE AEEREHZESHF AL emoluments are disclosed above. Details of remuneration paid to the remaining highest
BEZ£EFE  HENMEESRN EURE ©  paid individuals of the Group are as follows:

EXAFAREEESRESHTALTHMSFE

mE
BE128310LEE
Year ended December 31,

KUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
- EBIREMEY RS Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind 567 1,030
Ao Bonus" 348 662
DR D A3 A9 B = Share-based compensation expense 583 708
RINESTEIMR Contributions to post-employment plans - 41

1,498 2,441
=3 Note
0 RARAEBHRBRELE - ) Bonus is based on the performance of the Group.

RE2WEE > FEATHHETEE The emoluments of each individual exceeded US$250 thousand for each of the years

250,000% st & £2014%12H31H & presented. No amounts have been paid to these individuals as compensation for loss of
2013F 12A31HILFE » EXFZE A office or as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group during the years ended
TEMFIBERBBMBESIERMARMA  December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

AEERNER -

(d) HAbEAEHRZS (d) Other Related Party Transactions

() ZAEEKEEMK B D "Samsonite (i) The Group’s Indian subsidiary, Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd., purchases raw materials
South Asia Pvt. Ltd. @ Abhishri and finished goods from, and sells certain raw materials and finished goods to, Abhishri
Packaging Pvt. Ltd (FAZASEIMNHITE Packaging Pvt. Ltd, which is managed and controlled by the family of Mr. Ramesh
E AR AT H Ramesh Tainwala £ 4 Tainwala, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Group (“Mr. Tainwala”).
([Tainwala %64 1) HRIRETR K #2H]) Related amounts of purchases, sales, payables and receivables are the following:

RN NSRRI o 5B - 8
£ BEARUER BRI AR S

T
BZE12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,
KUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
e Purchases 3,631 4,575
HE Sales 266 377
12A31H
December 31,
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
FERFIE Payables 487 607
FEWFRIE Receivables 71 83
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25 FESARXS e 25. Related Party Transactions continued
(d) HAbEAEHRZS @ (d) Other Related Party Transactions continued
(i) Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. 78 @ (i) Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. also sells finished goods to Bagzone Lifestyle Private

Bagzone Lifestyle Private Limited &% Limited. Bagzone Lifestyle Private Limited is managed and controlled by the family of

FX R ° Bagzone Lifestyle Private Limited Mr. Tainwala. Mr. Tainwala and his family also own a non-controlling interest in

HTainwala EE N RIKEB REH Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. and the Group’s United Arab Emirates subsidiary.

Tanwalae £ R ERKE TS #E F

Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. ] 78 &

P 4 (R B S 2 R B RO BTV 2 B 9 FE 42

IRfER o

BZE12A318LEE
Year ended December 31,
UFETZ) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
23 Purchases - =
HE Sales 11,415 11,799
He Rent 77 58
128318
December 31,

KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
FEFRIE Payables - -
WA Receivables 8,573 9,075

(iii)

H £2014%F128318 K20135F128
BTHLEFE  E2RIXAN0IEESE
TTROOEEE L FHTanwala tER
HEXEEENER  UMER QA
£ R2014%F 128318 R2013F12
B318 > BIEEX I Tainwala £ £ &
HEROFIE - R2014F 128318 K
2013F 128318 0RO 1EHESE
7T BIMR B IR S N AR A EEK
18 o

Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. B T B
HERLAK M@ T Planet Retail Holding Pt.
Ltd. ([Planet Retaill) ° Tainwala & 4
A Planet Retail W EERR - BE2014
128310 K2013F 128318 It &
B BMENLERELHEE - 7H2014
F12A318 KX2013F12H8318 ° #
SEFEUR Planet Retail BYFRIE o

Approximately US$0.9 million and US$0.9 million was paid to entities owned by Mr.
Tainwala and his family, for office space rent for the years ended December 31, 2014
and December 31, 2013, respectively. As of December 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, no amounts were payable to Mr. Tainwala and his family. As of December 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013, US$nil million and US$0.1 million, respectively, were
recorded as a receivable in the form of a security deposit.

(iii) Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. has from time to time sold finished goods to Planet
Retail Holding Pvt. Ltd. (“Planet Retail”). Mr. Tainwala is the majority shareholder of
Planet Retail. There were no sales to this entity for the years ended December 31, 2014
and December 31, 2013. As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, no
amounts were receivable from Planet Retail.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

REVISRRMET &
26. REERMFAEH 26. Particulars of Group Entities
BEEY%
Ownership%

ERE BT Entity name EES Country 2014 2013
FEBERERLD R BAT [S¥NG]
Samsonite International S.A. ERE Luxembourg Parent Parent
Astrum R.E. LLC = United States 100 100
Bypersonal S.A. de C.V. 2T Mexico 100 100
Delilah Europe Investments S.a.r.l. EHRE Luxembourg 100 100
Delilah US Investments S.a.r.. ERE Luxembourg 100 100
Direct Marketing Ventures, LLC E3E] United States 100 100
Equipaje en Movimiento, S.A. de C.V. EJiiths Mexico 100 100
Global Licensing Company, LLC xE United States 100 100
HL Operating LLC =& United States 100 100
Jody Apparel Il, LLC ESE] United States 100 100
Lonberg Express S.A. BRiE Uruguay 100 100
Limited Liability Company Samsonite 2R HT R 5T Russian Federation 60 60
Lipault UK Limited HE United Kingdom 100 -
McGregor |l, LLC ESE) United States 100 100
PT Samsonite Indonesia ENE et Indonesia 60 60
Sams SA Retail (Pty) Ltd EES South Africa 60 -
Samsonite (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd EoRF L Malaysia 100 100
Samsonite (Thailand) Co., Ltd. ZxE Thailand 60 60
Samsonite A/S e Denmark 100 100
Samsonite AB T Sweden 100 100
Samsonite AG i Switzerland 99 99
Samsonite Argentina S.A. P AR 3E Argentina 95 95
Samsonite Asia Limited BiE Hong Kong 100 100
Samsonite Australia Pty Limited BN Australia 70 70
Samsonite Belgium Holdings BVBA b F BF Belgium 100 -
Samsonite Brasil Ltda. BEr Brazil 100 100
Samsonite B.V. Gl Netherlands 100 100
Samsonite Canada, Inc. JIIEPN Canada 100 100
Samsonite CES Holding B.V. Feil | Netherlands 60 60
Samsonite Chile S.A. =l Chile 85 85
Samsonite China Holdings Limited B Hong Kong 100 100
Samsonite Colombia S.A.S. Smtbae Colombia 100 100
Samsonite Company Stores, LLC =E United States 100 100
Samsonite Espana S.A. FYESF Spain 100 100
Samsonite Europe N.V. [ ]2 Belgium 100 100
Samsonite Finanziaria S.r.l. =% Italy 100 100
Samsonite Finland Oy = Finland 100 100
Samsonite Ges.m.b.H. B3 R Austria 100 100
Samsonite GmbH == Germany 100 100
Samsonite Hungaria Borond KFT R 5F Hungary 100 100
Samsonite International Trading (Ningbo) Co. Ltd. FRE China 100 100
Samsonite IP Holdings S.a.r.l. ERE Luxembourg 100 100
Samsonite Japan Co., Ltd. AR Japan 100 100
Samsonite Korea Limited RERE Korea, Republic 100 100
Samsonite Latinoamerica, S.A. de C.V. E<yiths) Mexico 100 100
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26. REIERMFAEE = 26. Particulars of Group Entities continved

HEERE%
Ownership%
EH8 BB Entity name EES Country 2014 2013
Samsonite Limited HE United Kingdom 100 100
Samsonite LLC xE United States 100 100
Samsonite Macau Limitada e Macau 100 100
Samsonite Mauritius Limited EERET Mauritius 100 100
Samsonite Mercosur Limited BrRE Bahamas 100 100
Samsonite Mexico, S.A. de C.V. BT Mexico 100 100
Samsonite Middle East FZCO FIAIAESEREl United Arab Emirates 60 60
Samsonite Norway AS BEL Norway 100 100
Samsonite Pacific LLC ESE] United States 100 100
Samsonite Panama S.A. BE5 Panama 100 100
Samsonite Peru S.A.C. we Peru 100 100
Samsonite Philippines, Inc. JEEE Philippines 60 60
Samsonite S.A.S. 5 France 100 100
Samsonite S.p.A. BXRA Italy 100 100
Samsonite Seyahat Urlinleri Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi  +EH Turkey 60 60
Samsonite Singapore Pte Ltd F N3 Singapore 100 100
Samsonite South Asia Private Limited ENE India 60 60
Samsonite Southern Africa Ltd. [EE3 South Africa 60 60
Samsonite Sp. z 0.0. R Poland 100 100
Samsonite Sub Holdings S.a.r.l. ERE Luxembourg 100 100
SC Chile Uno S.A. =l Chile 100 100
SC Inversiones Chile Ltda BF Chile 100 100
Speck Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. +iE Shanghai 100 -
Speculative Product Design, LLC E3E] United States 100 -
M20145F12A318 R20135F12831 The particulars of the investment in subsidiaries held directly by Samsonite International

BHRFFEBERERATISENMBATMN  S.A. at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 are set out below.
REWFBERINNOT

20144 2013%F
128318 128318
December 31, December 31,
KUFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013
FE LMD » R Unlisted shares, at cost 866,682 866,682
R A AR R R MEATR Trade and others payables due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no
BAERKA  REREBETERE - fixed terms of repayment.
FTEFEREEES  EESEENKH The particulars of subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities
BRARWFEERHINT - of the Group are set out below.

HEBEMARAT ZO—MEFH| 183



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

FEMBRKMET &

26. EEIEEMNFNEE &

26. Particulars of Group Entities continued

A B HR
- R 5ES Date of R FEEK g4
Entity name Country Incorporation Share Capital Principal Activities Note
Delilah Europe Investments S. a.r.. EHFE 2009 21,804,401% 7T =R o
Luxembourg UsD21,804,401 Holding
Delilah US Investments S.a r.. ERE 2009 78,160,399% T =8 *x
Luxembourg UsD78,160,399 Holding
Samsonite LLC E3E| 1987 EH 2= o
United States usD nil Holding
Samsonite Asia Limited ] 1996 20587t ar:| *x
Hong Kong HKD20 Distribution
Samsonite Australia Pty Limited UM 1984 20027 k| *x
Australia AUD20 Distribution
Samsonite Chile S.A. = 2007 23,928,441, 7108RILbR  £FE 58 o
Chile CLP23,928,441,710 Production/
Distribution
Samsonite Company Stores, LLC ESE] 1985 0%t Bax | *x
United States usD nil Distribution
Samsonite Espana S.A. iy 1952 3,122,195t Bax:| *x
Spain EUR3,122,195 Distribution
Samsonite Europe N.V. £k R B 1966 0BT £EDHH o
Belgium EUR nil Production/
Distribution
Samsonite GmbH = 1966 25,5658 7T k| o
Germany EUR25,565 Distribution
Samsonite International Trading FE 2006 AE#25,651,9907T £E ok
(Ningbo) Co. Ltd. China RMB25,651,990 Production/
Distribution
Samsonite IP Holdings S. a r.l. EHRE 2009 114,115,900 T B EREAE v
Luxembourg usD114,115,900 Holding/Licensing
Samsonite Japan Co., Ltd. =N 2004 850,000,000H Bax:| *x
Japan JPY850,000,000 Distribution
Samsonite Korea Limited RERE 1997 1,060,000,000%2E x| o
Korea, Republic of KRW1,060,000,000 Distribution
Samsonite Limited e 1986 20,0005 8% ar! *x
United Kingdom GPB20,000 Distribution
Samsonite Mexico, S.A. de C.V. 27T 1986 201,903,387&A LR £E D *x
Mexico MXN201,903,387 Production/
Distribution
Samsonite S.A.S. LB 1965 720,0008k 7T ar:| *x
France EUR720,000 Distribution
Samsonite S.p.A. =l 1980 780,000& 7T k| o
[taly EUR780,000 Distribution
Samsonite South Asia Private Limited  EDE 1995 354,912,330 EELL £E o
India INR354,912,330 Production/
Distribution
Samsonite Sub Holdings S.a r.l. ERE 2011 55,417,991% 7t = *
Luxembourg UsSD55,417,991 Holding

184 | Samsonite International S.A. Annual Report 2014



26. EEIEEMNFNEE =

=T

& BAQBEREESE -

> HARQTBEESE -

ok RABRINEREEATIRNERELE -

B EERARA TN EAES
HZE2014F12831BIEEE » AQAFFAK
AT RADRETBIE T E B REETE
ME17889,452 REL B - MEEEIRER
DNENRANREE2013F12831HLEEE
BHEEMEE -

FEiE R
TRBATEREEEZZME AR AMEME
EREHEAIEEEAREERERS ([FER
fEm]) HER -
HZE2014F12831HILFE :

26. Particulars of Group Entities continued

Note

* Directly held by the Company.

** Indirectly held by the Company.

**% A limited liability company and wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.

Changes in the Share Capital of Samsonite International S.A.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company issued 889,452 ordinary shares in
connection with the exercise of share options that were granted under the Company’s Share
Award Scheme. There were no changes in the share capital of Samsonite International S.A.
during the year ended December 31, 2013.

Non-Controlling Interests
The following table summarizes the information relating to the Group’s significant
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”), before any intra-group
eliminations.

For the year ended December 31, 2014:

Samsonite

Samsonite South Asia

Australia Samsonite Private

WUFETZS) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Pty Limited Chile S.A. Limited
FERERZB L NCI percentage 30% 15% 40%
FREBEE Non-current assets 948 36,444 11,533
MENEE Current assets 20,506 29,333 79,921
FREBEE Non-current liabilities - (18,570) 2,161
REBEE Current liabilities 9,117 21,665 58,798
REE Net assets 12,337 62,682 30,495
I ERERVREE Carrying amount of NCI 3,701 9,402 12,198
MR IFEE Net outside revenue 48,613 58,898 126,653
JaFl Profit 5,551 9,074 13,959
Hittzmas odcl (1,095) (10,098) (886)
EHUNEHELE Total comprehensive income 4,456 (1,024) 13,073
DEEIERER AT Profit allocated to NCI 1,665 1,361 5,584
S HREFERERNVEMEEIE OCl allocated to NCI (329) (1,515) (354)
ENEERERKRE Dividends paid to NCI 821 3,457 1,505
RERBLEEBYHIEM ORJ) FE  Netincrease (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,013 (1,167) 1,066
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

FEMBRKMET &

26. EEERNFHEE &
FEIERR R &
HZE2013F12831HILLFE :

26. Particulars of Group Entities continued
Non-Controlling Interests continued
For the year ended December 31, 2013:

Samsonite Samsonite
Australia Samsonite South Asia
UFETZS Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Pty Limited Chile S.A.  Private Limited
FEREZEDL NCI percentage 30% 15% 40%
kRBEE Non-current assets 1,058 43,830 10,859
RENEE Current assets 19,058 32,578 69,781
FEREBEE Non-current liabilities — (32,237) 1,528
REEE Current liabilities 9,496 21,895 57,927
FEE Net assets 10,620 86,750 21,185
FEIER RS M ERE(E Carrying amount of NCI 3,186 13,013 8,474
MR FEE Net outside revenue 42,666 62,577 110,526
gl Profit 5,044 12,243 5,918
Hitt2mkas OCl (1,596) (7,814) (2,471)
2HEWREHEZE Total comprehensive income 3,448 4,429 3,447
D EE RS AET Profit allocated to NCI 1,513 1,836 2,367
P HREFERERNEMEEIKE OCl allocated to NCI (479) (1,172) (989)
S ERERRE Dividends paid to NCI 3,841 = =
ReRBSEEMNIEM OfL) P58 Netincrease (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 318 (5,023) 178

27. HA{EEIE
AEBCTFER2014F128318 REB
H) 8 E2015%F38 160 (KRB ERESE
ESRERTAL) rEEEE-

R2015F1B70 AE@B@ETE
E - FEEBAERAMESRBEN
16,006,812 E BRI IE - FTiR HEERR
EWNTHEER23318T - ZEEREER
AFHRIZLLPIRE - B 25% KB RER
BEANSEBEARE  EHA10F -

M2015F 1870 A&EBE— BT
EEREAAEESATEEERNSINESR
R E4S IR HEEIN 0,040,399 BB IR FE o FFF
RHBRENTEER23.318T - Z5E
IREERI60% #2018 1 A7 BERE » 40%
Al R20205E1 A7 RE  MESHERE
HEBRABI10F -

201412 831 AZ2015F2 8280 -
RATRARA TR LT BIETREAE
RAEREITHEMEEIT212,750REER - B
2014512 A31 B » RABAHEEMAKE
ATHERERERAAT LHES -
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27. Subsequent Events

The Group has evaluated events occurring subsequent to December 31, 2014, the reporting
date, through March 16, 2015, the date this financial information was authorized for issue
by the Board of Directors.

On January 7, 2015, the Group granted an additional 16,006,812 ordinary share
options to certain directors, key management personnel, and other employees. The exercise
price of the options granted is HK$23.31. Such options are subject to pro rata vesting over
a 4-year period, with 25% of the options vesting on each anniversary date of the grant and
have a 10-year term.

On January 7, 2015, the Group made an additional special grant of 10,040,399 share
options to an Executive Director and to five additional members of the Group’s senior
management team. The exercise price of the options granted is HK$23.31. 60% of such
options will vest on January 7, 2018 and 40% will vest on January 7, 2020 and such options
have a 10-year term.

From December 31, 2014 to February 28, 2015, the Company issued 212,750 ordinary
shares in connection with the exercise of share options that were granted under the
Company’s Share Award Scheme. There were no purchases or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries since December 31, 2014.



27. BliESIE#
EBEH
Rolling Luggage
R2015F2816H » R RAAETZENEB
AT FERULEE Rolling Luggage MYZEFE R 3T F
FEEE RERERIST-BERE H
BAMEHRAZE - REDHINEESETRE N
REF o REEIEE Rolling Luggage 3¢
FrEEE  W&IERling Luggage® T &
E °

AEEEARRABBESERRBNEE
FERIERfH{E ©

BB EEEARERINS RS T RE
ERHISKETEER  WE-—SERAE
ENZSEEHAE BE2015F18318 1k
B B4 - Rolling Luggage $% 15 S & ¥ 58
26 7BEBRE BREZE2014F1A831H L
MEFEEN24 08B HREEEM11.3% °

LW B EIE R A REIZ20145F 12
A31HLEFETRIIUEESIER20145F1
B1B#4E  AEBMGHREHEEFENA
246TEHEET - HAERS WL AIR B
BER  HAKEREEEHREGET o

27. Subsequent Events continued

Business Combination

Rolling Luggage

On February 16, 2015, certain of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries completed the
acquisition of the business and substantially all of the assets of Rolling Luggage for a cash
consideration of GBP 15.75 million, subject to subsequent adjustment. The consideration
was settled by cash upon completion of the acquisition. The Group purchased substantially
all of the assets, and assumed certain liabilities of Rolling Luggage.

The Group has not yet completed a formal valuation of the assets that were acquired
in the acquisition.

The acquisition provides the Group with a significant retail footprint in some of the
world’s leading airports, and further expands the Group’s portfolio of retail store locations.
For the fiscal year ended January 31, 2015, Rolling Luggage recorded net sales of GBP 26.7
million, an increase of 11.3% from GBP 24.0 million for the fiscal year ended January 31,
2014.

If this acquisition and all acquisitions completed during the year ended December 31,
2014 had occurred on January 1, 2014, the Group estimates that consolidated net sales
would have been approximately US$2,461 million. The Group is unable to determine what
profit for the period would have been due to lack of readily available information from the
seller.
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Financial Summary
IHHE

AEEBTIEBEATBRFEENGREEEZRE A summary of the consolidated results and assets, liabilities, equity and non-controlling
B BE REARFERESHBESRSIM  interests of the Group for the last five financials years is as follows:

T
128310
December 31,

HUFET25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HEFE Net sales 2,350,707 2,037,812 1,771,726 1,565,147 1,215,307
EF Gross profit 1,243,826 1,088,337 951,005 856,948 689,679
EFI= Gross profit margin 52.9% 53.4% 53.7% 54.8% 56.7%
Fed e Operating profit 299,277 281,292 241,742 209,930 543,602
TH AL Profit for the year

FREA attributable to:

BREFEA Equity holders 186,256 176,087 148,439 86,748 355,022

IR Non-controlling interests 19,098 21,334 18,188 16,870 11,792
EEHARE Total assets 2,131,294 1,934,891 1,813,164 1,544,546 1,665,001
BEHEE Total liabilities 823,854 704,309 727,059 599,346 902,149
RiEEE AL ER Equity attributable to equity holders 1,269,688 1,192,756 1,051,593 918,131 740,208
R ER Non-controlling interests 37,752 37,826 34,512 27,069 22,644
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